B RrISUN

China Risun Group Limited

H B il s 4 1 A R 2 W]

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RFREESTMAZHERAR)

Stock Code f& 3 5% : 1907

ANNUAL

REPORT 25



12

14

34

42

65

84

132

138

140

142

143

146

295

CONTENTS

Corporate Information
RNRIEF
Chairman’s Statement

FREHE

Business Highlights

FEIRE

Financial Highlights

M RE

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB HRR AN

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEERE

Report of the Board of Directors

ESRES

Corporate Governance Report

PEERME

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report
RIR - e RERRE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BN S

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

frEBm REM AR ER
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
fRa AR R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
LMEBRESRER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE TS IRAR M

Definitions

=




COMPANY NAME
China Risun Group Limited

STOCK CODE
1907

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

CORPORATE HEADQUARTER
Building 4, Block 5

ABP Area, No. 188, South 4th Ring Road West
Fengtai District

Beijing, PRC 100070

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza

255 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

CONTACT INFORMATION
Tel: +852 2877 8920

Fax: +852 2877 8902

E-mail: ir@risun.com

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.risun.com

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Han Qinliang
Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph (FCPA)

COMPANY DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS :

Mr. Yang Xuegang (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Yingwei

Mr. Han Qinliang

Mr. Wang Fengshan

Mr. Wang Nianping

Mr. Yang Lu

Corporate Information
NGIE=g

ACIEE
"R EISRIS B AR A

BB ER

1907

S EE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

YNGIE R
PRI R
EARAAEIEN
B PIIRPH K 18855
5@ 41R

#4& : 100070

BRETEE M
BB

5 §TiE2555%
{EFEIR2012001=

BxER

FiE © +852 2877 8920
{EH : +852 2877 8902
FES ¢ ir@risun.com

NGIE Bl

http://www.risun.com

BEAXR
BERmEL
AT

NEIME
Al AR 25 4 (FCPA)

NAES

HITEF :

BB S (ERRITERE)
R

BERmEL

TRL%EE

IFEFRE

BB

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G



Corporate Information (Continued)

AEIER(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kang Woon
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry
Mr. Wang Yinping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry (Chairman)
Mr. Kang Woon

Mr. Wang Yinping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Kang Woon (Chairman)

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry

Mr. Wang Yinping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yang Xuegang (Chairman)

Mr. Kang Woon

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Guotai Junan Capital Limited
27/F, Low Block

Grand Millennium Plaza

181 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Xingtai Qiaodong Branch

No. 220 Zhong Xing East Street

Xingtai, Hebei Province

PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation
Bohai New Area Branch

Shigang Road, Bohai New Area
Cangzhou, Hebei Province

PRC

China Citic Bank
Dingzhou Branch

No. 172 Xingding Road
Dingzhou, Hebei Province
PRC

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

BN EITES
B
REE S
B Rt

BREEY
REESLE(ER)
Bk

B Rt

e ES SR
BB S (ER)
REE S
B Rt

REZES
1SS ()
Bk
REE S

EHRER
HRELMEBRAR
BB

ERREF1815%

e TES

{KEE27H8

FEERELT

TEITHRITENERAR

MEH/ELT

e

itE =T
FR L B K AT 22057

PREERBITENERAT

BERET
+

AL &R M
R AER

FP{ZERTT
EMZIT

&

A dbE E M T
B F PR 17257



Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Yong Ding Road Branch

No. 51 Yong Ding Road

Haidian District

Beijing

PRC

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

AS TO HONG KONG LAW:
Latham & Watkins LLP

18th Floor, One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

AS TO PRC LAW:

Jingtian & Gongcheng

34/F, Tower 3, China Central Place
77 Jianguo Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

AS TO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW:
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

CAYMAN SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Corporate Information (Continued)

NEEF(E)

EERRERET
XEBEEZ 1T

R

bl

YRR

IKTEBE5 158

= EEm

EHe TR H @ ETATTT
M ARF ST BB
BB

©§EIES8YR

K B 13512

el

FAREEAR
WERRRMEAAREREEAY
Bl

i

BLEISEH

RS EH— 1812

BN BDER

BR AR EIS AT
A

bl

SIS

EEET7R

EZR LI FTIEIAE

FARFESREARE
Conyers Dill &Pearman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

MEHBEROBFETRE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman)Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0.Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EERODBFELT &
SEBFERERAT
BB

SRAER183%
AR 5418

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,
SCALE ADVANTAGE FURTHER IMPROVED

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Risun Group Limited, | am
pleased to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2019. Year of 2019 is a very meaningful
year to us; we listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on March 15, 2019. Year of 2020 is
another meaningful year; it is our 25th anniversary since our history can
be traced back to 1995.

REVIEW

Year of 2019 is a fruitful year during which we accomplished various
achievements. In terms of market share, number of provinces we operate
in and number of production bases, we have achieved the followings:

° Our market share in coke industry in 2019 accounts for 1.4% (2018:
1.3%) of the worldwide market and 2.0% (2018: 1.8%) of China’s
total output.

° Our production bases are located at eight locations (2018: four
locations) in four different provinces in China (2018: one province).
The newly established production bases are located in Inner
Mongolia Huhehaote, Shandong Dongming, Shandong Yuncheng
and Liaoning Chaoyang respectively.

The network of our production bases expands rapidly to cover a greater
territory in China. This enables us to establish stronger and tighter
relationship with our customers and suppliers, including large-scaled
steel enterprises, chemicals manufacturers and coal suppliers.

Apart from our production bases, we also entered into four (2018: three)
new operation management agreements and capital injection agreements
with independent third parties in Shandong, Inner Mongolia and Jiangxi
respectively. One of them is our Shandong Cinda Project, in which we
cooperate with China Cinda Asset Management Co. Ltd. in the bankruptcy
restructuring of six target companies with estimated completion in the
second or third quarter of 2020. In the meantime, we are operating and
managing the six target companies.

Starting from January 1, 2019, we recognized the operation management
business segment as a new and separate business segment. This
recognition is based on the continuous effort by our management in
sourcing and negotiating new operation management projects in various
provinces in China. The gross profit of this new segment is approximately
RMB179.9 million, increased by approximately 27.6% when compared to
gross profit in 2018 of approximately RMB141.0 million.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

We also incorporated a new company in Japan as our overseas trading
arm. We will also continue to examine other potential overseas investment
opportunities.

Relying on our vertically integrated business model, highly automation
and information systems, advanced environmental protection measures,
and comprehensive transportation infrastructure near our production
bases, we continued to strengthen our competitive advantage amongst
other coke enterprises in China, position ourselves as the world’s largest
independent coke producer and supplier, and maintain our leading roles
in a number of refined chemical sectors in China and globally. Therefore,
we have a good corporate reputation in the coke and refined chemical
industry.

KEY COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Our outstanding infrastructure and systems, including vertically integrated
business model, highly automation and information systems, such as our
Manufacturing Execution System (MES), Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) system and Office Automation (OA) system have been crucial to
our previous success.

In celebrating our 25 years anniversary, we also reviewed and reinforced
our soft skills that have been developed in the course of our development.
We believe that the following nine competitive advantageous abilities
which we possess allow us to execute our strategies effectively in order
to develop and enhance our leadership in coke and coking chemicals
industry, namely, scale ability, vertically integrated ability, production
base ability, cost control ability, centralized sale and marketing ability,
innovation ability, automation and information technologies ability,
environmental safety ability and risk mitigation ability.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2020, we will continue to increase our market share
by expanding our operation management together with conducting
merger and acquisition. We also plan to strengthen our production line of
coke and coking chemicals and refined chemicals by adding refinement
of hydrogen-based products. The main philosophy is to expand our
products mix and manufacture new refined chemicals products according
to the current economic outlook in China and overseas.

Also, the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020 is expected to have an
impact on the world’s economy in 2020. The Chinese government has
taken stringent measures to constrain the spread of coronavirus. We also
strictly follow the measures imposed by the China government and will
comply with any new requirements imposed by relevant authorities in
coming future.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREHE(E)

DIVIDEND

In view of the satisfactory operating results in 2019, the Board
recommends a final dividend of total amount of RMB156.2 million as a
return to the supports of our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the Group’s
employees, shareholders and business partners for their continuous
support. We are looking forward to growing with all of you in the future
and celebrating our Group’s 25th anniversary in 2020.

Yang Xuegang
Chairman

April 23, 2020
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Financial stability
MR

Expand business Cash on hand reached RMB1,060 million
Listed on the Main Board of the £ (2018: RMB759 million) as at December 31,

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 2015
N N e Seize the opportunity of industry R2019F12A31HEFE ZAR10.6
E %Hﬁ" &Fﬁi *ﬁ J: m consolidation and expand business through i
operational management business by
Successfully listed on the Main Board of the | expanding our four original production bases
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in March 2019 | in Hubei Province into eight production
bases in four different provinces

201943 MR IN BB RAER LT

Net profit 1 AEHET
FFE ; RMB 100 million

2016 N G5

2017

7.7

2018 21.3

2019 13.7

Gross profit ARMET
e 2 RMB 100 million

2016 I .’

2017

20.1

2018 34.1

25.8

2019
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Business Highlights (Continued)
BB (E)

China’s sales coverage
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Business Highlights (Continued)
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Joint venture company CNC Risun Energy
SN E PR RER

Xingtai production base:
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Coke and coking chemicals
production lines
ERRELCEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line
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Joint venture company Risun China Gas
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Business Highlights (Continued)
¥EREE)

Production volume / processing volume of major
products of the Group in 2019 (thousand tons)

2019 A EBFEERHNEE/MNMIE v

Coke* Production volume

Bix* ER
8,767.2

Coking crude benzene Processing volume

FER MIE

[ 52545

Indqstrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride Production volume

THEZEBUKRE EE

m 1675

Coke oven gas methanol Production volume

R R R E ES

HE 5906

Coal\tar Processing volume

poN- MIE

mmmm 10820

Calculated on a dry basis

© REREE

Note: The production volume of each major products includes
both self-owned production and operation management’s production.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- EL R |1 _“ 1 N~ PN
The following table sets out our key financial data for the periods or TERH

A AR sk E = Fs B B
as of the dates indicated extracted from the audited consolidated HEZMBEIE - e BRERERAK
financial statements disclosed in the Prospectus and this annuall FIRATH TR CEZARE TR
report.

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

n -\éjﬁﬁ_ﬁ%%g
For the year ended December 31,
HZ12A31ALLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20155 201645 20174 20184 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTFT AEETT ARETT AEETT ARETFT

Revenue from contracts with

customers REE W 9,993,063 12,216,609 18,658,278 20,583,079 18,842,038
Gross profit EF 515,249 973,413 2,005,239 3,409,920 2,582,908
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrE AT (E518) S A (580,817) 390,836 845,943 2,660,371 1,679,379
Income tax credit/(expense)  Fif5HiER, (FIx%) 73,701 (35,875) (80,370) (533,358) (305,711)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEIEEE (B18),/
attributable to: wmA
Owners of the Company RABEARA (507,116) 359,299 754,674 2,088,668 1,363,165
Non-controlling interests IR A = (4,338) 10,899 38,345 10,503
Basic (loss)/earnings per share &RE (E518),/

(RMB yuan) BFI(ARET) (0.16) 0.12 0.24 0.63 0.34

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBERRARBE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20154 201645 20174 20184 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETT ARETFT AREFT ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,149,929 11,866,376 12,393,896 12,473,286 14,597,914
Current assets RBEE 6,503,261 9,273,347 9,445,155 10,128,823 5,603,482
Total assets HWEE 16,653,190 21,139,723 21,839,051 22,602,109 20,201,396
Current liabilities mEaE 13,768,420 15,844,169 15,951,278 16,414,072 11,889,771
Non-current liabilities FERBARE 1,007,854 2,583,872 2,778,064 1,475,014 1,511,523
Total liabilities wafE 14,776,274 18,428,041 18,729,342 17,889,086 13,401,294
Net current liabilities BB EFE (7,265,159)  (6,570,822)  (6,506,123)  (6,285,249) (6,286,289)
Net assets BEFE 1,876,916 2,711,682 3,109,709 4,713,023 6,800,102
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB Al am Mo AT

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated coke, coking chemical and refined chemical
producer and supplier in China. The Group maintains as the world’s
largest independent producer and supplier of coke by volume in 2019,
according to Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch Co. (“Frost
& Sullivan”), an independent global consulting firm. We also held leading
positions in a number of refined chemical sectors in China or globally in
2019. According to Frost & Sullivan, the Group was the largest producer
of industrial-naphthalene-based phthalic anhydride and coke-oven-gas-
based methanol by volume in China in 2019. The Group was also the
largest coking crude benzene processor and the second largest coal tar
processor by volume globally in 2019.

2019 has been a year with rapid development in the history of the Group.
Since we got listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on March 15, 2019, we instantly
started various negotiations in relation to potential operation management
business, and formation and acquisition of entities. The main philosophy
is to further enhance our leading position both in coke and coking and
refined chemicals industry. Our major coking and refined chemical
products included benzene, industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride,
coke oven gas methanol, coal-tar pitch and caprolactam both in 2018 and
2019.

Apart from four original production bases, located in Hebei Xingtai,
Hebei Dingzhou, Hebei Tangshan and Hebei Cangzhou, we expanded
our production base network with addition of four new ones out of
Hebei province. Our expansion was by way of provision of operation
management, and formation and acquisition of entities. These new
production bases are located in Inner Mongolia Huhehaote, Shandong
Dongming, Shandong Yuncheng and Liaoning Chaoyang respectively.

Moreover, within these production bases, we have four coke and coking
chemical production lines, seven carbon material chemical production
lines, five alcohol-ether chemical production lines and seven aromatic
chemical production lines. All these production bases are located near
national railways networks, major highways, expressways and ports in the
PRC. Our strategic location and network of the production bases allow us
to access both the domestic and overseas markets for our products and
raw materials.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Considering the operating results in 2019 and our future development
needs, and in order to share our results with shareholders, the Board
recommends a final dividend of RMB3.82 cents per share, with a total
amount of RMB156.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2019,
subject to the shareholders’ approval on the final dividend at the annual
general meeting for 2019.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

2019 is the first year that the Company is listed on the Stock Exchange.
The successful listing has not only widen the shareholders base of the
Group, but also enhanced the Group’s financing capability and increased
its brand awareness and reputation. During the year ended December
31, 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Group continued to steadily
develop its various business segments. The Group aims to strengthen the
global leading position as an integrated producer and supplier of coke,
coking chemicals and refined chemicals. To achieve this objective, the
Group intends to pursue the following development strategies:

(i) expansion of business operation and production capacity;

(i) exploration of market opportunities to provide operation
management (previously named as “operation management and
technology output services”);

(i)  development and reinforcement of long-term business relationships
with the major customers and suppliers;

(iv) expansion of domestic and international trading business;

(v) improvement of our energy-efficiency, environmental protection and
operation safety standards; and

(vi) improvement of our core competitive strengths through automation
and information technologies.

Apart from the above development strategies, there are nine competitive
advantageous abilities that we believe we possess and can allow us to
deploy and execute the development strategies effectively in order to
enhance our leadership in the coke and coking chemicals industry:

1. Scale advantageous ability

We are the world’s largest independent coke producer and supplier
of coke by volume and enjoy economies of scale which enabled
us to become more competitive in terms of costs, product quality
and customer relationships. Also, the expansion of production base
network into 8 locations further enhanced our economies of scale in
2019.
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Vertically integrated advantageous ability

Our vertically integrated business model helps improving our
production efficiency and achieving synergies through centralized
and unified management and reducing exposure to market volatility
and price fluctuations.

Production base advantageous ability

All of our production bases are located in industrial parks approved
by PRC governmental authorities. Our production bases are
located near most of our major customers and suppliers and
transportation infrastructure, such as national railway networks,
major highways, expressways and ports, which provide us with
multiple transportation options.

Cost control advantageous ability

We actively control our expenditures in cost of sales and services,
selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses,
finance costs and income tax expenses. We have formulated
a comprehensive and mature coal preparation and blending
computer system based on our IT infrastructure and experience
so as to widen the price spread between our products and our raw
materials.

Centralized sale and marketing advantageous ability

We are market-oriented and all the products are sold under the
brand “RISUN” via the centralized sale and marketing system
operated by the Group. We maintain low levels of finished product
inventories and adopt a “zero inventory” policy and strive to achieve
minimal inventory of our coke products. We produce based on the
periodical production plans which are adjusted regularly pursuant
to our customers’ demands.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Innovation advantageous ability

Our research and technology personnel focuses on the innovation
of production and energy and resource efficiency to improve our
manufacturing processes and reduce the environmental impact of
our production processes. We also commit to improving product
added value and extending the industrial chain.

Automation and information technologies
advantageous ability

Our production bases are highly automated and we established a
centralized system connecting our Manufacturing Execution System
(MES), Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) systems and the BeiDou
Navigation Satellite System. We also use the mobile internet, cloud
computing, internet of things, big data and intelligent manufacturing
technologies in our operations.

Environmental safety advantageous ability

We have adopted a number of measures and practices to reduce
the environmental impact of our operations, such as preventing soil
pollution, water pollution and air pollution in order to minimize the
negative impact on the environment.

Another key of our environmental measures is our resource recovery
and re-utilization. During our coking process, we recover and
re-utilize valuable coking by-products, from which we manufacture
our refined chemical products. With our vertically integrated
business model, we also re-utilize the heat from our production
processes and re-use wastewater and other fluids after appropriate
treatment.

Risk mitigation advantageous ability

We monitor the business operations of our customers, including
but not limited to their inventory levels, production output and sales
volumes, via our on-site customer service personnel. This enables us
to promptly understand the downstream demand for our products,
adjust our production plans and mitigate the risks associated with
price fluctuations and changes in demand for our products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmLD(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Starting from January 1, 2019, the Group recognised an existing business
as a separate business segment, which is our operation management
segment. This recognition is based on the continuous effort by our
management in sourcing and negotiating new operation management
projects in various provinces in China. During the year ended December
31, 2019 and up to the date of this report, we entered into four (2018:
three) new operation management agreements and capital injection
agreement with independent third parties in Shandong, Inner Mongolia
and Jiangxi respectively. Set out below are our four business segments:

1) Coke and coking chemicals manufacturing: the production and sale
of coke and a series of coking chemicals from externally sourced
coking coals processed at the Group’s coking facilities;

2) Refined chemicals manufacturing: the processing of coking
chemicals, sourced from the Group’s coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment and third parties, into refined chemical
products at the Group’s refined chemicals facilities, as well as
marketing and sale of such refined chemicals;

3) Operation management: the operation management service
provided to the third-party plants, and the sale of coke, coking
chemicals and refined chemicals produced by these plants
under the management service agreements and commissioned
processing contracts; and

4)  Trading: the sourcing of coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals from third parties and the marketing, sale and distribution
of such coal chemicals.

The Group’s vertically integrated business model and our experience
of nearly 25 years in the coal chemical industry production chain allow
us to tap into the downstream refined chemical markets. With an aim of
strengthening our leading position as a global coke and refined chemical
producer and supplier, we formed a joint venture with Lingyuan Iron &
Steel Energy Co., Ltd. (“Lingyuan Iron & Steel”) in December 2019. The
joint venture, namely Lingyuan Risun Ling Steel Energy Limited (the “Joint
Venture”), which is a subsidiary of the Company, has been incorporated
in Lingyuan Economic Development Zone, Chaoyang, Liaoning Province,
the PRC. Lingyuan Economic Development Zone is a provincial economic
development zone which mainly serves as a rally point for automobile,
steel and glass industries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Joint Venture will mainly invest in the construction of an ancillary
coking project in Lingyuan Economic Development Zone, which, upon
completion, is expected to have an annual production capacity of 3
million tonnes of coking and other refined chemical products, of which
most coking products will be supplied to Lingyuan Iron & Steel. This will
provide a stable and predictable sales demand for the project.

Apart from the above, we continued the development of our business
through operation management services. A brief description of four
operation management and merger and acquisition projects during the
year ended December 31, 2019 and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

° Cinda Project: With production capacity of approximately 980,000
tons of coke and approximately 500,000 tons of refined chemicals
in Shandong;

° Inner Mongolia Project: With production capacity of approximately
960,000 tons of coke in Inner Mongolia;

° Zhongsheng Project: Located in Inner Mongolia. The Group
formulates a sales plan with the plant owner on a monthly basis. The
Group receives sales service fees which included fixed fees and
premium incentives based on sales volume; and

° Hongyu Project: With production capacity of 1,300,000 tons of coke
and coking chemicals in Jiangxi.

Moreover, we incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary in Japan during
the Reporting Period to expand our overseas trading business. Other
than Japan, we will also explore other expansion opportunities around the
world and especially within the Asia Pacific region.

The above development strategies are deployed based on our
competitive advantages through integrated business model and are
designed to diversify the risks of having most of our operation bases in
Hebei Province, the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmLD(E)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Since January 2020, COVID-19 outbreak has taken place in the Group’s
principal operating locations in the PRC, and at the same time, the oil
price has fallen sharply mostly due to the impact of the international
spread of COVID-19 and geopolitical factors, collectively referring to “the
Events”. The Directors consider the events have no significant impact on
the Group’s operations given the relatively short time since the beginning
of such events. In addition, the future scale and duration of the Events
remain uncertain. The Directors will continue to monitor closely the
changes in the situation and to evaluate the impact on the future financial
position and operating results of the Group accordingly.

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed above, the Group did not
have any other significant event subsequent to December 31, 2019.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2020, the Group will continue to increase our market
share by expanding our operation management together with merger
and acquisition. Within the operation management, the Group developed
a new cooperative model in the Inner Mongolia Project and will continue
to explore different ways to promote the operation management. The
aim is to maintain our leading position in the coke, coking chemical and
refined chemical market, leverage on our brand awareness and enhance
our coverage of sales and marketing network as well as our business
expansion strategies.

We also plan to strengthen our production line of coke and coking
chemicals and refined chemicals by adding refinement of hydrogen
energy products. In view of the potential business of hydrogen energy
products, we are upgrading our production facilities at our Dingzhou
production base in phrases, while the first phrase of production facilities
of hydrogen energy products is expected to be completed by May 2020.

The Group will also enhance the production capacity of self-owned
facilities and improve the environmental protection facilities. During the
year ended December 31, 2019, we commenced the construction of (1)
production facilities with annual production capacity of 300,000 tons of
styrene in Tangshan Production Base, and (2) a coke dry-quenching
project at our Dingzhou Production Base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BIRE s am M A ()

The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 is expected to have an impact on 2020 F VBB MR AR S K TE AT &
the world’s economy in the first quarter of 2020. The PRC government 2020F BE—EEMHRQBEELEFLE - P E

has taken stringent measures to constrain the spread of coronavirus. The BT E I ZREIE - LADHIRBEE o &
Group has also strictly followed the measures requirement imposed by SE MBS ESTP BBAEGREE - Wi
the PRC government and will comply with any new requirements imposed BB AP0 25 FRE -

by relevant authorities of the PRC government in coming future.

Starting from March 2020, it is noted that the outbreak in the PRC is B 2020F 3 A LAZR + R BIRY 1B BT RER o
approaching mild. Since our operation and production is mainly focused AREMOEBSKERHAEETESERER
in the PRC, we expect the China economy will rebound quickly after the CERBEMEPESESTERERE

slowdown of outbreak and are still examining the effect to the operation ARk E  MEHAEELEREENT
and production of the Group. 2HEFRSE -

DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND STATES OF AEBMEBWERE - REKRR
THE BUSINESS ON THE GROUP

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial ratios as at the dates TREYIAFR BB RATREE RSB
and for the years indicated: th =

As of and for the year ended December 31,
BZE12ABREBEZALFE

2019 2018

20195 20184
Gross profit margin EZIES 13.7% 16.6%
Net profit margin @ LEREE 7.3% 10.3%
EBITDA margin @ EBITDAF|EE® 15.1% 18.8%
Return on equity “ Mt B 3R E @ 20.4% 45.4%
Gearing ratio ® BRBELEO 1.3 1.9
Notes: st -
(1)  Calculated by dividing gross profit by revenue for the year. (1)  FEFBRUAFRKZETE -
(2)  Calculated by dividing profit by revenue for the year. (2) ‘FBRAFAYNEETE -
(3)  Calculated by dividing EBITDA by revenue for the year. (3) EBITDABRMAFERUzETE -

(4)  Calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners for the year by equity (4) FREBAEBGARUBEFRERA

attributable to owners as of the end of the year. FEIEERETHE -
(5) Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity as (5) HEERAERABEEREREES
of the end of the year. =i
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
eEBENmMAOT(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %5 e

The following table sets forth our total revenue and gross profit by TREIBEPIREBR D HDE DB RE
business segment (excluding our inter-segment revenue): A BES 2 k) -

For the year ended December 31, 2019

HZ2019F12B31HLLEE
Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Operation
manufacturing manufacturing management Trading Total
BRREL BT
EmEE EmEE EgEm g5 #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥TT ARBTR ARBTRT ARETRT

Total revenue FEllgn 8,621,458 7,155,664 1,033,367 2,031,549 18,842,038
Gross profit EH 1,402,085 838,239 179,886 162,698 2,582,908

For the year ended December 31, 2018

HBZE2018F12A31A L FE
Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Operation
manufacturing manufacturing ~ management Trading Total
EREEL LT
EmEE EmEE BEER 25 st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETTT AR¥ETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

Total revenue Fellgy 9,234,656 7,737,620 1,038,583 2,572,220 20,583,079

Gross profit EF 2,164,601 971,064 140,964 133,293 3,409,920

The following discussion addresses the principal trends that have Tt PN E N E RN EF R L EER

affected the Group’s results of operations during the Reporting Period. FTEFE

(a) Revenue (a) Y&
The revenue decreased by approximately RMB1,741.0 million, or WEREHZE2018F12A31H IEFEH
8.5%, to approximately RMB18,842.0 million for the year ended P ARHEE20,583. 18 ETTR DL AR
December 31, 2019, from approximately RMB20,583.1 million for 1,741,088 7L58.5% 2 B £2019F 12
the year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to decreased A31HIEFENHARE18,842.08
revenues from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing B DTERERMELERE
business, refined chemicals manufacturing business and trading EER B IEREEERIAL
business. B SEBHRERL -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Revenue from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business decreased by 6.6% from RMB9,234.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018 to RMB8,621.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019 primarily as a result of a decrease in the
average selling price from RMB1,805.6 per ton to RMB1,708.4 per
ton, and offset by slight increase of sales volume of the coke from
4.89 million tons to 4.93 million tons.

Revenue from the refined chemical manufacturing business
decreased by 7.5% from RMB7,737.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 to RMB7,155.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019, primarily as a result of decrease in the selling
price of caprolactam, methoxymethane, methanol and coal-tar pitch
sold during the same period.

Revenue from the operation management business decreased
slightly by 0.5% from RMB1,038.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 to RMB1,033.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019, primarily due to the decrease in revenue of
the coke, offset by the increase in revenue from sale of refined
chemicals and the management service.

Revenue from the trading business decreased by 21.0% from
RMB2,572.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to
RMB2,031.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2019,
primarily due to the decrease in coke trading volume and price.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2019
decreased from RMB17,173.2 million to RMB16,259.1 million
primarily due to the decrease of refined chemical and trading
business, partially offset by increase of coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing business.

Cost of sales from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business increased by 2.1% from RMB7,070.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018 to RMB7,219.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019, primarily due to an increase in sales
volume of the coke and manufacturing overhead arising from the
addition of environment protection equipment, while the market
prices for coking coal keep stable for the year ended December 31,
2019.

BRI (E)

REEREKELCEREEEBHRE
HEZ2018F12A31HIEFEMAR
#9,034. 7B BILH6.6%EE E2019
F12A31ALEFEMARYS,621.5
BEL TZHARERTHEEHT
WA A R#¥1,805.67C NREEEHEAREE
1,708.47C ML HERIEEH4.898 8
ME/MBIE AN 4.93F B MEATHESY -

REBEEIEREEEHM KGR
HZE2018F12A31HIEFEMARE
7,737 6B BILRADT 5% EEHE2019F
12A31BEFEMNARK7,155.788
T EEZARBEHEECAER - F
Bt FEREEBESNEEB TNEMA
g( °

REELEEREBNNEBEZE2018
F12A31HEFEMARKE1,038.68
BT/ MEE L 0.5% EE E2019F12 A
S1THIEFEMARKE1,03348&ETT
FERRNEREE TR HE4
(L IEREEREERBGAEIRIE
DNETIKEE -

REBSHEBHREREE2018F12
A31BLLFEMARKE2 572288 T
B21.0%EEHE2019F12A31H I+
EENAR2031 88T T2H
RERRZ HERR HEE TREFTE

HHEMAR

HZE2018F M2019F 12 A31HIEFE
R ER AR ARE17,173.28E TR
LEARE16,259.1H87T TEHR
BHtETERRESEBROMN
HowEk kEEREEEBKILIN
Frigsy o

REERERECLEMEEEBHHEE
RAREZE2018F 12 A31HIEFER
AREE7,070. 1B 8B LEMN2.1% 2 E,
ZE2019F12A31HILFEMARYE
7219488 XEHRERIEES
B UARABERRIBERRESE
RN - MEERNTENEZE2019F
128318 LFERIBETE -

2019 FiR
FEEBEEERA G

23



24

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
eEBENmMAOT(E)

Cost of sales from the refined chemical manufacturing business
decreased by 6.6% from RMB6,766.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 to RMB6,317.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019, primarily due to a decrease in the price of
chemical raw material purchased during the same period.

Cost of sales from the operation management business decreased
by 4.9% from RMB897.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2018 to RMB853.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2019,
primarily as a result of a decrease in chemical raw materials price
and sales volume of the coke.

Cost of sales from the trading business decreased by 23.4%
from RMB2,438.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018
to RMB1,868.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2019,
primarily as a result of the decrease in coke trading volume and
price.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s total gross profit decreased by approximately
RMB827.0 million, or 24.3%, to approximately RMB2,582.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2019, from approximately
RMBS3,409.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018. Gross
profit margin decreased to 13.7% for the year ended December 31,
2019, from 16.6% for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Gross profit from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business decreased by 35.2% from RMB2,164.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018 to RMB1,402.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019. Gross profit margin for the coke and
coking chemical manufacturing business decreased from 23.4%
for the year ended December 31, 2018 to 16.3% for the year ended
December 31, 2019, primarily because the decrease in the price of
coke in the year ended December 31, 2019.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

REBEEIEREEESNEER
AHEZE2018F12A31BIEEER
AR¥6,766.6 BB LA L6.6%EH
E2019F12A831HILFENARE
6,317.48 8 ' TZHNREHIR
BHEHE TFEFTER o

REBEEEREBNHEERIHER
2018F 1231 H L FEM ARKESI7.6
AELAD4.9%EEE2019F12 731
ALtEEMARKESSISAETL £
HRAMETRBEEREREEE TR
FireR

REZEFEBNHERAHRBEE2018
F12A31HIEFEMARE2,438.98
BB 23.4% E# £2019F 12 431
BItEEMAREK18689A&T =
DHRERRDERR HEE TR
g( o

EFREME

AEBEFBEREZ2018F12 731
HIEtFEHLHARES,409.98 8 TR
D AREES27.08 EL24.3% 2 H,
Z2019F 12831 B L FEEMHARE
2,582.98 8T - EMEHEZE2018F
12A31BILEFEMN16.6%RILEEHE
201912318 ILFEM13.7% °

KEEREKEEREEXBHNEF
HEE2018F12A31HILFEEMA
R¥2164 6B BILAL35.2%EH,
Z2019F12A31AILFEMARE
1,402 188 - EREELCEREE
¥BHWEREREE2018F12A31H
IFFEM23.4% [P EHE2019F12
A31BILFEMN16.3% ' TEHRERE
2019F 12 A31 A L FEEKRER TR’
FFER



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gross profit from the refined chemical manufacturing business
decreased by 13.7% from RMB971.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 to RMB838.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019. Gross profit margin for the refined chemical
manufacturing business decreased from 12.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2018 to 11.7% for the year ended December 31,
2019, primarily because the decrease in the prices of refined
chemical products in the year ended December 31, 2019.

Gross profit from the operation management increased by 27.6%
from RMB141.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to
RMB179.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. Gross
profit margin for the operation management increased from 13.6%
for the year ended December 31, 2018 to 17.4% for the year ended
December 31, 2019, primarily because the increase in revenue
from management service provided to new operation management
customer with higher gross profit margin.

Gross profit from the trading business increased by 22.1% from
RMB133.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to
RMB162.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. Gross
profit margin for the trading business increased from 5.2% for
the year ended December 31, 2018 to 8.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2019, primarily because the increase in revenue from
the trading agency with higher gross profit margin.

Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains and losses consist primarily of fair value
gain/(loss) on future contracts and listed equity securities, loss
on foreign exchange and gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets/prepaid lease payments. The
Group had other gains of RMB105.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019, compared to other gains of RMB119.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2018. The change is primarily
due to (i) a fair value gain on futures contracts at FVTPL and listed
equity securities decreased RMB54.7 million and RMB20.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2019, and (ii) gain on disposal
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets/prepaid
lease payments increased RMB54.3 million and RMB10.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2019..
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
eEBENmMAOT(E)

(e)

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 7.0% from
RMB727.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to
RMB778.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019, primarily
due to the increase in transportation expenses and sales volume of
the coke.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB12.5 million, or 3.4%, to approximately RMB381.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2019, from approximately RMB369.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to the
increase in research and development expenses.

Listing expenses

The Group’s listing expenses decreased by approximately RMB8.7
million, or 35.5%, to approximately RMB15.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019, from approximately RMB24.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2018, as no listing expenditure was
incurred after Listing in March 2019.

Finance costs

Finance cost primarily consist of interest expenses on bank loans,
other loans and finance expenses on discount of bills receivables.
The Group’s finance cost decreased by 22.0% from RMB596.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to RMB465.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2019. The decrease was mainly
due to the sharp decrease of bills receivables discounted.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures decreased by 19.8% from
RMB548.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to
RMB440.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2019,
representing a decrease in the shared profit of CNC Risun Energy.
The profit of CNC Risun Energy decreased due to the decrease in
the price and volume of coke production. CNC Risun Energy shut
down some outdated coke production lines in September 2019
according to the agreement with the government. The investment
plan as the partial indirect compensation from the government is
still in progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, the profit before income tax
decreased by approximately RMB981.0 million, or 36.9%, to
approximately RMB1,679.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2019 from approximately RMB2,660.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018.

Income tax expense

The Group incurred income tax expense of approximately
RMB305.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 and
approximately RMB533.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2018 respectively at effective tax rates of 18.2% and 20.0%.
The decrease in income tax expense is due to a decrease in profit
before taxation. The effective tax rates decreased primarily because
the land appreciation tax got tax exemption from the local tax
authority during the year ended December 31, 2019, which accrued
arising from a land transferred within the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2018.

Profit for the year

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group recorded a
net profit of approximately RMB1,373.7 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 35.4% as compared to the net profit of
approximately RMB2,127.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2018.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
RMB6,286,289,000. The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into
consideration the availability of unutilized banking facilities of the Group
and on the assumption that approximately 60% of bank loans and other
bank facilities at December 31, 2019 will be successfully renewed upon
maturity, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its working
capital requirements and liabilities as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmLD(E)

The Group’s primary uses of cash are operating costs, capital
expenditures and repayment of debts in the PRC. To date, the Group
has funded the investments and operations principally with cash from
operations and debt financing from banks and other financial institutions.
We manage our liquidity, working capital and funding of capital
expenditures by monitoring our cash flows and predicting our cash flows.
The Group believes that the liquidity requirements will be satisfied through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating activities, bank
loans and other borrowings. Any significant decrease in the demand
for, or pricing of, the products and services, or a significant decrease in
the availability of bank loans, may adversely impact the liquidity. As at
December 31, 2019, cash and cash equivalents held by the Group were
mainly cash in the banks and on hand denominated in RMB and deposits
denominated in RMB that are readily convertible into cash, the information
of cash and cash equivalents denominated in the currency other than the
functional currency of relevant group entities is disclosed in Note 29 to
the Financial Statements.

The following table sets forth the cash flows for the periods indicated:

AEENHeFEARNPRENEENS - &
TR REBER - 25/ AEBEE
NG EBIRES U RIRITRE A& B IEE
BERERMNREREE - RMBBEERS
MERBAREREEERDES  LEE
CRABBEAATRHEES - AEEMRELE
EBMBESRE RITERREMEFE
AIARERBESR K - HEMERRBEHNE
KENER LR AR TG - kAT REBAIRTT
BRK@R D - e E R EE S EK T F
T2 o P2019F12A31H » AEBEATHHHIE
S RBEFEMEBEUARETERNRIT
RFERE - URAIBRERSRESAUA
REFTEMNTR - UEBAEBREENINGEE
BN ERTENRERASSEYNE
B 5 R 72 T 1203 55 -

TREFINPIRERRERE

As of and for the year ended December 31,

BE12ANAREBEEZALEFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AREBEHET AREBEET
Net cash generated from KEEBMERESFE
operating activities 876.7 2,247.2
Net cash used in WERESTARSF5E
investing activities (197.7) (859.5)
Net cash used in BEETBMARSFE
financing activities (378.7) (1,230.3)
Net increase in Re KRS EEYFIEM
cash and cash equivalents 300.4 157.4
Cash and cash equivalents FRORE RN EEY
at the end of the year 1,059.9 759.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Net cash generated from operating activities

For the year ended December 31, 2019, our net cash generated
from operating activities was approximately RMB876.7 million and
was less than our net cash generated from operating activities for
the year ended December 31, 2018 of approximately RMB2,247.2
million, primarily due to the decrease in profit and the decrease in
the variance of working capital such as trade and other payables
and contract liabilities, compared with the previous period.

Net cash used in investing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2019, our net cash used in
investing activities was decreased from approximately RMB859.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to approximately
RMB197.7 million primarily due to (i) an increase of RMB575.7
million on investment in property, plant and equipment, (ii) from a
net increase of RMB465.1 million to a net decrease of RMB2,507.6
million of restricted bank deposits, and (iii) RMB1.35 billion deposit
paid for equity investment.

Net cash used in financing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2019, our net cash used in
financing activities was decreased by RMB851.5 million from
approximately RMB1,230.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2018 to approximately RMB378.7 million due to (i) a decrease of
RMB823.5 million in interest-bearing borrowings net repayment, and
(i) the net proceeds from the Listing amounted RMB1.60 billion in
2019, and (iii) offset by the increase of RMB1.26 billion in dividend
paid to shareholders.

The Group expects to fund its capital expenditure commitments
principally by bank and other loans and cash generated from the
business operations.

(a)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmLD(E)

INDEBTEDNESS
(a) Borrowings

The following table sets forth the bank borrowings as of the dates

TRESIB =M AHIRRITER -

indicated:
As of December 31,

M12H31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARMEHETR AREEETT
Bank loans, secured IRITE - BIKHE 3,146.8 3,201.5
Bank loans, unsecured IRITE - EIKHT 2,981.5 1,334.5
Other loans, secured HEEK - BIEHE 1,090.3 815.7
Other loans, unsecured HEMER - &K 337.1 260.0
Discounted bills financing AR EIRRE 1,103.9 3,278.5
Total wEt 8,659.6 8,890.2

As of December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184

RMB in millions % RMB in millions %

ARBBER % ARBEERT %
Fixed rate bank and other & BR1T R E A E R

borrowings 5,302.8 1.50%~12.00% 5,861.0 1.50%-12.00%
Floating rate bank and other ¥ 84877 R HAbEFR

borrowings 3,356.8 3.51%~11.70% 3,029.2 4.35%-11.81%

Total Bt 8,659.6 8,890.2

The total borrowings decreased by approximately RMB230.6 million,
or 2.6%, to approximately RMB8,659.6 million as of December 31,
2019 from RMB8,890.2 million as of December 31, 2018, primarily
due to the decrease in discounted bills financing, partially offset by
the increase in bank and other loans.
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Most of the borrowings are denominated in RMB, the borrowings
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of

respective entities are set out below:

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB LD ()

REBEFAAREE  UASEE
KT e & AN B S HE A9 B B
HIEAR -

As of December 31,

A128318
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARMEHER AREBEETT
usD ET 1,424.7 375.9
EUR BT 117.0 117.4
Total HBET 1,541.7 493.3

Lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases

The Group had the following total future minimum lease payments
under several finance lease arrangements as of the dates indicated:

(b) HEEE REHEFE

HEMTRAS AEENEIEREN
ETHTHRRREEERIBLREN
T

As of December 31,

M12H31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARMEER AREBEET
Within one year —FR 19.9 23.6
After 1 year but within 2 years —FALERFRN 20.8 0.9
After 2 years but within 5 years MEA L ERFRN 5.4 =
Total @t 46.1 24.5

The average lease term under these finance lease arrangements is
five years, with fixed annual interest rates underlying all obligations

ranging from 9.2% t0 9.6%.

ZEREMELTHA TN FHRESF
HRRF  MERBENBEEFNXR
9.2%%9.6% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmLD(E)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments outstanding of the Group are set out
under Note 43 of the Financial Statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group maintained some of the capital denominated in foreign
currency, mainly USD and HKD. Fluctuations in exchange rate would
influence the reserve in foreign currencies to a certain extent and the
Company is exploring and discussing measures to respond to foreign
exchange risk. The analysis of the exposure to exchange rate risk is set
out in Note 41 to the Financial Statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group entered into guarantee agreements with certain commercial
banks in the PRC with respect to loan facilities granted to a joint venture
and a related party. Under these guarantee agreements, the Group
agreed to be jointly and severally liable for the borrowings incurred
by such joint venture and related party. The table below sets forth the
maximum liabilities under such guarantees as of the dates indicated.

BARESE

REBRBITENRENF BRI B HRE
Ff3E43 ©

SMNERBE R EE

REBNBEHDOUINESENES T8
BETTRABTT - EREBEINEE S HEE
E—E¥E ARREERRKRHEHN
[EREAERE - TEREZRRODTHR
B ISR MIEE4 -

HAREE

AEFBEPEETHERTUART —KAZ
CER-ZEBITNERBE T LERD
& REZFERBS  AEEREHZA
BN BT E LB RR RAER A
BfE - TREJIEBEMTRABUBREREAT
H&= B ERE -

As of December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARMEHER AREBEETT

Financial guarantees issued to a joint M—REELEZHLEE

venture and fully drawn down TRER A B A AR 980.0 830.0
980.0 830.0

As of December 31, 2018 and 2019, the outstanding balance of loans
under the loan facilities guaranteed by the Group was RMB332.6 million
and RMB335.0 million, respectively. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group were insignificant
at the date of issue of the financial guarantee and no provision is
necessary at the end of each reporting period, taking into account that the
net realizable value of the pledged assets held by the banks exceeded
the facilities and credit granted to the relevant parties. In addition, the
Directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against us
under any of these guarantees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a written resolution passed by the shareholders on
February 21, 2019 for the primary purpose of providing the people and
the parties working for the interests of the Group with an opportunity to
obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus linking their interest with
the interests of the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive to
work better for the interests of the Group. Up to December 31, 2019, no
options were granted to Directors, eligible employees and other outside
third parties under the Share Option Scheme.

FUTURE PLANS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on March 15, 2019, and the
Company issued 600,000,000 Shares on the Listing Date, and issued
additional 90,000,000 Shares on April 11, 2019 pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment option, at the Offer Price of HK$2.80 per Share.
The total issuance size and gross proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$1,932 million.

During the Reporting Period, the net proceeds from the Listing had been
applied as follows:

BRI (E)

BRERTE

RN TIH B RT 8 ([ AR MR 21 ) TYR &
MR MA2019F2 A21 BB BN EMRZERK
m EBEMRAZSEAEAEERNETIED
At RE TR E UES A D BRI IRAE -
HMLEE 2 FmEAREB MR =EE - I
M ERHER  AXNEEMNZE T T
{E - EE2019%12A318 @ HHERIEEAHE
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BB E -
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ARABIHRMDR2019F3 158 £ » AR
A RIFA L1 B BiE£17600,000,0000% A% 15+ 7
2019F4 A 11 B IR B BB RENTTEBR
e R 2.8 Ty % & € %1790,000,000
RREAIMNR (D o AREETTHAR PR 1S BB AR ZELY
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RIREHAR - RIS FUBFENE A
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Proposed use Actual use of net Unused net Estimated
of net proceeds during proceeds as at timetable
proceeds the Reporting December 31,
Period 2019
S RIE WwE BN 20195
FEER FR8EFE 12A31BMKE
2pe3 BERAR FAFERIEEE FEEARER
(HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
(B8&T) (BB#ET) (B8%T)

Debt repayments EBEE 745.6 745.6 -

Investment plans WEETE 559.2 559.2 -

Environmental RIRFTEI R A FTHR 372.8 82.2 290.6 December 2021
protection plans and 20215128
system upgrade

Working capital EBEED 186.4 152.9 33.5 December 2020

2020128
Total HaEt 1,864 1,539.9 3241
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

sEhRAEEERRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Xuegang (% Z ), aged 55, is an Executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the Board. He was
appointed as an Executive Director in November 2007. He is responsible
for the overall management and business development of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hebei Hydraulic College (Ja/dt7KF|EH £
) (now known as Hebei University of Water Resources and Electric
Engineering (A 4b7KFIE 1 Ex)) in Cangzhou, the PRC in July 1985
with a diploma in hydraulic engineering construction and obtained the
hydraulic engineer qualification issued by the Handan City Labour
Bureau (HB#3M4 #HAER) in December 1993. He completed a
master-level training course in business administration at Renmin
University of China (B AR AXZ) in Beijing, the PRC in March 2000 and
was a supervisor of a master’'s degree program at Hebei University of
Economics and Business (JAIdEA&EE A E) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in July
2002. He completed a further master level training course in business
administration at the ZhongHua Yanxiu University (FREHHEAZ) in
Beijing, the PRC in September 2003. In November 2003, he obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (Z2M0RPIBIER AFARE) in Macau. He obtained the
senior engineer qualification awarded by the Hebei Provincial Department
of Human Resources and Social Security (AitE A HE R ET SRE
E2) in December 2012. In January 2017, Mr. Yang obtained an executive
master’s degree in business administration from Hebei University of
Technology (3L TZK22) in Tianjin, the PRC.

Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yang was employed at the
Dongwushi Reservoir Management Center (BRET/KEEIEE), a public
body directly subordinated to the Handan City Hydraulics Bureau (HBEB7K
# /), on a full-time basis for approximately 10 years from August 1985,
and became a deputy director of the Dongwushi Reservoir Management
Center from January 1988. He then joined the Group as general manager
as a result of his entrepreneurial efforts since the establishment of Xingtai
Risun Coking Limited in May 1995 and became chairman since May
1996.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Over the years, Mr. Yang has taken up leadership roles in a number of
industry associations, including those relating to the coking industry.
He has been the vice president of CCIA since October 2005, and the
president of HBCCIA since January 2006. In February 2008, Mr. Yang
was elected and had served as a deputy to the 11th NPC and in February
2013, he was elected as a deputy to the 12th NPC.

Mr. ZHANG Yingwei (3R3{&), aged 48, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director in
July 2009. He is responsible for the overall management of the Tangshan
Production Base and the Cangzhou Production Base.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in coal chemistry from
Tangshan Institute of Technology (J& LU TR &iTZF) (now known as
North China University of Science and Technology ((8Jt¥ T K)) in
Tangshan, the PRC in June 1993. He completed a master-level training
program in business administration at Hebei University of Economics and
Business (AdLALE K E2) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in November 2004. He
also obtained a master’'s degree in metallurgical engineering at Hebei
Polytechnic University (A 332 T X) (now known as North China University
of Science and Technology (Z4E32 T K £2)) in Tangshan, the PRC in April
2007. In December 2012, he obtained the senior engineer qualification
from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province (i1t % B
M EEG/ NMERAE).

Mr. Zhang has over 26 years of experience in iron and steel industry
and coal chemical industry. Mr. Zhang worked for Xingtai Metallurgical
Machinery and Mill Roll Joint Stock Corporation (F8& /& & #é & 52 A%
HBARAF]) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery & Mill Roll Co.,
Ltd. (FP Sl E B &M ELERH R A 7)), whose principal business is the
manufacturing of metallurgical machinery and parts for the production of
metallurgical rolls and equipment, from September 1993. He then joined
the Group in February 1996. He has been serving as a vice president of
the Coking Chemistry Sub-committee of the National Technical Committee
on Coal Chemical Industry of Standardization Administration of China
(ZEEE(L TEEEMTZ B €) since May 2016, an expert on the expert
panel of the CCIA since January 2018 and an expert of both the HBCCIA
and the Department of Industry and Information Technology of Hebei
Province since April 2018.

Mr. HAN Qinliang (5£)%2), aged 46, is an Executive Director and a vice
president of the Group. Mr. Han was appointed as an Executive Director
in May 2011. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
financial, accounting and information systems of the Group.
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Mr. Han obtained a diploma in industrial economy administration from
Hebei College of Mechanical Engineering (W1t#E£F3) in Xingtai, the
PRC in June 1993 (as a result of a merger, Hebei College of Mechanical
Engineering is now part of Hebei University of Science and Technology
(ATHEREHE K Z)). In December 2001, he obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Hebei University of Economics and Business (a1t
#LE K& in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2001, he became a member
of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (% B £ & 56017
&) in the PRC. In December 2003, he obtained the senior accountant
qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province

(Uit E BN R ALY AR E).

Mr. Han joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Han has approximately 26
years of experience in steel and coal chemical industry. From September
1993 to April 2004, he was the deputy head of the finance department
cost division in Xingtai Machinery and Mill Roll (Group) Corporation (J/B&
et EL BT BB R 2 A]) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery & Mill
Roll Co., Ltd. (8B & #imELEE AR A 7). In March 2004, Mr. Han
joined Xingtai Risun Trading as a general manager assistant.

Mr. WANG Fengshan (£ & LL), aged 61, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the procurement and
sales management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a diploma in statistics from Hebei University (11t X £2)
in Baoding, the PRC in June 1989.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Wang has approximately
31 years of experience in procurement and sales management. From
August 1983 to September 1996, he was the sales manager in Hebei
Hongxing Automobile Factory Co., Ltd. (AiL4IE/RBEEERR A F]), a
company principally engaged in the automobile and automobile parts
manufacturing business, and from October 1996 to October 1998, he was
the general manager of Bear Asia Furniture Co., Ltd. (EZRRERMNBR A
Al), a company principally engaged in the metal furniture and furnishings
manufacturing business. From February 1999 to January 2004, he was a
general manager of Xingtai Zhongxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ff &
M ARAR]), a company principally engaged in the pharmaceutical
business. In March 2004, Mr. Wang joined the human resources
department of Xingtai Risun Trading and oversaw the human resources
and administrative management in CNC Risun Energy from November
2004 to August 2009. He has been overseeing the Group’s procurement
and sales management since August 2009. Mr. Wang has been a vice
president of the HBCCIA since December 2016 and an expert on the
expert panel of the CCIA since January 2018.
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Mr. WANG Nianping (£ ), aged 57, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the legal and risk
management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from the Institute of
Hubei Finance (#1LEF4€E0E) (now known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (& BUEARE)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July
1984. He obtained a post-graduate degree in international trade and
a juris doctor degree from the University of International Business and
Economics (¥ 9MEEE $KE) in Beijing, the PRC in June 1994 and
December 2007, respectively. He was admitted as a qualified lawyer in
the PRC in June 1987 and obtained the senior economist qualification
issued by the Sinopec Group in November 2004.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2011 and prior to joining the
Group, he had over 10 years of extensive experience in the petrochemical
industry. He was recognized as a third level lawyer in April 1990 by the
China National Petroleum Corporation (4 Bl/A#KARLE A F]) where he
worked. In January 1996, Mr. Wang joined China Petroleum Engineering
Construction Corporation, a company whose principal business is building
oil and gas infrastructures and undertook various positions including
contracts administrator, senior officer of the debt recovery department
and deputy manager of the projects department. In May 2001, he joined
Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation
(“SIPC”), a company whose principal business is in overseas oil and
gas investment and operations, as the deputy manager of the legal
department. From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as the
vice president of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Kazakhstan and as the deputy
general manager of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Syria from January 2009 to
October 2010.

Mr. YANG Lu (#55§), aged 29, is an Executive Director and the general
manager of Beijing Risun Hongye. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the import, export and domestic trading business of the
Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yang Lu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
from the Washington University in St. Louis, the United States in May
2012. He obtained the fund management qualification from the Asset
Management Association of China in June 2015.
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Mr. Yang Lu joined the Group in November 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a junior consultant at Roland Berger Management
Consultants (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (BB EROEEHE H§BERAT), a
global strategy consulting firm, from September 2012 to September 2013,
and from October 2013 to November 2014, he worked in the marketing
department of Beijing Automic. Mr. Yang Lu has been the chairman’s
assistant of Hong Kong Risun since November 2013 and worked in the
market research department as deputy manager of Beijing Risun Hongye
from December 2014 to May 2016. He then worked in Beijing Risun Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (JtREBESEEBRAF]), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Xuyang Holding, between June 2016 and September 2018,
first as deputy general manager and subsequently as general manager.
In September 2018, he rejoined Beijing Risun Hongye as the general
manager.

Mr. Yang Lu is the son of Mr. Yang.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KANG Woon (EE), aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive
Director and also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director between November
2011 to September 2015 and reappointed in September 2018.

Mr. Kang obtained a doctorate of jurisprudence from the University of
Texas in Austin, Texas, the United States in May 1990. He has been
an attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of the State of New York since
March 1991, and a member of the Law Society of England and Wales
since May 1998.

Mr. Kang served as a supervisor from May 2004 to June 2007 and was
an independent non-executive director of Anhui Conch Cement Company
Limited (ZHUBZ/KEMH BRAR]), a company principally engaged in
cement products manufacturing dually listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock codes: 914 and
600585, respectively), between October 1997 and May 2004 as well
as between June 2007 and May 2013. Mr. Kang was an independent
non-executive director of China Yurun Food Group Limited (FEIRSEE
mEEARAF]), a company whose principal business is manufacturing
meat products and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1068), from April 2005 to January 2010.

Mr. YU Kwok Kuen Harry (REI#), aged 50, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in September
2018.
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Mr. Yu obtained a diploma in accountancy from the Morrison Hill
Technical Institute and a master’'s degree awarded by the Manchester
Business School. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a registered auditor in Macau and a fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Yu joined KPMG China in October 1991 and was a partner of KPMG
from July 2002 to June 2011. He served Golden Meditech Holdings
Limited, an integrated-healthcare enterprise in the PRC and a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 801) as chief
operating officer from August 2011 to June 2016.

Mr. WANG Yinping (E£3|%), aged 59, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Renmin University
of China (FE ARKXE) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1985 and a master’s
degree in business administration from the China Europe International
Business School (FREXEIBR T EfT) in Shanghai, the PRC in November
2004.

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate management. He joined
China National Chemical Import & Export Corporation (Bt T#H 0O
#/2 7)) (now known as Sinochem Group Co., Lid. (FEF{tEBMAER A
Al)) (“Sinochem”), a conglomerate offering exploration and production
of oil and gas, energy, agriculture, chemical, real estate and financial
services, in March 1988 and held various senior positions between March
1988 and March 2014 in Sinochem and its subsidiaries (“Sinochem
Group”), including the deputy general manager of the Hainan branch of
Sinochem, the general manager of the Pudong branch of Sinochem, the
deputy general manager of China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust
Company Limited (FF Bl 5MEEE S (=55 B R A R]) a company principally
engaged in microfinance, industrial finance, capital market and wealth
management, the general manager of the human resource department
of Sinochem Group, the vice president of Sinochem Group, the general
manager of Sinochem International Trading Company Limited (now
known as Sinochem International Corporation (F{bBIFXIZ BRI B R
A 7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600500) and principally engaged in the chemical and rubber business,
the chairman of the China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Company
Limited and the chairman of the Sinochem Lantian Co., Ltd. (f{L&X
E£EERAF]), a company principally engaged in research, production
and sale of fluorine chemicals. Mr. Wang also served as chairman of the
board of Zhejiang Int'l Group Co., Ltd. (i THREEERMHER AR, a
company that produces and sells pharmaceutical and Chinese medicine
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health products in China and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000411) from December 2010 to March 2014. From January
2015 to December 2016, Mr. Wang was an executive director of China
Pioneer Pharma Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1345) and a comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service provider dedicated to
imported pharmaceutical products and medical devices in the PRC, and
was re-designated and has been serving as a non-executive director
since December 2016. He was a director of Western Potash Corp.,
a company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (stock code: WPX)
principally engaged in building a potash solution mine in Canada, from
September 2015 to September 2016, and was re-appointed and has
been serving as a director since April 2017. Mr. Wang has been an
independent non-executive director of Yida China Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3639) and an operator of business parks in the PRC since December
2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIA Yunshan (Z3&l), aged 52, has been a vice president of the
Group since December 2004. He is primarily responsible for the financing
and cash management of the Group. In July 1990, he completed a
program in financial accounting from Hebei Materials Institute (jiit4#7& £
#2) (now known as Hebei Economy Management School (il b 4% & 1R 2
1)) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2003, he completed a master-level
training program in business administration at Hebei University of

Economics and Business (JAI1LAS & K E2) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC.

Mr. Jia has approximately 24 years of experience in financing and
cash management. Mr. Jia has been employed by the Group since
the establishment of Xingtai Risun Trading in May 1995. He has held
various management positions in the Group, including financial manager
and deputy general manager of Xingtai Risun Trading from May 1995
to November 2004. He has been a director of Beijing Automic since
September 2012.

Mr. LI Qinghua (ZE %), aged 56, has been a vice president of the Group
since June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall management
of the Xingtai Production Base, Dingzhou Production Base and Huhhot
Production Base. He graduated from the Anhui Economic Management
Cadre Institute (ZHAEEE R HEERT) in Hefei, the PRC in July 1987 with
a diploma in industrial enterprise management and obtained a master’s
degree in economics from the Party School of the Central Committee of
the Communist Party of China (FF /R &) in Beijing, the PRC in July
2001. He obtained a senior economist qualification from the Title Reform
Leading Group Office of Hebei Province (Jil1t& BifE ik E48E/ MAMA E)
in November 1999.
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Mr. Li joined the Group in November 2004 as a deputy general manager
of Xingtai Risun Trading. He has approximately 25 years of corporate
management experience. Prior to joining the Group, he undertook several
positions at Hebei Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (]
I RALREBERIEAR A A, an automobile manufacturer, from July 1983
to October 2004, including director of the special cars factory from May
1993 to June 1998, deputy director and director of the general factory
from June 1998 to September 2002 and deputy general manager of
Hebei Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. from September
2002 to October 2004.

Mr. YUAN Xixian (387 3), aged 57, has been a vice president of the
Group since August 2017. He is primarily responsible for management
of the Group’s strategic investments, production and engineering. He
graduated from the Hebei Institute of Mining and Metallurgy (aldbiEAE
Ft) (now known as the North China University of Science and Technology
(ZEJLIE T K£)) in Tangshan, the PRC in July 1983. He obtained a senior
engineer qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of
Hebei Province in December 2004.

Mr. Yuan has approximately 36 years of experience in the steel and coke
industry. He joined the Group in May 2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuan joined Xingtai Iron & Steel Corp., Ltd. (& MEEREERA), a
high-end, specialized, wire manufacturer in July 1983 and was a deputy
general manager, general manager and chairman from June 1998 to
October 2016.

Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph (fA5i#), aged 39, is the company secretary
of the Company. He is responsible for the management of corporate
governance and company secretarial matters, participation in the making
of material business decisions and development of the business strategy.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2002. He has been a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 2018.

Mr. Ho has approximately 16 years of auditing, financial and company
secretarial experience. He joined the Group in September 2017. Prior to
joining the Group, he was an audit manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2002 to November 2009. He also served as the financial
controller and company secretary of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited, a company principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
tobacco machinery products in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3628), from June 2010 to August 2017.
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Report of the Board of Directors
ESEWmE

The Board hereby presents their report together with the Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 to the Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND PROSPECTS

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Overview” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review” in this annual
report for details.

LAWS, REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Most of the business of the Company (including the production and sale
of coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals and the trading of
coal, coke and refined chemical products) shall be in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and industry standards in the PRC and is
subject to extensive regulation by the PRC government. The Company’s
aforementioned business and relevant activities are governed by the
regulations in relation to production, sale, operation, transportation,
export, energy efficiency and environmental protection. In addition, all
operations of the Company in the PRC shall be in compliance with the
laws and regulations on foreign investment, taxation and safety.

Overall compliance

As of December 31, 2019, save as disclosed above, there were no
material pending or threatened litigation matters or other proceedings
involving the Group, and the Group was not involved in any litigation or
other proceedings that we believe would materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Directors have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the Group had
complied with the applicable laws and regulations in all material respects,
did not have any incidents of material non-compliance, and had obtained
all relevant permits, approval documents, qualifications, authorizations
and approvals that are material to our business operations.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are provided in Note 47 to the
Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

We recruit new employees based on specific job requirements, our
resources and needs from time to time. We provide technical as well as
operational training for our employees, and we have tailored specific
courses for our management personnel in order to build a competent
team.

As of December 31, 2019, we had 3,836 full-time employees(2018: 3,574).
Most of our senior management members and employees are based in
Beijing and Hebei province.

We enter into a standard employment contract with each of our full-time
employees. Remuneration for our employees includes basic wages,
variable wages, bonuses and other benefits. For the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019 our staff costs totalled RMB424.0 million
and RMB458.4 million, respectively.

The Company’s remuneration policy is set out by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are set by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to, among others, salaries
paid by comparable companies as well as time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions of the Group.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and
there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, as compensation for loss of
office.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate and reward
its Directors and eligible employees. For further details, please refer to the
section headed “Report of the Board of Directors — Share Option Scheme”
of this report.

During the Reporting Period, we had not experienced any interruptions
to our operations caused by major labor disputes and there were no
complaints or claims from our employees which had a material adverse
effect on our business. Our Directors believe that we have a good
relationship with our employees. During the Reporting Period, the Group
had no major labor disputes which might have significant impact of the
normal business and operation of the Group.
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EEgWma(E)

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

We sell our coke primarily to customers in the iron and steel industry
in the PRC, and export a portion to overseas customers. We sell our
refined chemicals primarily to manufacturers and traders in the chemical
industry in the PRC, and export a small portion to overseas customers.
Our end customers may purchase directly from us or purchase through
their affiliated trading arms. Our customers for trading business are
primarily companies in the iron and steel, non-ferrous, coking and
chemical industries. During the Reporting Period, we did not adopt any
distributorship business model in selling our products.

We maintain long-term cooperative relationships with our major
customers. Some of them have maintained business relationships with
us for more than five years, of which the customer with the longest
relationship has maintained a business relationship with us for 15 years.
Furthermore, we have entered into long-term framework agreements with
some of our customers. Our products supplied under such long-term
framework agreements mainly include coke, benzene, caprolactam and
methanol.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue attributable to our top five
largest customers was approximately RMB3,641.5 million, accounting
for approximately 19.3% of the total revenue of the Group. The revenue
attributable to our single largest customer was approximately RMB1,249.2
million, accounting for approximately 6.6% of our total revenue. Our
top five customers during the Reporting Period were independent third
parties, and none of our Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(who, to the knowledge of our Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2019) had any interest in
any of our top five largest customers during the Reporting Period.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The principal raw material used for our coke and coking chemical
production is coking coal. We mainly source our coking coal from
external suppliers. The major types of coking coal we purchased included
hard coking coal, fat coal, gas coal, 1/3 coking coal and lean coal.
We purchased a large proportion of our coking coal from suppliers in
Shanxi province and Hebei province. If overseas coking coal is more
competitively priced than domestic coking coal, we will source coking
coal from other countries such as Mongolia and Australia.

For the production of our refined chemicals, the principal raw materials
are coking chemicals, which include crude benzene, coal tar and coke
oven gas. Coking chemicals are by-products in the coking process. We
mainly source such raw materials externally from our suppliers, but also
source a portion of such raw materials by utilizing by-products from the
coke production facilities at our Dingzhou Production Base and from CNC
Risun Energy at our Xingtai Production Base.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

We generally enter into annual procurement arrangements with key
suppliers. These supply arrangements specify the indicative quantities
of raw materials that we plan to purchase in the relevant period and are
subject to separate purchase orders to confirm delivery. Our suppliers
typically granted us credit terms of 30 to 90 days. Pursuant to these
arrangements, our procurement department purchases the required raw
materials from suppliers in accordance with production plans prepared
by our production department. Generally, purchase prices are based
on prevailing market prices at the time of delivery of the raw materials.
We make and implement our raw material procurement plans in line
with our production plans which are primarily based on periodical
review of customers’ orders in order to reduce our exposure to market
price fluctuations of raw materials. The internal market analysis reports
generated by our marketing department also provide us with a basis for
determining procurement prices.

We have a broad base of suppliers and do not depend on any single
supplier. For instance, we procured coking coals from over 100 suppliers
in the PRC and overseas during the Reporting Period. A broad base of
suppliers enables us to procure a wide range of quality raw materials
at competitive prices. Though we did not enter into any long-term
agreements with our suppliers of raw materials, we maintained long-term
cooperative relationships with our key suppliers. Some of them have
maintained business relationships with us for more than five years.

Our subsidiaries engaged in the production business have passed the
ISO 9001:2008/ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System standard
which set out detailed supplier selection and assessment procedures.
The selection and assessment of our suppliers take into account, among
others:

° the quality and specifications of the raw materials they offer;
° the scale and locations of their operations; and

° their track records and previous transaction terms with us.

During the Reporting Period, our purchases from top five suppliers
were approximately RMB2,977.6 million, accounting for approximately
18.3% of our cost of sales and services. Our purchases from our single
largest supplier were approximately RMB980.0 million, accounting for
approximately 6.0% of our cost of sales. Except for CNC Risun Energy
disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial Statements, our top five largest
suppliers are independent third parties, and none of Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (to the knowledge of Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2019)
had any interest in any of our top five largest raw material and equipment
suppliers during the Reporting Period.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

ESEHE(E)

During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any material
shortages or delays in the supply of our raw materials, and we do not
foresee any material shortages or delays in our procurement of raw
materials in the future. We closely monitor the inventory levels of our raw
materials, and adjust our procurement volumes accordingly in anticipation
of periods in which we may encounter raw material supply shortages or
product demand increases.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2019 are stated on page 138 of the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. The
financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries as at December
31, 2019 are stated on page 140 of the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The consolidated cash flows of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2019 are stated on page
142 of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

The discussion and analysis on the Group’s business performance and
financial position for the current year are stated under “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 33 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2019, the total issued share capital of the Company
was HK$409,000,000.00 divided into 4,090,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued
3,127,281,476 shares during the Global Offering (including the
capitalization issue in connection with the Global Offering and the
subsequent issuance by exercising the over-allotment option). Save for
the Global Offering, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase,
sell or redeem any of the Company’s securities during the Reporting
Period.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group has not issued any debentures during the year ended
December 31, 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

RESERVE

The details in relation to the changes in the reserve of the Company for
the current year are stated under Note 46 to the Financial Statements.
The details in relation to the reserve available for distributing to the
shareholders are stated under Note 46 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s property, plant and equipment consist mainly of machinery
and equipment. We purchased our machinery and equipment mainly
with cash from operations and debt financing from banks and other
financial institutions. Machinery and equipment are primarily the various
types of machineries and equipment at our four production bases in
Hebei province in China, including Xingtai Production Base, Dingzhou
Production Base, Tangshan Production Base and Cangzhou Production
Base.

As of December 31, 2019, our property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB9,751.3 million, with a year-to-year growth of
3.7%. This was mainly because of the addition of RMB1,216.3 million
in property, plant and equipment partially offset by the depreciation of
RMB641.8 million.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

After obtaining the shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting
for 2018 on June 28, 2019, the Company paid a final dividend of
RMBO0.1532 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended December 31,
2018 in cash to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on July 10, 2019, and the final dividend was
fully paid on August 30, 2019.

On August 19, 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend for 2019
of RMB6.18 cents per share (tax inclusive) in cash, with a total amount
of RMB252,762,000, to its shareholders whose names appeared on the
register of member of the Company on November 7, 2019. The interim
dividend was fully paid on November 29, 2019.
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ESEHE(E)

The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend of total amount
of RMB156.2 million (dividend amount of each ordinary share is RMB3.82
cents) for the year ended December 31, 2019 to all shareholders, details
of which are set out in Note 14 to the Financial Statements. Subject to
the approval of the 2019 profit distribution plan at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be distributed on or before July 31, 2020
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of Shares of
the Company on July 10, 2020. Further announcements will be made by
the Company in due course regarding the details of the date of dividend
distribution and other specific arrangement.

The recommendation of payment and the amount of any future dividends
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board and the amount of any
dividends actually distributed to our Shareholders will depend on our
results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, payments by our
subsidiaries of cash dividends to us, our future prospects and other
factors that our Directors consider important. We expect to distribute no
less than 30% of our annual distributable earnings in every subsequent
year as dividends.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

The details in relation to the bank and other loans of the Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 are stated under Note 32 to the
Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors currently consists of nine Directors, including six
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Directors have been appointed with a term of three years, after which they
may be re-elected.

The information regarding the Company’s Directors are set out as follows:
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Relationship with
Date of Joining the  other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date ~ Group Senior Management
REMESR AR
#% R OB ABREE ZEAH MATEENES  EEENEE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 55 Executive Director, chairman of ~ Overall management and November 8, 2007 May 12, 1995 Father of Mr. Yang Lu
the Board and chief executive  Business development of the
officer Group
BERKLE 55 HTER EFRLERAM  AEENEREEREBER  2007F11A8A 1995558128 BREEMRR
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 48 Executive Director and vice Overall management of the July 24, 2009 February 5, 1996 N/A
president of the Group Tangshan Production Base and
the Cangzhou Production Base
REERE 8 HITEERASERIEH ELEERRERAMEERRS 200967247 199652458 TR
BRER
Mr. Han Qinliang 46 Executive Director and vice Management of the financial, ~ May 18, 2011 March 1, 2004 N/A
president of the Group accounting and information
systems of the Group
by 4% WITERRAKERIEH AEENET  SRRESER 2011555180 200453718 TR
BE
Mr. Wang Fengshan 61  Executive Director and vice Management of procurement  September 29, 2018 March 1, 2004 N/A
president of the Group and sales of the Group
TALEE 61  HOEERASERIRH AEEREREEER 201859529 200453718 TER
Mr. Wang Nianping 57 Executive Director and vice Legal and risk management of ~ September 29, 2018~ February 22,2011 N/A
president of the Group the Group
IFTRE 5  HOEERALERILH AEEERREAREE 201859/ 298 2011F2/228 TER
Mr. Yang Lu 29 Executive Director Management of the import, September 29, 2018 November 1,2013  Sonof Mr. Yang
export and domestic trading Xuegang
business of our Group
BREE 29 WiTER ERAEEMELORENES 20186F9A29H 2013F11A1R BERRENTT
£5
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Relationship with
Date of Joining the  other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date ~ Group Senior Management
REMESR AR
#% R OB ABREE ZEAH MATEENES  EEENEE
Mr. Kang Woon 57 Independent Non-executive Oversight of the compliance ~ September 29, 2018 November 11, N/A
Director and corporate governance 2011(1)

matters of the Group and

provision of independent advice

to the Board
RBRE 5 BUFHTES EEALENARRAEERE 201859A20R UENANAEN)  TER

B IAESEREBUER
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen 50  Independent Non-executive Same as above September 29, 2018 September 29, 2018 N/A
Harry Director
RERLE 50 BUFHTEZR Ak 201859429 201859429 TR
Mr. Wang Yinping 59 Independent Non-executive Same as above September 29, 2018 September 29, 2018 N/A
Director

TalvisE 5  BUFHTEZR At 2018597298 201859 429H TR
Note: Bz -

(1) Mr. Kang Woon was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director from November 2011 to September 2015. He was re-appointed

as an Independent Non-executive Director in September 2018.

The information regarding the Company’s senior management are set out

(1) FBXREBE2011FE11AE2015F9A KR
ERBEIUIEMITES - WNR2018F9AH
REZERBIIFRNITES -

BREARBSRERENEREINMT

as follows:
Relationship with
Date of Joining the  other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date ~ Group Senior Management
BEMESR SR
#E R OB AEREE ZERH MAREEHES  EEENBE
Mr. Jia Yunshan 52 Vice president of the Group Financing and cash December 6,2004 ~ May 12, 1995 N/A
management of the Group
E@l%E 52 FEEREH AEENRERRLER 20045127168 1995557128 TR
Mr. Li Qinghua 56 Vice president of the Group Overall management of the June 8, 2015 November 1,2004  N/A
Xingtai Production Base,
Dingzhou Production Base and
Huhhot Production Base
FEERS 5% AEEEEH MatERREMEEER ¥ 201556A8H 2004F11A1A TER

MERERNREEE
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Relationship with
Date of Joining the  other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date ~ Group Senior Management
BEMESR SR
#E R Bf REREE ZERH MAREEHES  EEENEE
Mr. Yuan Xixian 57 Vice president of the Group Management of the Group’s August 1, 2017 May 8, 2017 N/A
strategic investments,
production and engineering
BERRE 5 REEEEH ERASENRIRE  £ER 2017F8A1H 20175788 NER
TR
Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph 39 Company secretary Management of corporate September 29, 2018 September 20, 2017 N/A

governance and company
secretarial matters, participation
in the making of material
business decisions and
development of the business
strategy
ERATABANAANESE
SEEREHAKRATE
R

MAFLE 9 RERE

201869 29H

201769A208 TER

The Company has received the confirmation of the independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is of the opinion that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.

Changes to the information of Directors

According to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the Reporting
Period, there is no change made to the information disclosed by Directors
pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that exceeds three years
or may not be terminated by the employer within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and five
highest paid individuals are stated under Note 12 to the Financial
Statements. The range of remuneration of the Directors and senior
management are as follows:

EEREREERNFHMH

ARRIEZFRABERFALTHINFITHR
RPEHMERME12 - EERSRERENF
EHEsELAT -

Range of Remuneration (HK$)

Mg E (B T)

Number of Directors and
Senior Management
EEREAREEEBAY

0-1,000,000

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,500,001-2,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
5,000,001-5,500,000

- O » O O

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction”,
none of the Directors (and their connected entities) is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance entered into by the Company or the Controlling
Shareholders or any of their respective subsidiaries at any time during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors nor their associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any competing interests in such
business that is in direct or indirect competition with any of the Group’s
business.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as of December 31, 2019, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

s=gRs(E)
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Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
EARDBEBITRAE

EEpnE B EmtE RBEE BENHANEIL

Mr. Yang™ Interest in controlled corporation 3,116,074,928(L) 76.19%

HRED R EE RS 3,116,074,928(L) 76.19%

(L) denotes long positions (L) T E

Note: B

(1) Texson is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Yang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Texson. In addition, Texson holds
27,469.38308 class A non-redeemable participating shares in First
Milestone and as such, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
First Milestone.

(1) HZnHZEBLEZEHRE B BE
AHEBRARTRRIFTAENRS %A E
o UM 0 TR HZEAFirst Milestone
27,469.38308RAXE AT EE B 2 B (7 -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors of the Company, as of December 31,
2019, the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had interest and short positions in the Shares, or
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which had already been notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange:

FERRRKR GO B RES

AR BESAA - M2019F12A31H * T~
WAL (EEXARAEZSERINRAR
AR SARBR GO+ - A RIEE S L
EEBIEXVERE2 R EID EBAEIE AR EIH
B AR - HIRBEFS RS KRHIFE336
RELSRZIEMEECMOER AR -
N EAMEARRD T RE BT ER RA

A
Ao

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
ERAFERIRA
RR%R 5/ BEiE Rit#A AENEREIN
First Milestone SPC on behalf of and for the account of First ~ Beneficial owner 849,408,259(L) 20.76%
Milestone | SP (‘First Milestong”)
First Milestone SPC(f % R BFirst Miestone | SPITS) ([First ~ BZEBA 849,408,259(L) 20.76%
Miestone] )2
Texson Beneficial owner 2,266,666,669(L) 55.42%
3l ERAAA 2,266,666,669(L) 55.40%
Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.76%
RELEER 849,408 259(L) 20.76%
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd % Interest in controlled corporation 857,816,269(L) 20.97%
HAEEAEEERNERAT RtERR 857,816.259(L) 20.97%
Sino-Rack Investment Management Company Limited? Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.76%
ERRAEEARRAC RtERR 849,408.259(L) 20.76%
Cinda Sino-Rock Investment Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.76%
Cinda Sino-Rock Investment Limited SRR 849,408,259(L) 20.76%
Sinostone Capital Management (Overseas) Company Limited®  Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.76%
[FREAER(ENERAR REEER 849,408.259(L) 20.76%
(L) denotes long positions (L) T E
Notes: Hiat -

(1)  Texson holds 27,469.38308 class A non-redeemable participating
shares in First Milestone and as such, is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by First Milestone.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

(2) Sinostone Capital Management (Overseas) Company Limited holds
100% management shares in First Milestone. Sinostone Capital
Management (Overseas) Company Limited is wholly-owned by Cinda
Sino-Rock Investment Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by
Sino-Rock Investment Management Company Limited. China Cinda
(HK) Holdings Company Limited indirectly holds 48.28% interests
in Sino-Rock Investment Management Company Limited, and is
wholly-owned by China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Accordingly,
each of Sinostone Capital Management (Overseas) Company Limited,
Cinda Sino-Rock Investment Limited, Sino-Rock Investment Management
Company Limited, China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited and
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by First Milestone.

(8)  China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited is wholly-owned by China
Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Accordingly, China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2019, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein, or which had already been
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On February 21, 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), the shareholders adopted
the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the
Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
Participants (as defined in the following paragraph) to contribute to the
Company and motivate them to higher levels of performance, and to
enable the Company to recruit high caliber employees and attract or
retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe
for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in the
Share Option Scheme (“Options”) to any employee, executive director or
non-executive director (including independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group (the “Participants”).
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MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Maximum
Number of Shares”) and any other Share Option Scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Global Offering, however, that,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules:

(i)  the Company may, at any time as the Board may think fit, seek
approval from our Shareholders to increase the Maximum Number
of Shares, up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue at the
date of approval by our Shareholders in general meeting. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
scheme of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
or any other scheme of the Company) shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the new Maximum Number of Shares. The
Company will send a circular containing the details and information
required under the Listing Rules to the Shareholders;

(i) the Company may seek separate approval from the Shareholders in
general meeting to permit the granting of Options which will result
in the number of Shares in respect of all Options granted exceeding
the then Maximum Number of Shares, provided that the Options
exceeding the then Maximum Number of Shares are granted
only to Participants specifically identified by the Company before
Shareholders’ approval is sought. The Company will send a circular
containing the details and information required under the Listing
Rules to the Shareholders;

(iii)  the total maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other options granted and
yet to be exercised under another scheme of the Company will not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company if this will result in such limit
being exceeded.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of the date of grant.
Any further grant of Options in excess of the 1% limit will be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. The Company will send a
circular to the Shareholders disclosing the identity of the Participant,
the number and terms of Options to be granted to the Participant, and
containing the details and information required under the Listing Rules.
The number and terms (including the subscription price) of Options to
be granted to the Participant must be fixed before the approval of the
Shareholders and the date of the Board meeting proposing the grant will
be taken as the offer date for the purpose of calculating the subscription
price of those Options.

GRANTING OPTIONS TO CONNECTED PERSONS

Where any offer of the grant of an Option is proposed to be made to
a director (other than an independent non-executive director), chief
executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates, the offer must be
approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding any
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of an Option).

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted
(including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and (ii) having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of Options
will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting at which all connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting in favor at such general meeting
and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options will be taken as a poll.

PERFORMANCE TARGET AND CONDITIONS FOR
VESTING

No performance targets are to be achieved before an Option can be
exercised.
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SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of an Option shall be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to a Participant, which shall be at least
the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant offer
date in respect of such Option;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the relevant offer date in
respect of such Options or where the Company has been listed for
less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the
closing price; or

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.
LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date, i.e. February 20, 2029, after which period no further
Options will be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any Options granted before that. Options granted before
that but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

OPTION GRANTED

No option has been granted under the Scheme during the Reporting
Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any contracts
in respect of the management and administration of all or any significant
portion of the business (except for such service contracts entered into
with the Group’s Directors and all employees) and there existed no such
contracts in respect of the management and administration of all or any
significant portion of the business (except for such service contracts
entered into with the Group’s Directors and all employees).
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into some transactions with connected persons of the
Company. In accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, such
transactions have constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

PROJECT SERVICES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

The Company entered into a project services framework agreement on
February 22, 2019 (the “Project Services Framework Agreement”) with
Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang Group will provide project
design, construction management and general contracting services to the
Group in relation to our various initiatives to upgrade our energy saving
and environmental protection capabilities and improve the efficiency
and quality of our existing large-scale production facilities in light of the
adoption by the relevant PRC government authorities of more stringent
energy saving and environmental protection requirements. Relevant
members of Xuyang Group may enter into separate contracts with the
Group to set out specific terms and conditions of the relevant services
in accordance with the principles provided in the Project Services
Framework Agreement. The initial term of the Project Services Framework
Agreement and any separate contracts entered into under it will expire
on December 31, 2021 and such term can be renewed subject to mutual
written consent of the Company and Xuyang Holding and approval in
accordance with applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules. The
Group is free to contract with other independent third parties for the
relevant services if Xuyang Group is unable to provide such services or
the terms that Xuyang Group offers become less favorable to the Group
than those offered by other independent third parties.

Xuyang Holding is a company wholly-owned by our Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Yang and his spouse. Pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1),
Mr. Yang, an Executive Director and our Controlling Shareholder, is a
connected person of the Company, and thus, Xuyang Holding is an
associate of Mr. Yang and a connected person of the Company.

While the Group could procure independent third parties to provide
such services, the Group considers that the Project Services Framework
Agreement is beneficial to the Group as:

(i)  the project design and construction management of various
chemical production facilities requires certain technical expertise
and experience in the design and construction management of
coal, coking and refined chemicals systems and facilities which
Xuyang Group can provide;
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(i) Xuyang Group has extensive knowledge of our existing production
facilities and our technical and operational requirements, and may
thus be more efficient in implementing the projects; and

(i) the terms and prices offered by Xuyang Group may be more
favorable than what we may obtain from independent third parties.

The Group conducts a public tender process for each project for which
we require project design, construction management and general
contracting services. Interested bidders would be selected on the bases
of the prices proposed, the technical specifications achievable, the
business model and background of the bidders, payment terms proposed
and the estimated delivery dates, and the bidder offering the best overall
terms would be awarded the project. As such, the fees for the services
provided by Xuyang Group under the Project Services Framework
Agreement would be in line with the prices proposed by Xuyang Group in
its submitted bids, and the Group would compare such bids with the bids
submitted by other independent third parties.

The amounts of fees charged by Xuyang Group with respect to the project
services for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB200.1 million
(tax-exclusive).

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) for the Project Services Framework Agreement is less than 5%, the
transactions under the Project Services Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company which are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION BY THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions have been conducted:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions, on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

CONFIRMATION BY THE AUDITOR

The auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, have issued a
letter to the Board, confirming that for the year ended December 31, 2019,
in respect of the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the transactions have not been approved by the Board of Directors;

2. the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

3 the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements; and

4 the amount of each of the transactions has exceeded its annual cap
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Note 39 to the Financial Statements discloses the related party
transactions of the Company in accordance with IFRS. The transactions
disclosed therein between the Company and the following parties
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules: Mr. Yang
Xuegang, Ms. Lu Xiaomei, Texson and the entities controlled by Mr. Yang
Xuegang. During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On February 20, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders have entered into
a Deed of Non-competition, pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders agreed that, except for the supply of coal as described
above, (i) he or she or it will not engage in, participate in or assist others
to engage or participate in any business that competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with our business within the PRC, Hong
Kong or any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates,
and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to engage in any
business that competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business (the “Competing Businesses”) in the PRC, Hong Kong or
any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates; and
(i) he or she or it will inform us of any new business opportunities of the
Competing Businesses, and use his or her or its best efforts to procure
such opportunities be made available to us.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

ESEHE(E)

Each of the Controlling Shareholders have also undertaken in the Deed of
Non-competition that during the term of such agreement, he or she or it
will not, and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to:

° directly or indirectly engage in or participate in, or assist others
to engage in or participate in, any Competing Businesses in
any form (including but not limited to investments, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures, cooperation agreements, partnerships,
contractual arrangements or purchases of shares of listed or private
companies) within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates;

° assist any entity other than the Group to engage in any Competing
Businesses within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates; or

° engage in any Competing Businesses (directly or indirectly) in any
manner.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for examining, reviewing, considering and determining whether to adopt
and accept the new business opportunities referred to the Company by
the Controlling Shareholders.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed that they complied with the
Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting Period. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have examined and reviewed the
implementation of the Deed of Non-competition and have confirmed that,
during the Reporting Period, the Controlling Shareholders fully complied
with the deed and there had no violation of the deed.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the Group are set
out under Note 38 to the Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Please refer to “Corporate Governance Report — Compliance of the Code”
in this annual report for details.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

PUBLIC FLOAT

When it applied for the listing of its Shares, the Company applied to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has
granted the Company a waiver that the minimum public float requirement
under Rule 8.08(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules be reduced and the
minimum percentage of the Shares from time to time held by the public to
be the higher of (i) 22.1%, the percentage of Shares to be held by the
public immediately after the completion of the global offering (assuming
the over-allotment option is not exercised); and (ii) such percentage of
Shares to be held by the public after the exercise of the over-allotment
option.

Based on the Company’s publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, as of the Latest Practicable Date, the number of
Shares in public hands represents approximately 23.8% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company (including but not limited to) had purchased and maintained
a group liability insurance for the Directors of the Company and its
associated companies (as defined for such term under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Financial
Statements as for the year ended December 31, 2019 prepared in
accordance with IFRS.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
=EFgHE(E)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants is appointed as
the auditor for the Financial Statements as for the year ended December
31, 2019 prepared in accordance with IFRS. Such Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS as stated herein this annual report
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants and a standard unqualified audit report has been issued.

Since the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2019, there was no
change in the auditor of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

By report of

the Board of Directors
Yang Xuegang
Chairman
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Corporate Governanc

The Board of Directors of the Company has hereby submitted
its Corporate Governance Report for the Reporting Period to the
Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE

The Company focuses on maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for purposes of enhancing the value for shareholders and
protecting their interests. The Company has adopted such provisions of
the Code as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and
Corporate Governance Report provided in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Company has established and perfected the corporate
governance structure in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Code and has set up a series of corporate governance system. During
the Reporting Period, the Company has been observing all mandatory
provisions of the code as stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code except the provisions of A.2.1 (please refer to below for detailed
explanation).

The Board of Directors will continue to examine and review, from time
to time, the Company’s corporate governance practices and operation
in order to meet the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules and to
protect the shareholders’ interests.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED BY
DIRECTORS AND THE RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the standard code against which the Directors
of Listed Issuers conduct securities transactions as provided in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Standard Code”), taking such Code against
which the Directors of the Company may conduct securities transactions.

Upon specific enquiry conducted by the Company, all the Directors
have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, they have been fully
observing the Standard Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
tERERWS(B)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 5
(a) Composition of Board of Directors (a)

The Board comprises nine Directors, including six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Directors have been appointed with a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation requirements under the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The Company has at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board), and among
whom, at least one Independent Non-executive Director must
possess professional qualifications or accounting knowledge
or professional knowledge related to finance management in
compliance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. Moreover, after
taking into consideration of the factors regarding the evaluation
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the written
confirmation of all Independent Non-executive Directors, the Board
of Directors believes that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent individuals.

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises the following:

B
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Name Age  Sex Position Appointment Date
] i ME R ZIEH

Mr. Yang Xuegang 55 M Executive Director, chairman of the Board and chief executive officer November 8, 2007
BEEEE s HITEE ERGIEHRITREH 2007411 A8A

Mr. Zhang Yingwei 48 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group July 24, 2009
REFEE s RITEERAEERBE 20097248

Mr. Han Qinliang 46 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group May 18, 2011
BYRE 5 RITEERAEERBE 201155 A18H

Mr. Wang Fengshan 61 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
ERLEE s RITEERAEERBH 2018594298

Mr. Wang Nianping 57 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
EFTRE s RITEERAEERBH 20186F9 4298

Mr. Yang Lu 29 M Executive Director September 29, 2018
BREE s RiTES 201849298

Mr. Kang Woon 57 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
FBELE 5 BUEHTES 20185 9H29H

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 50 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
REVERAE s BUFNITES 201859 A29H

Mr. Wang Yinping 59 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
IalFRLE 5 BAFRITES 20185 9H29H
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Corporate Governance Repor

The Directors may, at the Company’s expense, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances. The Company
will provide separate independent professional advice to Directors
upon request to assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company.

Before each Board meeting, the senior management will provide
relevant information pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to the operational and
financial performance of the Group. Where any Director requires
more information than is supplied by the senior management, each
Director has the right to separately and independently communicate
with the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries.

Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be accountable to the Shareholders
and have the duty to report to general meeting. The Board
of Directors is responsible for convening general meeting,
implementing the resolutions of general meeting, determining
the operational plan and investment proposals of the Company,
setting up the annual financial budget proposal, final accounts,
profit distribution proposal, proposal for increase or decrease of
capital and others, deciding on the establishment of the Company’s
management authority, determining the appointment or dismissal
of chief executive officer, chief financial officer and other senior
management officers, formulating the basic management system
of the Company and determining the establishment of the special
committees of the Board of Directors.

Job Duties and Authority of the Senior Management

The senior management is responsible for the specific
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and of
the daily business management of the Company, which includes
formulating (i) the Company’s operating plan and investment
proposal, (ii) the plan of establishing the internal management
authority, (iii) the basic management system of the Company and (iv)
the Company’s specific regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

I AUEIAA S/

PEERRE (B)

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS

During the Reporting Period, the Company convened a total of ten Board RWEHA - AARlaHBRTAESE
meetings and one general meeting. The attendance of the meetings by BR-ABRRARG - EEHFEFHE %/R%WJ
the Directors is as follows: U
Board meetings EEgel

Number of Number of Times of

meetings meetings attendance by
Name Position should attend attended Attendance rate alternate
HE B BHEEBERE CHESBERK MR ERXHERE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 10 10 100% -
HEmMEE BITES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 10 10 100% -
SRIESEE WITES
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 10 10 100% -
BE L BWITES
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 10 10 100% =
FRW %S BITES
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 10 10 100% =
FFEFERE WITES
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 10 10 100% =
B KL WITES
Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non- 10 10 100% =
executive Director
RBSEE BIYIEMITES
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Independent Non- 10 10 100% -
Harry executive Director

REREEE BIYIERITES
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non- 10 10 100% =

TalFELE

executive Director

B FRITES
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rERERHE(E)
General meeting BRERE
Number of Number of Times of
meeting should meetings attendance by
Name Position attend attended Attendance rate alternate
A B BLHESBRE CHESBRRH HER ZEHERE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 1 1 100% =
HEREE WITES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 1 0 0% =
SRE(E ST A BITES
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 1 0 0% -
B AL BITES
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 1 0 0% -
FRILEE WITES
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 1 0 0% -
FEFEE WITEF
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 1 1 100% -
HER S WITEF
Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non- 1 1 100% -
executive Director
BSR4 BUIEHITES
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Independent Non- 1 1 100% -
Harry executive Director
REESEE BUIEHITES
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non- 1 0 0% -
executive Director
EaIFRE BIEHITES
2019 F3§
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
tERERWS(B)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Yang is our chairman and chief executive officer. In accordance with
Rule A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as provided in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be held by the same person.
The Board of Directors has noticed that there was deviation from Rule
A.2.1 of the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. However,
with extensive experience in the coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals industries, Mr. Yang is responsible for the overall management
and business development, the operations of our subsidiaries and their
corresponding production facilities and human resources of the Group
and has been instrumental to our growth and business expansion since
our establishment in 1995. The Board considers that vesting the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the management of the Group. The balance of power and authority
is ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
currently comprises six Executive Directors (including Mr. Yang) and
three Independent Non-executive Directors and therefore has a strong
independence element in its composition.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors have been appointed for a term of three years,
after which they may be re-elected. At each general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
During the Reporting Period, all Directors retired and were re-elected as
Directors of the Company at the 2018 annual general meeting held on
June 28, 2019.

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
The procedures and process of appointment and re-election of directors
are laid down in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
shall be responsible for nominating new Directors and then submitting
such nomination to the Board of Directors for review and consideration.
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Corporate Governance Repor

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any
contract between him and the Company) and member of the Company
may by ordinary resolution appoint another in his place. Unless otherwise
determined by the Company in general meeting, the number of Directors
shall not be less than two. There is no maximum number of Directors.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Directors of the Company actively
participated in seminars on the obligations and responsibilities required
to be fulfilled for being the directors of a listed company in Hong Kong,
as well as the obligations for the listing compliance of a listed company
in relation to the continuous professional developments in the following
manner:

ontinued)

t (Co
TEEEREE)

ARRAEB-BEBRAARGEHRER
MEZLB(ERBTZEZEEHEEAIR
AR ERI S B0 R Mz K REEEER) -
MARBBRRATBBERRERRES %
ALTBRERT - FRIFARBRBIRAE L
AERE > BAEZABIFIRMA - &
EABAE LR -

BEEMEIINSEERE

RBEHA - ARREFEB2EEGREE
FHARBFRARTHEBRBEAR LT
RAEBEHBEEE R TTERBBHHOM
\T@ T2 Elﬂi RN

Type of continuous
professional development

Name Position programmes (Note)

HA B FEEXBRRERER W)

Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 2

HBEmEELE HITES

Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 2

RRELE HITES

Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 2

BE =L HITEE

Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 2

FRLEE HITESE

Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 2

FTHEFEE HITE=R

Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 2

B EE HITE=S

Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non-executive Director 182

==L BIYFMTES

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

REIREE L BIYFENTES

Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non-executive Director 182

E5IFEE BIYFENTES

Notes: HIaE -

1. Attending seminars/courses for development of professional skills and 1. 2NEBAEREBERERNBNHANE
knowledge. FRIZ ©

2. Reading materials in relation to regular update to statutory requirements, 2. BEEMTHEFRNEEER - Em#A

listing rules and other relevant topics related to listed company.

K ER AR E AR REAME
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
tERERWS(B)

COMPANY SECRETARY AND HIS TRAINING

Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph acts as the company secretary and is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial and accounting operations and
internal controls, and provides financial and business advice to the Board
and senior management of the Group. Mr. Ho shall report significant
events to the chairman. The profile of Mr. Ho is stated in the section of
“Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” of this Report.
During the Reporting Period, Mr. Ho undertook more than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Agenda
of board meetings are presented to the Directors for comments and
approval. The Board of Directors is provided with adequate, timely and
reliable information about the Group’s business and developments before
each board meeting at which the Directors actively participate and hold
informed discussions. A notice of regular board meeting shall be given to
all directors at least 14 days before the meeting is convened pursuant to
the requirements of the Code, and such notice shall state the date, time
and venue of the meeting to be convened and the format to be adopted
of such meeting. Other interim board meetings have reasonable notices
be delivered to all Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Company shall
publish an announcement at least 7 clear business days in advance
of the date fixed for any board meeting at which the declaration,
recommendation or payment of a dividend is expected to be decided or
at which any announcement of the profits or losses for any year, half-year,
quarter-year or other period is to be approved for publication.

The quorum for a board meeting shall be the presence of two Directors.
Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment through which
all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously and, for the purpose of counting a
quorum, such participation shall constitute presence at a meeting as
if those participating were present in person. The company secretary
is responsible for preparing and safekeeping the minutes of the board
meetings and ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such minutes.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly complied, and will
continue to comply, with the provisions in relation to the meetings of the
Board of Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors delegates certain responsibilities to various
committees. In accordance with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles
of Association of the Company, we have formed three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. All the Board committees are empowered by the
Board under their own terms of reference which have been posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website and/or the Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has expressly stated the
scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry, Mr. Kang
Woon and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members of the Audit Committee are
Independent Non- executive Directors. Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that
the Company has an effective financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system in compliance with the Listing Rules, overseeing
the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, selecting, and
assessing the independence and qualifications of, the Company’s
external auditor, as well as ensuring effective communication between the
Directors and the internal and external auditors of the Company.

As for the selection, appointment and dismissal of external auditors or
resignation of auditors, the Board and the Audit Committee have reached
a consensus.

During the Reporting Period, three meeting was held by the Audit
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

ZEEREMA BHifE ELHEEEAE HE=
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 3/3 100%
RERERLE

Mr. Kang Woon 3/3 100%
BB E

Mr. Wang Yinping 3/3 100%
E5IFEE
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee:
1. assessed the independence and objectivity of external auditors;

2. advised the Board on re-appointment of external auditors;

3 reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company;

4. reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended December
31, 2018;

5 reviewed the unaudited interim results for the period ended June
30, 2019; and

6. reviewed the audit plan 2019.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and has
expressly stated the scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Kang
Woon, Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Kang Woon is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include establishing
and reviewing the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on employee benefit arrangements. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for determining the vesting of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Corporate Governance Repor

During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:

ontinued)
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FHZEesaKENHECEEHIIMT

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

ZEESHEHRE BHE EBLHEEEAE HE=
Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%
BRE%AE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 11 100%
REIREEE

Mr. Wang Yinping 11 100%
FaIFEE

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee:

1. reviewed the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
Senior Management’s remuneration; and

2. review and approve the remuneration proposals of individual
executive Directors and Senior Management, as well as
non-executive Directors for the year 2018, with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives formulated by the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, and has expressly stated the scope of job duties of
such committee in writing. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Yang Xuegang, Mr. Kang Woon and Mr. Yu Kwok
Kuen Harry. Except for Mr. Yang who is an executive Director, all other
members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, assessing
the independence of the Independent Non- executive Directors to
determine their eligibility, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee is set out below:

RBEMA - REZEFERTREH -
REZESFEAKENHETEEHIIMT -

Name of committee members Number of meetings attended/should attend Attendance rate
EEERENR BHE EBHESERE HER

Mr. Yang Xuegang 11 100%
HEmMEE

Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%

RBE%AE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 11 100%
REIREEE

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. made recommendations to the Board as to nomination of Directors
for re-election at the 2018 AGM; and

eF assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

4. considered and assess the performance of the Board and consider
such performance against the boards of comparable companies;
and

5% monitor the implementation of, and review, the board diversity policy
of the Company.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and
to support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development, we have adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, we
seek to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors when selecting candidates to the Board, including but not
limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service.
Appointments will ultimately be based on merit and the contributions the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board believes that such
merit-based appointments will best enable the Company to service our
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing
the structure, number of members, and composition of the Board of
Directors. In addition, the Committee makes recommendations to the
Board relating to the size and structure of the Board of Directors based
on the Company’s strategic plans, business operations, asset size and
shareholding structure. The Committee also discusses and reviews the
selection standard, the nomination and appointment process of relevant
Directors, and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors.
In identifying candidates, the Company solicits candidates through
recruitment agencies, referrals by existing directors, and recommendation
by shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association. The candidates will be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Board Diversity Policy needs to be followed when the Nomination
Committee of the Board makes recommendations on the candidates
or when the Board of Directors makes nomination. The Nomination
Committee of the Board is responsible for monitoring the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing it at the appropriate time to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
amendments when necessary and make recommendations to the Board
of Directors for final approval.
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Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including in
overall management and strategic development, sales and marketing,
finance and accounting, law, consulting and corporate governance,
as well as experience in the coke industry. Our Directors also obtained
degrees in various majors including business administration, coal
chemistry, metallurgical engineering, industrial economy administration,
accounting, statistics, law, international trade and chemical engineering.
The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing one-third of the members
of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging
from 29 years old to 61 years old. Out of the nine Directors, only Mr. Yang
Xuegang and Mr. Yang Lu are related. Taking into account our existing
business model and specific needs as well as the different backgrounds
and abilities of our Directors, the composition of the Board satisfies the
Board Diversity Policy, despite the lack of gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of the
Board. The Nomination Committee monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy from time
to time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
also included in our annual corporate governance report a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy together with measurable objectives set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the progress made towards
achieving those objectives, as well as the Board’s composition from a
diversity perspective.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board of Directors and concluded that the Company
had met the diversification requirements with regard to gender, skills, age,
professional experience, knowledge, cultural and education background,
ethnicity and length of service. When making the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors in the future, the Nomination Committee
will nominate new Directors pursuant to the requirements of the Board
Diversity Policy to achieve the objective of diversity in Board members.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
our Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times. In
order to ensure the internal control operate effectively, the Company has
adopted a series of internal control policies, procedures and programmes
designed to provide reasonable assurance for achieving objectives
including effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board reviews
the risk management and internal controls annually. Highlights of the
Company’s internal control system include the following:

(a) Code of conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to
each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-making
and our ground rules for behavior.

(b) Internal audit. Our internal audit team regularly monitors key
controls and procedures in order to assure our management and
the Board of Directors that the internal control system is functioning
as intended. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
responsible for supervising our internal audit function.

(c) Compliance with Listing Rules. Our various policies aim to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to
aspects related to corporate governance, connected transactions
and securities transactions by the Directors.

(d) Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
non-compliance incidents. The Company also adopted a number of
enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
noncompliance incidents.

We have established a set of risk management policies and measures to
identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from our operations. Our risk
management process starts with identifying the major risks associated
with our corporate strategy, goals and objectives. Each of our operating
departments is responsible for identifying and analyzing risks associated
with its function, maintaining a comprehensive risk register, preparing risk
mitigation plans, measuring effectiveness of such risk mitigation plans
and reporting the status of risk management. Our audit personnel, the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and ultimately the Board of
Directors supervise the implementation of our risk management policy at
the corporate level by bringing together each operating department, such
as quality control, research and development and sales, to collaborate on
risk issues among different functions.
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The Board of Directors and the senior management are accountable for
the overall responsibility in respect of monitoring the implementation of
internal control and risk management procedures and other measures in
the Group. The Company’s risk management and internal control system
aims at managing but not eliminating the risk for not being able to achieve
the business objective. Moreover, only reasonable but not absolute
guarantee is made for materially untrue statement or loss. The Board of
Directors will conduct an examination on the Company’s risk management
and internal control system once per year. The Board of Directors has
confirmed that it has examined the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system as of December 31, 2019. The
Board believed that the Company’s risk management and internal control
system is effective and sufficient. The Company’s risk management and
internal control system can effectively guide against such risks existing in
the operation.

We have appointed and renewed the appointment of external professional
advisors (including the auditor, legal or other advisors) for provision of
professional suggestions in respect of how we observe all applicable
related laws and regulations.

THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered with any significant and uncertain
events and circumstances that might produce significant doubts on the
Company’s capability of its continuous operation of business. The Board
of Directors has confirmed that it is responsible for the preparation of the
Group’s Financial Statements as of December 31, 2019.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

For the Reporting Period, the Company has appointed Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, an international accounting firm,
to provide the Company with auditing service in accordance with IFRS
and the amounts of remuneration in connection to annual audit service
are RMB4.6 million. The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as to
the Financial Statements are set out on pages 132 and 137 of this annual
report.

Non-audit services provided to the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2019 of approximately RMB2.68 million represented the
fee for the preparation of the environmental, social and governance report
of the Company, interim fee for review of the unaudited interim financial
statements.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

SHAREHOLDERS HAVE THE RIGHT TO INITIATE AND
CONVENE THE GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the following right: Any
one or more shareholder of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one(21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group at a general
meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or the company secretary
in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS ARE ENTITLED TO THE INQUIRY
RIGHT

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board should by
sending written enquiries to the Company at its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will deal
with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
tERERWS(B)

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with its
Shareholders is essential to enhancement of the relationship with
investors and enhancement of investors’ understanding of the Company’s
business and strategies. The Company highly values Shareholders’
opinions and suggestions, and actively organizes and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to keep the
communications with Shareholders, and to timely satisfy the reasonable
demands of all Shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains its website
at http://www.risun.com where the latest information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

The 2019 annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company will be
held on June 26, 2020. The notice of the AGM will be sent to shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors may help
build more stable and consolidated shareholder base. As a result, since
the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated to maintaining
a higher degree of transparency, observing the Listing Rules and timely
providing investors with comprehensive and accurate information, and
sustainably performing the obligation of disclosing the information as a
listed company. The Company will strengthen its communications with
investors and let investors understand corporate strategies and business
operation by organizing road shows, participating in investors summit,
voluntary information disclosure and others.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective investors
communication policies for purposes of timely providing investors with
the latest information on the Company’s business when the Company is in
compliance with the relevant regulatory provisions.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, the fourth amended and restated Articles of
Association, which reflects the changes in relation to the Global Offering,
took effect from March 15, 2019, being the date on which the Shares of
the Company were listed on the Mainboard of the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
provisions of “Comply or Explain” stated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide. Please refer to “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report for details.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report

RIE - LE MEARE

RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

The Group actively fulfills the enterprise social responsibilities and
promotes the inclusion of social responsibilities in operations of the
Company by establishing the social responsibility management system
with the board of directors as the core, actively responding to and
meeting the demands of the stakeholders, etc.

e  Responsibility Management System

The Group established an environmental, social, and governance
("ESG”) working group. The board of directors and senior
managements are responsible for the environmental, social,
and governance strategy and report, periodically review
the environmental, social, and governance information and
performance, reviewing proposals about ESG such as safety,
environment, employees, and investment, and direct, decide,
and promote ESG work uniformly; the secretary department of the
board of directors, as the leading and coordinating department,
is responsible for daily ESG coordination and implementation,
and periodically reports to the board of directors and senior
management; departments of the headquarter and the subsidiaries
(branches) are responsible for implementation of the ESG work
according to their own businesses and functions, report the ESG
performance and disclose and report the ESG information of each
year when necessary.

e  Stakeholders Communication

The Company kept the communication with stakeholders (including
shareholders, governments and regulators, customers, partners,
employees, community, etc.) during the year working process,
and listened to the demands and appeals of the stakeholders and
made responses to the opinions of the stakeholders in a timely
manner through diversified channels. The Company collated and
prepared stakeholders communication form from the perspective of
sustainable development, and laid a foundation for identification of
material topics of the Company.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (ContinUed):.-;' %

Stakeholders

GlEiEl g

Communication channels

IRIE  HEeRBERRE (B

Investors/Shareholders

REE/BR

Governments and regulators

B REE#E

Customers

ZP

Supply chain
s

Periodic report and information disclosure

EHRRERESRE
General meeting
eV

Investor questionnaire

RAEBH

Press conference on performance/roadshow

ES E Vg

Daily communication
ARER
Information bulletin
BELAE

Government and enterprise cooperation

BA1E
Government review

BAEE

Daily service and communication

HERpER

Customer visiting mechanism
RPEDHEE

Portal

PP,

Daily communication
HEER
Supplier purchasing meeting

HERREAE

Continue to return value

FEAIEEEDR

Corporate governance and risk management
CEERERRER

Right to know and right to make decision

TRABENS BRRE

Pay taxes according to the laws
BB

Intellectual property protection
AEEERE

Safety Production

TREE

Save Energy and reduce consumption
HaepE

Pollution Control

BRRE

Information disclosure

FRKE

Stable product quality
EmEERE
Service and feedback response guarantee

RisaREERRE

Good relations of cooperation

RIFEIEVERRR

Expedite communication channels

HRanERRE

Conscientiously implement cooperation agreement

RERTEMFHRE
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)

Stakeholders Communication channels
giliyil i BERE
Partners e Carry out project cooperation e Mutual development
AERH o FRIERAME o HREREK
¢ Daily business communication e Project cooperation
o BEEBRR o JERATE
e Attend association meetings *  Resource sharing
o 2IGEE:E o ER#E
On-line service platform
BIRGTE
Experts Industry forum Promote the construction of green plants
5% el AR TR
Project review meeting Adopt low carbon development technology
HANESE FEFE RS R
Product upgrade
EmtAk
Essential safety
rERE
Employees Periodic meetings Safeguard legal rights and interests of employees
ET THeE REBIAZER
Employee training Promote occupational development and
s T3 improvement of skills
Labor union B R B AR
Ie Work-life balance
Cultural activities TEEEETE
XAEE Occupational health
HE Volunteer services Community public service
Community ETRERS HEAR
Public charity activities Charity and educational aid
RREEEY HEHS
Targeted poverty alleviation
TBAKE
Environmental quality improvement
RREENE

86 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Conti

|dentification Process of Material Top

With respect to topics concerning the enviro
governance, the Company, in accordance

ics

nment, social, and
with Appendix 27

“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of the
securities listing rules of Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and based on the stakeholder communication and practices of the
Company, evaluated and screened important environmental, social,

and governance matters concerning business o

f the Company from

the perspective of importance of the topics to the stakeholders and
to the environment and society to form a matrix of material topics, as

the focus of ESG of the Company and the basis

/ Definition and Selection of Topics \
SERCEFR

Combined with domestic and foreign industrial
policies and standards and benchmarking reports
of the same industry, stakeholders' concerns were
combined to identify 17 topics for stakeholder
research through expert analysis and judgment.
HARMIMIERRGE  BRRTERE &8
TR LE - mERDMAMEA 7R

WM ARRET AR -

of disclosure.

Questionnaire Survey

ElE

Conduct research on stakeholders
111 valid questionnaires were
received.

NG RR TR A R
BE117 ©

NI

Results of Identification of Material Topics

Material topics include: Emission management, environment and

natural resources, resource utilization, product

quality, health and

safety, responsibility management, response to climatic change,

and supply chain responsibility management.

High

=

NSRBI NEZN (JND)

Importance to Stakeholders (External)

Low

&

Importance to the Group (Internal)

HAEENEEE (W)

BIE . e REAREE)

EEMEEEHERBRE

RERBEEABHAR

F LR BIMER27CGRE - B RER
HEAtESD - SHERRERE  HERE
A ERAMEAARE T ABREQR
ERBR  AZEHMNEEETNE
EUNFEHRENEENERZER
B4 = g - o Bl S SR API X400
BEENRE  HEREAREHET
AHh RS RERERERM
{ERABIESGRIE K BRI ©

/ Questionnaire Analysis and \

Comprehensive Assessment

BE R

HRARRRE

According to the responses to the questionnaires,
the priority of material topics of each group of
stakeholders was ranked, and the matrix of
material topics was obtained by integrating the
opinions of experts and relevant personnel.
REMBRBHGAN RN BEENTELS
BEABHFGAERREWARER - BLHEE

B2

R nl SR
EEHRBEE  BRNEE  BE
REXAER  ARER EREE-
EEZ:  BEER - EHRRE
b~ HEREEER -

(1) Responsibility Management
BITER

Emission Management
P ER

(3) Resource Utilization
EIRER

Environment and Natural Resources
BRIRBRRRER

Response to Climate Change

FEHRIRR(E

(6) Staff Employment
BIER

(2) Health and Safety

TS

Development and Training

R N IE

(9) Labour Standards

HTAR

@ Supply Chain Responsibility Management

HEREEER

@9 Product Quality

EREE

@ Anti-corruption

RES
Community Investment
HERE
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
BRIE - e RERHE(E)

1.

GREEN DEVELOPMENT

1.1 Emissions Management

We are dedicated to reduce the impact of pollutant emissions
during the coke and chemical production on environment,
actively implement the green development idea, and
stringently comply with the environmental protection laws and
regulations and standards, such as the PRC Environmental
Protection Law, the PRC Law on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution, the PRC Law on Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution, the PRC Law on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Environmental
Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Measures for Pollutant Discharge Permitting Administration
(For Trial Implementation), the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Appraising of Environment Impacts, the Notice of
the State Council on Issuing the Three-year Plan on Defending
the Blue Sky, and the Emission Standard of Pollutants for

Coking Chemical Industry.

During the reporting period, the total NOx emissions of the
Group decreased by 50.69%, total SO, emissions decreased
by 37.98%, total particulate emissions decreased by 49.53%,
and total greenhouse gas emissions decreased by 27.16%,

and the environmental performance continued to improve.

° Establish a complete environment responsibility
management system: Establish an environment
management system with the environmental
management committee as the highest management
agency and the production technology department
as the daily management department. All subsidiaries
established the environmental management
organizational structure specifying clear responsibilities
and objectives for all levels of posts, and ensured
continuous improvement of the system running by

assessment and incentives;

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
R - tERERRE0

Revise and improve the management system:
Establish such management assessment systems
and measures as the Management System for
Pollutant Emission, the Administrative Measures for
Environmental Monitoring, and the Management System
for Environmental Protection Facilities, the Environmental
Protection Responsibility System, and the Administrative
Measures for Pollutant Discharge Report Management.
In 2019, we responded positively to the Program for
In-depth Emission Reduction of Steel Works, Coking
and Coal-Fired Power Plants in Hebei Province, and
formulated the Program for In-depth Emission Reduction
and the Program for Comprehensive Environment
Governance and Improvement,

Upgrade and reform process equipment: Adopt coke
dry quenching process instead of coke wet quenching
process to reduce pollutant emission from the source, as
well as implement the ultralow emission transformations,
such as low nitrogen combustion of the boiler and flue
gas de-white, and promote the LDAR leak detection
and repair technology to reduce leakage and venting;

Stabilize the operation of process equipment:
Formulate the operating procedures for pollutant
facilities and equipment, and conduct regular
maintenance to reduce process fluctuations and ensure
stable discharge up to the standards;

Carry out publicity and training on environmental
protection: Organize training activities for
environmental laws, regulations and standards to
improve the consciousness of law-abiding of the
management and employees; as well as actively
carry out special trainings on contingency plans for
environmental emergencies and the operation of
environmental protection equipment and facilities, so
as to improve our professional skills and emergency
handling ability.

ed)
")

BT EZETEGE : HIT
CaRMBENERHIE) -
CREEREENE) -
CRARBEEEHE)
CRREEHEY RS
RRERIE) EEEEX
I B % - 2019F F M
BREECTitaMmE - &
b~ PR S OR S R HE IR
BHER)  #ETORER
W FR)MCRREA
JRIEBERA SR

HRBGETERE - KA
FEEEIEBERBZER
£ RIRBEIRSEDN
BEE - FREERERA
Mg - BTE A SRR EE
MERE - HETTLDARE iR
AN E R - B RE R

BEIEREET X
75 R W) BRI R R R 1E AR
2 WEHIREEE R
LPTEBERE - RIS
TEZERHEIN

FREBEREGEZI AL
FAERRREEERREE
HIEIES REERE
REIMNSFEEH AR
BIBHARRERTEME
SR - RRBERIEE
TEREEN - BARE
ReEKFERESESBR®
e

2019 FiR
FEEBEEERA G

89



90

The exhaust gas arising from coke and chemical production
process of our Group mainly consists of particulate matters,
sulfur dioxide, nitric oxide and greenhouse gas; and the solid
wastes mainly consist of tar residue, renewable residues,
acid tar oil, waste catalyst, waste activated carbon and the
coal dust and coke powder collected by the dust collection
facilities, sludge from the waste water treatment plant, and
domestic wastes. Waste water arising from production was
recycled for production after treatment. To reduce the impact
of discharge on the environment, we stringently controlled
the discharges, ensuring effective treatment of discharges
and taking various measures to reduce greenhouse gas
emission and various wastes. In 2017, Hebei Risun Energy.
was honored as one of the first batch of “Green Plants” of
China. In 2018, CNC Risun Energy, the joint venture company
of the Group, was honored as one of the third batch of “Green
Plants” of China. In 2019, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals was
honored as one of the enterprises on the “Positive List” of
eco-environmental supervision.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
BRIE - e RERHE(E)
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contm

Exhaust Gas Management

BEREE

Management of the Emission
of Greenhouse Gas
RERBEHENE R

ed
=]
=
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RE - RERBREE)

The coal storage unit was completely enclosed for transformation, and the enclosed
dust removal facilities were installed for the intermediate links of powder materials and
products such as coal transport, coal pulverizing, coal loading, coke pushing, coke
quenching, coke screening, and ammonium sulphate drying to reduce the release of
particulate matters such as coal dust and dust;

FEBTEMDHANGE - FREEEE - BN RE - #5 - BF 6% R
REMEYR - EmERER TN  REREREE - MEELEBR YR ;

Adopt advanced and stable desulfurization, denitration, and dust removal technologies
at the end of the production process to realize ultralow emission;

HEETERNRERATELE - BTRERR - B RETE  BRBESW:

Adopt leak detection and repair technology for oil and gas pipelines, oil storage
facilities and equipment to reduce VOCs emissions;

S RE SR SRR © SRIBTET TR BB E R - BAVOCSH

The pond of the sewage treatment station was sealed and the exhaust gas was
released up to the standards after collection and treatment;

THIKERIBUL MR BT - EERRERSR SRR IEERIEW

The construction camp of the renovation and expansion project was equipped with
hard fence, and effective dust prevention and reduction measures such as covering,
sprinkling and dust suppression, washing the ground and vehicles were adopted;
speed limit of vehicles at the entrance and exit of the construction site, road hardening
or watering were adopted to ensure that the ground was wet and reduce the dust
generated by vehicles.

WIERIER M e R B E EE - WREBEE/KIE et EMERE AR
BE - PREEFEHE  MELISH I A\ D BHIRE - ERE(CSORICHER B EEE - M=
%ﬁ%ﬁ?‘f%ﬂ’]%%

Establish the carbon emission accounting system and clarify the key points and
directions of control;
BIRFRAZER R - MBI ER M

Promote the application of energy-saving and environmental protection equipment,
improve the process route, and optimize the energy consumption network to reduce
energy consumption density and greenhouse gas emissions;

HEEAEERIRERE - SCETERE - BLAREE  RERREAEE @ BLARE
RESHERL

Make comprehensive use of the residual heat and pressure to achieve energy
recovery;
FEFARR  RE - BREEOU

Use high efficiency catalyst to improve the conversion rate of carbonaceous products
and reduce wastes production.

ERARRELE  ReeRERBCE  REERVEL -
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Environmental,

Social,

and Governance Report (Continued)
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Sewage Management

REKEIE

Solid Waste Management

BElpEEE

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

Construct effluent segregation system to collect and treat all industrial wastewater and
domestic wastewater;

BRBADMERS  HEERKEEERKEMRERE

Construct sewage treatment and recycling facilities such as the sewage treatment
station and advanced sewage treatment station, and recycle up-to-standard water
for the production system and the concentrated water from the desalination station
and advanced sewage treatment station for sprinkling, blending or discharge to the
sewage treatment station in the base

BERSKEIEM  J5ORERIBIESKEE KB AR - HAKOKEEEEE RN EE
RE - BRERIK 5K BRIR IR KR AR HE 1T B sk A B[R )5 K BE B
BRIE

Construct multi-directional comprehensive sewage recycling pipe network, and
optimize “water resource” dispatching by serial recycling and classified utilization to
realize comprehensive utilization.

L&%Wlﬁﬁi@kﬁé@ﬁﬁ%% CRBERCA  HBMBEFANEBLCAEORER] - B
WERE A

Control, store and treat solid wastes by categories and accomplish recycling,
reduction, and hazard-free treatment;

ERENLBRER  FEMRE - MAERL  REL B2

Materials or products with certain heat or necessary for production such as coal dust,
coke dust, tar residue, acid tar oil, and waste activated carbon are returned to the
production system for comprehensive utilization or for sales to prevent the impact of
hazardous wastes discharge on environment;

HEE - R mE BEW  BEAUREAR TRERREEMFTHRENER
EROAEZRGEENARERERING © BIIEEEREDTFGEKOHIRENT
485 .

Qualified units were entrusted for safe and proper disposal of the hazardous wastes,
and the production base were all equipped with hazardous waste repositories that
meet The National Pollution Control Standard for Storage of Hazard Wastes;
ERENERBEEEEIETREHERSE  FEERRYERETa(ECRENSEES
RAEFIEEINEREDEFE

The household garbage among the general solid waste was delivered to the municipal
sanitation departments for unified disposal. For those that can be recycled and
utilized, such as the fly ash and slags, enter into a cooperation agreement with a third
party to carry out comprehensive utilization and turn the wastes into resources.
—MRERSREYT E’Ji/éiﬂ&xmﬁm%i%%ﬁﬁ%_ﬁ —RE WX EEZARDK
MAEENRE=FRTAERZE  EITEaMNE  EREDERIL



Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)

2019 Emission Performance

RE 2K

2019F HE U E R

Blama(E)

Category of Emission Unit
HRNEE By 2019
Total SO2 emission Ton 232.31
SO HEH e E W
SO, emission density kg/RMB10 thousand 0.13
SO, BENE E FTr/ BTARE
Total NO, emission Ton 1,227.22
NO, H b e & W
NO, emission density kg/RMB10 thousand 0.67
NO,BF i & FTr/BTARYE
Total particle emission Ton 171.88
RS s
Particle emission density kg/RMB10 thousand 0.09
ERLBE R E TR/ BTARYE
Total emission of greenhouse gas emission Ton of COe 2,584,454.60
BERES R ECO,e
Direct emissions of greenhouse gas emission Ton of CO.e 1,990,411.33
BERBEERE ECO,e
Indirect emissions of greenhouse gas emission Ton of COe 594,043.27
BER R NE WECO,e
Greenhouse gas emission density Ton of CO,e/RMB10 thousand 1.42
BE R HECO,e, BT ARM
Total sewage discharge Ton 2,099,929.01
JIIKBER R WA
Total COD discharge Ton 57.75
COD#I#EE LT
Total ammonia nitrogen discharge Ton 3.84
FABHES U7
Sewage discharge density Ton/RMB10 thousand 1.15
TEIKEEER S W, BT AR
Generation of hazardous waste Ton 33,676.33
EERREYELS U
Density of hazardous waste generation Ton/RMB10 thousand 0.02
BEEEDELEE W, BT AR
Treatment rate of hazardous waste % 100
BEEEYRIBX %
Generation of non-hazardous waste Ton 125,862.81
BEEZVELS g
Density of non-hazardous waste generation Ton/RMB10 thousand 0.07
BERRMELERE WE & AR
Treatment rate of non-hazardous waste % 100
BEFERYEIER %

2019 F3§
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Note: 1.The emission data of SO,, NOx and particulate matters in the exhaust

gas are calculated according to the on-line monitoring system and self-
monitoring and statistics of the Group; 2. Greenhouse gas emissions
are calculated according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol-Enterprise
Accounting and Reporting Standard issued by the World Resources
Institute (WRI) and World Business Council for Sustainable Development
(WBCSD), the Fifth Assessment Report 2013 of the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), and the Guide for Calculating Method
of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Independent Coking Enterprises
of China (tentative), among which the greenhouse gas emission
factor with respect to power generation is selected according to the
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids of China in the
Emission Reduction Project in 2017 issued by the Ministry of Ecological
Environment; 3. The total amount of hazardous waste and sewage
discharge are calculated according to the statistical account of the
production system of the Group; 4. Total COD and ammonia nitrogen
emissions are calculated according to the third-party monitoring report;
5. The nonhazardous waste is mainly domestic garbage, and the total
amount of discharge is calculated based on 0.5kg/person/day; 6. The
density data is calculated according to the emission/production divided
by the operating revenue.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

[54a

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
BRIE - e RERHE(E)
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - 2 LERWmE(E)

Carry out transformation for ultralow emission and facilitate the Battle for Blue Sky

e IESRE - BN ERREE

For continuing the Battle for Blue Sky and actively responding to the Program for In-depth Emission Reduction
of Steel Works, Coking and Coal-Fired Power Plants in Hebei Province, the Group, in 2019, actively carried out
the transformation for ultralow emission and the flue gas desulfurization and denitration projects to effectively
remove the SO,, NO,, and particulate matters in the flue gas of the coke oven, which can reduce NOx by
2948 tons/year, SO, by 280 tons/year, and particulate matter by 70 tons/year, as well as recovered residual
heat of the flue gas to reduce emissions for the environmental benefits; in terms of controlling the unorganized
emission of the coal yard, we enclosed the coal yard for transformation to further reduce the dust release
from the coal yard and improved the working environment of employees; in terms of advanced treatment of
wastewater, we carried out advanced treatment of the coking wastewater, and recycled the treated reclaimed
water for the circulating water unit, which reduced the discharge of process wastewater and saved the
consumption of fresh water, saving a total of 501,197 tons of water in 2019; in addition, we implemented the
in-deep emission reduction project for the coal-fired power plant of Cangzhou Risun Chemicals. On the basis
of ultra-low emission of the original project, we extended the service life of the desulfurization unit through a
series of improvement measures, and improved the denitration reaction efficiency, so as to meet the limit of
the reference acceptance standard for in-deep emission reduction of coal-fired plants in Hebei province. The
Group actively implements the concept of green development, takes multiple measures to create synergy,
and contributes to the improvement of regional environment.
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1.2 Resources Saving

The Group adheres to the clean development philosophy and
actively implements relevant policies and guidelines such
as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving
Energy and the Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the
People’s Republic of China to develop recycling economy
and realize efficient resources utilization. The Group promotes
the research and development and application of new
energy, new technology, and new equipment in the course
of the coke and chemical production, and is dedicated to the
construction of the “Ecological Chemical” project to reduce
energy consumption and cost. The Company also actively
promotes green office, ensuring efficient resources utilization
by implementing a series of green office actions.

During the reporting period, two production units of the Group
passed the ISO5001 energy management system certification,
and the comprehensive energy consumption decreased by
0.84% on the year-on-year.

o Green Production

- Establish the energy saving and consumption reduction
organization, set up an energy management center
for the supervision and administration of energy
consumption, and compile the Energy Management
Manual and the Procedure Document;

- Revise and improve the management systems
for energy saving appraisal. The Energy Saving
Management System, the Rated Energy Consumption
Management Systemn, the Detailed Energy Management
Appraisal Rules, the Administrative Measures for
Electricity Saving by Off-peak Production incorporate
water, electricity, and vapor into the appraisal to
standardize the key points and direction of energy
management and improve the management level of
energy saving;

- Apply/use the MES system to monitor and analyze
the energy consumption such as vapor, water,
electricity and the material consumption data of each
production unit, so as to achieve unified scheduling and
optimization and reduce the loss of material and energy
consumption;
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
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Promote the application of energy-saving and water-
saving new technologies and products, carry out
research on the utilization of residual heat and
pressure, and implement energy-saving and water-
saving technical upgrading projects, such as recovery
of coke residual heat for power generation, recovery of
residual heat of the ascending pipe, to realize cascade
utilization of energy;

Strengthen water recycling, such as the system for
recycling production wastewater after advanced
treatment to reduce water consumption;

Carry out supervision on energy conservation, and
prevent leakage, venting and energy waste;

Carry out the industry benchmarking analysis, set up
the process energy consumption index and water
consumption quota standard, and conduct regular
statistical analysis to follow up the completion of the
index.

Green office

Formulate office lamp lighting instructions, requiring
lights off when leaving;

Implement the green lighting project, and transform the
street lamps and lamps of the operating room and office
into energy-saving lamps;

Implement the OA paperless office system to reduce
waste paper and encourage the employees to reuse
one-side paper;

Promote the remote conference system;

Promote the use of durable goods and minimize the
procurement of disposable goods;

Regulate public vehicle management and promote one
car for multipurpose.
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Resource Consumption Performance of 2019

' Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
RE g RERWE ()

2019F & R HFEE W

Category of Resources Unit

EREE By 2019

Coal Ton 6,022,081.40

874 U7

Diesel Ton 1,287.21

s Ll

Gasoline Ton 45.12

pavii L}

Net purchased electricity MWh 949,417.74

SFINEE T IR LB

Net purchased heat GJ -660,384.96

SFINEES Bl

Comprehensive energy consumption Ton of standard coal 6,169,246.69

REBERE MR

Comprehensive energy consumption density Ton of standard coal/ 3.39
RMB ten thousand

REREEEREEE WERZEE BT AR

Total fresh water consumption Ten thousand tons 1,060.70

EKAKEE A

Fresh water consumption density Ton/RMB10 thousand 5.83

FEOKAKRE e, BT AR

Note: 1. The comprehensive energy consumption data in the table are
calculated according to the General Rules for Comprehensive Energy
Consumption; 2. The energy consumption in the table comes from
the production statistical account of the Group; 3. The density data in
the table is calculated by dividing the amount of consumption by the
operating income; 4. The negative value of net purchased heat refers to

the heat sold by the Group.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu ed)
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RIE = NERWR

Implement technical transformation for energy saving to reduce the costs and increase the benefits

BEhtahseiek - BIREAIEN

Adhering to the concept of green development, the Group continued to explore the potential and space of
energy saving and consumption reduction, so as to reduce the costs and increase the benefits by technical
transformation for energy saving. In 2019, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals. implemented the expansion and
renovation project and the project of replacing coal gas with surplus vapor to further improve the efficiency
of plants, improve the utilization efficiency of resources and energy, and reduce the coal gas consumption,
which did not only reduce the manufacturing cost per unit product, but also greatly reduce the greenhouse

gas emissions, reducing emissions of about 5291 tons.
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B #5291 -
Environment and Natural Resources Protection

Upholding “Lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable
assets”, the Group, as a responsible enterprise, strictly
complies with the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China and relevant local environmental
protection laws. In the process of project construction and
operation, we took full consideration of the effect on possible
important ecological protected areas around, such as the
environmental sensitive area, important water source, and
wetland, reduced the occupation of farmland, field, and
forest land, actively carried out public participation, as well as
established risk prevention and control program with respect
to soil and underground water and took effective measures
to protect the ecological environment of the area where the
project was operated and establish a responsible corporate
image.

- Strictly comply with the system of environmental impact
assessment for new, renovation and expansion projects
and take relevant ecological protection measures;

- Set up an emergency management agency for
environmental emergencies, work out emergency plans
for environmental emergencies, and carry out drills for
environmental emergencies regularly to improve its
emergency response capacity;

- Take effective measures for the production, use,
storage, transportation, recycling, disposal, and
discharge of poisonous and hazardous substances
to prevent their leakage, loss, and scattering and soil
pollution;
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
BER e kERHE(E)

= Monitor surrounding soils and underground water - THRBEELTE T
periodically and pay attention to the change of KERIFWOA - BFIRR
environmental quality to prevent environmental risks in a B2t REHEIRR
timely manner; [BUR

= Newly implement the work of direct water supply from - SrEmKRItAEMRIKIE
the South-to-North Water Diversion to reduce of the B RAOEBELHMT
utilization of underground water of the project; IKEVEA

-~ Carry out the publicity activity on the environment day - FMERRREESEEE - 7
to improve the environmental awareness. BIRREH o

Case:
ESVTIE
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Cangzhou Risun Chemicals carried out emergency drill for environmental emergencies

BMBE L TRRRERFEEMHERR

In 2019, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals undertook the Cangzhou City Emergency Drill for
Environmental Emergency. The background of the drill was the hazardous chemical leakage
in the chemical storage tank area. The drill covered such actions as receipt of incident report,
early handled by enterprises, which dispatched environmental emergency response forces,
and took on-site coordinated handling. In the process of preparation, participants continuously
improved and refined the drill plan to fit the actual scenario as closely as possible. After the
drill began, the fire brigade, medical rescue team, environmental monitoring team, emergency
repair team, process team and other emergency rescue teams quickly gathered, resolutely
implemented a series of actions such as plugging, spraying, fire-fighting, and rescue to achieve
efficient and orderly cooperation. The drill further improved the ability of the enterprise to deal with
environmental emergencies and laid a solid foundation for protecting environmental safety.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
R - tERERRE0

HEALTH AND SAFETY

2.1 Safety Production

Safety is the lifeline of development of the Group and the
impassable red line. The Group, stringently complying with
laws and regulations in connection with safety production,
such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Production Safety, the Regulation on Work Safety Permits
of the People’s Republic of China, and the Regulation on
Production Safety of Hebei province, continued to reinforce
the foundation for management, improved the safety
management system and institutional system, promoted
the implementation of the primary responsibility for safety
production of the production and operation units, further
promoted the construction of the double prevention
mechanism of safety production risk control and inspecting
and handling of hidden dangers to greatly improve the level
of risk prevention and control, carried out safety production
inspection, and dedicated to constructing a long-term
mechanism for safety production to improve the safety
production management level.

During the reporting period, the Group invested RMB74.5847
million in safety production, such as safety training,
maintenance of fire-fighting facilities and equipment, anti-
corrosion and insulation, safety precautions, and safety
bonus for employees. Six of its production subsidiaries were
honored as enterprise of grade Il work safety standardization
and above, and eight of its production subsidiaries established
the double prevention system of risk control and inspecting
and handling of hidden dangers. The situation of safety
production continues to improve.

° Improve the safety responsibility system: Set up
the safety production committee and establish the
safety production responsibility system for all posts of
all subsidiaries, levels, departments, and employees
with the responsible person as the core, specifying the
responsible persons of all posts, scope of responsibility,
list of responsibilities; and organize and hold safety
meetings regularly to coordinate and solve the problems
in the safety production process of each subsidiary
company;
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Establish the safety assessment and the reward
and punishment system: Formulate various
management systems such as the Provisions on
Accident Management, the System of Safety Production
Responsibility, the Management System of Major
Hazard Sources, and the Management System of Safety
Inspection and Elimination and Handling of Hidden
Dangers to further prevent safety risks;

Carry out safety target management: Formulate the
annual safety objectives and indicators, and divide the
annual goals and indicators to the subsidiaries in the
form of responsibility letters. Each subsidiary divided
and implemented the general objective of production
safety layer by layer, and conducted regular assessment
on the completion of safety objectives to standardize
the operations;

Standardize the operations: Establish comprehensive
and detailed operating procedures to standardize
the operation of facilities and equipment, and strictly
execute the work permit system for special operations as
hot work and work in confined space;

Carry out risk investigation and hidden danger
control: Compile the risk identification manual and
risk control manual, organize and carry out risk
identification work regularly to create the risk control
list and major risk list, and update the safety warning
signs dynamically; as well as carry out comprehensive
inspection of hidden safety hazards, special inspection
of hidden safety hazards, and inspection of hidden
safety hazards on holidays in a timely manner
according to the division of duties and responsibilities,
timely rectify the problems found in a timely manner to
form a closed-loop management;

Implement dynamic safety monitoring: Make full
use of the control and command center and the MES
system of the production base to monitor the operation
of process pipelines and facilities in real time, and
monitor the inflammables, explosives, toxic and harmful,
high-temperature and high-pressure materials and give
early warnings;
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)

Establish the safety emergency response
mechanism: Establish a complete emergency
management system equipped with full-time and part-
time emergency rescue teams, prepare the Emergency
Plan for Production Safety Accident, the Special
Emergency Plan for Hazardous Chemicals Accident,
the Special Emergency Plan for Special Equipment
Accident, the Special Emergency Plan for Major Hazard
Sources, and the Program for Handling Production
Accident On-site, and regularly organize and carry out
emergency drills to improve the emergency handling
ability.
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=¢Ehelss Tangshan Risun Chemicals carries out safety emergency drills to improve the emergency handling
2=l - ability
BLEBC IRER2EZER - IERE2EEES

On July 10, 2019, Tangshan Risun Chemicals undertook the Laoting County Chemical Fire-
Fighting And Rescue Practice Drill. Upon occurrence of the disaster in this drill, the plant quickly
started the emergency plan, organized the evacuation of nearby personnel, started the fire pump
in the plant area, mobilized the plant process disposal team and the fire brigade of the company
to the site for handling the disasters, and called the fire brigade. With the assistance of the
chemical fire brigade send by the fire brigade, public security and traffic police, environmental
protection department, and medical and other forces and the timely use of large fire-fighting
equipment, the fire was effectively controlled in a short time. Through this safety emergency drill,
the ability of Tangshan Risun Chemicals to deal with large safety accidents has improved, and
the safety awareness of employees has been enhanced, which lay a foundation for the daily safe
production and operation of the company and provide experience and reference for dealing with
safety emergencies.
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2.2 Occupational Health Management

The Group, adhering to the guideline of “focusing on
prevention and combining prevention with control” and
stringently complying with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
strengthened the occupational health and safety management
system. In 2019, the Group further improved the occupational
health and safety management system, strengthened the
occupational diseases prevention and control measures, and
periodically organized physical examination for employees to
ensure the occupational health of the employees.

During the reporting period, the Group had no occupational
disease.

° Improve the occupational health management
system: Establish a number of management systems,
such as the Occupational Health Management
System, the System of Warning and Informing of the
Occupational Hazard, the Operating Procedures
for Occupational Health of the Posts, the Provisions
for Management of Labor Protection Articles on the
Construction Site, the Maintenance and Service
System of Occupational Disease Prevention Facilities,
the Management System of Occupational Disease
Protective Equipment, and the Management System of
Occupational Hazard Monitoring and Assessment;

° Identify the influencing factors of occupational
hazards in the workplace: Identify possible
occupational hazard factors during the production in
accordance with relevant management norms and
standards, conduct regular tests, and truthfully inform
the operators;

o Provide occupational health protective equipment:
Provide personal protective equipment, such as
protective clothing, protective goggles, dust mask,
protective gloves, insulating shoes, gas mask, ear
plugs, etc., to the workers and urge them to use
correctly;
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
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° Carry out occupational health training: Organize pre-
job and in-job training on knowledge about occupational
health for workers regularly to ensure that they have the
necessary knowledge about occupational health, so as
to correctly use the occupational disease prevention
facilities and personal protective equipment. Those who
do not pass the examination of the training shall not be
employed;

° Organize occupational health examination and
establish the occupational health monitoring
records: Organize the occupational health examination
before, during and after the work, and inform the
employees of the examination results in writing.

2.3 Safety Training and Propaganda

The Group attaches great importance to the safety training
and propaganda. We have formulated the Management
System for Safety Education and Training, strictly
implemented the safety education for safety management
personnel, special operators, staff and new recruits, learning
accident cases of the industry and safety knowledge that
should be known and mastered through a variety of channels,
such as the pre-shift meeting and WeChat, to enhance the
safety awareness of the crew,improve the safety skills, and
lay a solid foundation for better safety production.

During the reporting period, the Group carried out 142 safety
trainings, with 14068 trainees.

° Strictly implement the three-level safety education:
Strictly abide by the national laws for safety production
management, actively implement the three-level safety
education, carry out trainings on safety regulations,
safety operation procedures and safety warning
cases, and carry out examination. Those who fail the
examination shall not be employed;
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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Carry out special trades training: Strictly comply
with the provisions of relevant departments of the
national and local governments for special operators
and operators of special equipment, regularly organize
professional safety education and operation skills
training. Only those who obtain the qualification
certificate of special operations can be employed to
eliminate work without certificate;

Carry out the education of safety culture: Prepare
the outline of safety culture, safety concept, vision
and safety culture manual, and carry out the speech
contest, writing competition, knowledge contest, skill
matches to elect the “safety guard”, and other forms of
safety activities through such carriers as the Warning
of March, safety production month, one hundred-
day without accidents activities, to create the culture
atmosphere of everyone talking about safety.
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Carry out a variety of safety training and education activities

MREAZENR2EIIREED

During the safety production month of 2019, the Group carried out a variety of safety training and
education activities. Among which, Hebei Risun Energy carried out the hidden danger inspection,
emergency drill, safety-themed party, safety production forum, and other safety production training
activities to improve the safety awareness of the employees from the aspects of safety knowledge,
safety training, and safety skills with “Risk Prevention, Hidden Danger Elimination, Accident
Prevention, and being responsible and acting consciously” as the theme; Cangzhou Risun
Chemicals carried out the training on primary responsibility for safety production, comprehensive
drill for safety accident, safety speech contest, and safety production skill contest with “Risk
Prevention, Hidden Danger Elimination, and Accident Prevention” as the theme. Such safety
education activities further enhance the safety awareness of the employees and create the cultural
atmosphere of everyone talking about safety.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
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EMPLOYEE COHESION

3.1

Building a Diversified Team

The Group strictly complies with the national laws and
regulations such as the PRC Labor Law, the PRC Labor
Contract Law, and the Minor Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, adheres to the principle of
equal employment, safeguarding the rights and interests
of employees on such aspects of recruitment, dismissal,
promotion, working hours, holiday, salary and benefits,
diversity, discrimination prevention, and equal opportunities
by signing official labor contract with the employees,
maintaining the right to know, right to participate, and right of
supervision of the employees, and rejecting child labor and
forced labor in any form, committing to build an equal and
diversified team.

During the reporting period, there was no child labor, forced
labor or other violations or lawsuit incurred by employment
issues in the Group.

Equal Employment, Diversification and Recruitment
Policy

The Group formulates the Administrative Measures for
Recruitment to clarify the fair and just recruitment principles,
standardize the recruitment process, improve the selection
and appointment mechanism, improve the recruitment
efficiency, optimize the structure of human resources, meet
the diversified talent needs of the Group for sustainable
development, and further enhance the brand image of the
employer. We also focus on the diversity of employees,
assuring equal employment opportunities for all employees,
and preventing any discrimination based on gender, age,
health and other factors. In the meantime, we adopt multiple
recruitment channels, including network channel, headhunting
channel, campus recruitment, social recruitment, and
targeted hunting, talent fair and internal recommendation. For
internal recruitment, we issue the internal recruitment position
information in due time and encourage the employees to
recommend talents to promote the internal flow of employees,
provide employees of the Group with fair, just and open
internal recruitment resources, and meet the needs of career
development of the employees.
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During the reporting period, the total number of employees
of the Group reached 3,836, and the employee turnover
rate was 8.84 %, among which the turnover rate of male
employees was about 8.83% and that of female employees
was about 8.87%.

Working Hour, Holiday, Salary and Benefits

We, stringently executing national provisions for working hour
and holiday, and formulating the Leave Management System,
safeguarding the right to rest and vocation of the employees,
providing day off and statutory holidays in accordance
with the national labor laws, advocating employees to have
all holidays as far as possible, and providing front-line
employees with paid leave other than statutory holidays such
as maternity leave, and annual leave.

We have formulated the Staff Compensation Management
Measures, which covers a comprehensive remuneration
system covering basic salary, performance salary, seniority
salary, allowances, subsidies, etc. and determined salaries
of the employees based on such factors as level, order,
business line, and region of the employees. To attract,
retain and motivate talents, we will organize a designated
occupational physical examination once a year to ensure
the basic health of employees; we also provide employees
with benefits of the two festivals (Spring Festival, Mid-
Autumn Festival), meal subsidies, transportation subsidies,
high temperature subsidies, heating subsidies, consolation
payments and other benefits; in addition, we also organize
many recreational and sports activities for the employees,
including welcome party, travel, employee birthday party,
etc., so that the employees can integrate into the big family of
Risun and feel the warmth of home.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
i%iﬁ i ?\i@&h’r/\ﬂ #&tt:(n\/\)

WEHKN AEEETBEE
ZI3836 A B Tiisktrf18.84
% HEEME TRALHLH
8.83% * WME T/mAKLLHA
8.87% °

TH - RIEZER

BABERBITRERENLE - &
HWBRRE  AHEGHERR
ERGE)  2HREEIRE
KRR - MERE THRE A
FOEEERARBERBEER—
B REEIMAIEAREIK I
BT RBETIEEEHREZI
MER - FREBINGHERY -

BMIHIE T CE B E R o
EY  REBEEARTE - EHT
Z - Rk IE - R RBeFE
WEEHFNER  TREETH
BAIFR - PRIEFS - PRIEETS
& FEMEESTEERRE
THIEH M - Z%T”&%\ - REH
BEIAT - HRfISEB—F—
EEMERRER  REIRE
ERERE MR8 TERW
£ (FE - PIEDER - AEM
B - 2BMEE) - mORME) - HUBR
W BREERAM B &K
MEgAMTZHNE TXE /E
&) BIEDBERE - R -
THBRESE E%%IEA‘U\T@B%
ARKE » BXBR—BADRE



Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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Preventing Child Labor and Forced Labor

The Group stringently complies with the Provisions on
Prohibition of Child Labor issued by the State Council and
formulates the Management Provisions for Anti-Forced
Labor to review identifies of the applicants and stringently
prevent child labor, forced labor and other illegal labor. The
Group adheres to the eight-hour day working system or the
legal working hours of 40 hours per week and sets up the
overtime and holiday system to prevent forced or compulsory
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labor, ensure reasonable working hour of the employees, T%ﬁ e RFEEIEFET
and provide fair, free, and reasonable labor rights to the B #ATFEIAF -BH AE
employees. H) &S THER] o

With respect to employment in 2019, the performance is as
below:

20194 ¥ + B TEMH AR
T -

Name of Indicator Unit
EEAR B 2019
Number of employees Person 3,836
BT A
Percentage of Male Employees % 85
BB T
Percentage of Female Employees % 15
Z B Tl
Percentage of employees with senior titles % 1
SREEE T
Percentage of employees with medium titles % 8
H ARS8 T L
Percentage of employees with junior titles % 20
NFBIEE TP
Percentage of contract labor % 100
ARIBIHI
Percentage of outsourcing labor % 0
L5 IkiE B T
Percentage of employees under 30 years old % 34
303K LA N B LR A
Percentage of employees from 31 to 40 years old % 46
31-405% 8 T Ll
Percentage of employees from 41 to 50 years old % 15
41-505% 8 TP
Percentage of employees above 50 years old % (5)
505%A F B T LI
Percentage of employees from Hebei Province % 85
AEE Mt 8 T LE A
Percentage of employees from regions outside Hebei % 15
Province
b LA B T 51
Percentage of minority employees % 2
LERIEE AL LG
Annual turnover rate of employees % 8.84
BITFERKLE
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3.2 Promoting Development of Employees

The Group, under the guidance of “Building the Talent
Team of Risun and Accelerating the Growth of Talent”,while
developing itself, enriched the training contents and
innovated the training methods by established a multi-
level comprehensive training management system for the
purpose of providing training and learning throughout the
whole career path of the employees, so as to meet the
needs of employees’ development, reserving knowledge and
experience for the growth and development of the employees
and improving comprehensive quality of the employees to
meet the changing job requirements and adapt to long-term
development of the Group. We also continues to improve the
employee development and promotion mechanism to provide
a smooth path for the development of employees and build
an equal and just talent development platform, so as to give
full play to the employee’s sense of ownership and potential,
and motivate employees to achieve self-value, post value and
social value and build a high-quality talent team.

Employee Promotion

The Group has formulated policies such as the Administrative
Measures for Cadres and the Administrative Measures
for Grading to further improve the employee development
system, clarify the qualification standards for professionals,
standardize the selection, evaluation, rotation, cultivating,
elimination and other procedures for middle and senior
cadres and professional cadres of the Group, and improve
the cadre management level of the Group. We implemented
such three occupational sequences as the management
sequence, professional sequence and skill sequence. The
employees can choose a development path suitable for their
post and expand their career plan according to the post
grading system and based on their own abilities and wills. In
2019, the Group promoted 66 persons of the management
sequence, 78 persons of the professional sequence, and 5
persons of the skill sequence in total.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contm

Employee Training

The Group considers talents are the main force to promote
sustainable development of the enterprise and commits to
create a learning organization. In 2019, we continued to carry
out the talent training project for the purpose of improving
the effectiveness of training and explored new ideas and
methods to promote common development of the talents and
the company.

° Promote the standardization of training work:
Formulate the Training Administrative Measures to
promote the construction of the talent training system;

° Establish an internal training platform: Set up an
internal training platform of Risun University, and
developed a series of training courses for employees
of different sequences and grades according to their
career plans, so as to improve their business theory and
work skills;

° Develop multi-category training courses: Provide
various types of training courses for employees,
including new employee training, management training,
training for improving professional skills, training for
obtaining qualification certificate, in-service education,
etc., to improve the theoretical quality and professional
quality of the employees;

° Diversified training methods: Use“on-line”, “off-line”,
“internal”, and “external” trainings, carry out trainings
through on-line training, remote education and audio-
visual education and other means, and implement
the “school-enterprise” cooperation training mode
with Hebei University of Science & Technology, Hebei
College of Industry and Technology, and Baoding
Industrial School by such means as watching the
multimedia, in-situ observation, practical operation,
experience exchange, appraisal and contest, and
examination based on the trainees and training
contents, so as to improve the training effect.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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Employee Training System

New Employees
MABET

Front-line Employees
EEBT

Foreman
R

Reserve Cadres

AT

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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BETHIER

For new employees employed by social recruitment, carry out training
on the profile of the Group, corporate culture, personnel system, office
system, financial system, common office and other major management
systems, and help new employees quickly adapt to the working
environment from the aspects of mentality change and cultural integration;
HUeHENETIRRENAEEERN - ©EXE - AZHIE - HORS -
HMBHE  SRHASFETRHENHFI - EOREE  EBMAZIE
BB B THRBRERE TIERE

For new employees employed by campus recruitment, set up three
training camps in Xingtai, Cangzhou, and Tangshan for a three-week
training, including military training, Risun culture, system learning, team
integration, professional quality, etc., and help new employees in career
guidance from the should knowing and should doing and internship of the
posts.

HREBEFEIRIME AN - FLU=EKIE - ETTRA=ZANE
g REBREEHIR  BEXE - FIEEE - BEEmE BERES
REEMNES MR BSETEERNE TETBESENSIE -

Promote the learning atmosphere of all front-line operators and create the
environment of success on the post through vocational training, production
safety training, post risk prevention and control training, production
process training, seven-type team construction training, technical
competition, etc.

i H%t%t?zﬁ%tﬁ?i FEZEEI - ELRARPIEE - £ETIEREE
H TRPHAR RIS BRI RS - HER R -RREFEIREUEENS
& %%iimumTM%ﬁo

Keep promoting the training of foreman and the standard management of
crews, absorbing advanced management methods and actively promoting
construction of the crews and laying a solid foundation for the production

system.
FHEEETERNESMITARECEE TE - RPCBENEERE  HiE
HEETHRRR - FTRAEBRARE

Carry out studies and trainings from unification of cultural values,
improvement of front-line management skills, and strengthening
professional knowledge and complete the assessment and promotion of a
certain percentage of reserve cadres in current year.
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Management e Carry out training courses and implement learning programs of role
EEE transformation, management ability improvement, performance

management improvement, team building and empowerment for new
cadres, enabling them adapt to the new posts quickly and promote the
team to carry out businesses and realize achievements;
HEFIRBBMRREIIRE  THEEACHE  FEENEA  BEE
MEIE - BEERMEFSEIRE - AR E R M AL ED)
EFRER - BERAEX

e (Offer training courses for general manager level of the Group to further
improve the management level of the leadership of the Group.
REBRRAAKERBIEIN - #E—PRAXEEERERNHEERKT -

Employee Training Performance of 2019 2019FE B THEINEN

Name of Indicator Unit
EEAR By 2019
Number of employees trained Person 3,836
XINEILE A
Percentage of employees trained % 100
ZIEITEDL %
Percentage of male employees trained % 100
BHBEIZILL %
Percentage of female employees trained % 100
ZW B TR %
Total employee training sessions Times 4,506
BB T EI5R P/
Total number of employees trained Person 72,019
b= H= YN AR
Amount of training expenditures RMB ten thousand 55
BB HEH BITARKE
Total training hours of employees Hour 12,178
BIElnEE N
Average training time per employee hour/person 3.17
B TR TR NN
Total training hours of senior employees and above Hour 570
SRR FETIRIIBEE /NEF
Average training hours of senior employees and above hour/person 7.70
=R B T RIIF R NN
Total training hours of middle-level employees Hour 1,740
FRETIZIRRER N
Average training time per middle-level employee hour/person 12.61
PR B TR RE N A
Total training hours of junior employees Hour 9,868
THRE LX) aNs
Average training time per junior employee hour/person 2.72
MR E TR FH9rE NN
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
Bradmes (8)
= \ =

B ALRE

Offer training courses for new cadres in 2019 Carry out intensified training activities for graduate in 2019

Example:

ESYE

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Hebei Risun Energy carried out the “Stressing Training, Enhancing Foundation, and Accelerating
Promotion” activity

AALTBRS AL IR PR (HIUEFI - Z5ERE - (RERTT VRS

To expand the professional ability of employees, improve the basic skills of sample making and
inspection of the crew, and upgrade the smart equipment, Hebei Risun Energy carried out the
“Stressing Training, Enhancing Foundation, and Accelerating Promotion” activity at the beginning
of 2019. During the activity, the main technical director of the department prepared the training
course materials, conducted weekly training on the national inspection standards and implementing
standards for new employees who were less than one year in work, so as to help new employees
to grasp the requirements of national standards faster and more accurately and flexibly apply the
theoretical knowledge learned, and guide the practical operation of employees. In the meantime,
the shift leader prepared the monthly training plan and carries out theory training, and organized
closed-book examination at the end of the month based on the training contents to find out mastery
of the basic knowledge of the employees. Carry out problem-oriented training for the weakness
in the next month, and improve the professional skills of the crew and the project gradually. In
addition, Hebei Risun Energy improved the efficiency of employee training, set up the sense of
crisis and enhances the sense of competition through the cultivation of personnel expert in one
field while possessing all-round knowledge and ability and the monthly adjustment of employee
performance standards. By participating in the “Stressing Training, Enhancing Foundation, and
Accelerating Promotion” activity, the adaptability, work efficiency, business levels and professional
skills of new employees have been improved, which is conducive to the orderly development of
business and achievement of the business performance of Hebei Risun Energy.
RIRBIEBEEIIKT - R85 2 BHIBMBBRERERRLE - ARSEER - FILIBSERE2019
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=¢Eelss Hebei Risun Energy carries out “School-Enterprise”cooperation with Hebei University of Science
2=l And Technology

AL NBFEREIREVA AL R K BRI A 1E

In March, 2019, Hebei Risun Energy of the Group and Hebei University of Science And
Technology held the “Risun Class” signing ceremony. The two parties have deeply discussed and
communicated on the talent training mechanism of the “Risun Class”, so as to provide high-skilled
talents for the sustainable development of Hebei Risun Energy in a precise way.
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3.3 Enhancing Care for Employees

The Group extremely cares about the work and life of the
employees and pays attention to humanistic care, actively
solving practical difficulties of the employees, carrying out
warmth projects, and caring about the life of the employees.
For example, the Group made donation to sick employees in
hospital, expressed regards to employees with difficulties in
life, helped employees in difficulties with the education of their
children, expressing sincere regards of the Group, helping
employees to overcome difficulties and face their life bravely
with positive and optimistic attitude, and improving the sense
of happiness and belonging of the employees. We also
organized various recreational and sport activities, providing
opportunities to employees to show their talents and relieve
their stress in happiness, so that they can continue their work
and life better and more vigorously.

Assistance to Employees

We provide assistance to employees of the Group and visit
employees of poor and front-line workers on duty in important
holidays, help the children of poor employees to go to school,
donate to help seriously ill family members of the employees,
do our best to relieve the life pressure of employees; provide
considerate services for female employees, including giving
gifts on the Women’s Day, paying holidays, special holidays
such as lactation period, etc., paying attention to the physical
and mental health of female employees; listen to and solve the
difficulties and problems in work and life of the staff through
the meeting of staff democratic meeting, forum, staff meeting
and management review meeting, and truly care about the life
of the staff. Among which, we organized fund-raising activities
for family member of employees in need to help solve their
family difficulties in 2019.
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Hebei Risun Energy visited poor employees before the festival
MRS EE R TR At MR 8 T

On January 30, 2019, the Lunar New Year Spring Festival was coming. The labor union of Hebei
Risun Energy visited employees with extreme difficulties to find out the living condition of their
families and the physical conditions of their family members, sending condolence payments and
gifts such as edible ail, rice, flour, etc., extending festival’'s greetings, encouraging them to boost

their confidences and overcome the difficulties.
20191 H30R - REMBEEHHZE - AILEEER

ERBRAMRAGBIEN - Rbfix tﬁﬁéﬂﬂﬁﬁ KK

SR MEERED - AREEE -
Recreational and Sports Activities

For encouraging employees to keep healthy life style, the
Group actively builds the recreational and sports activities
platform for the employees, periodically organizes and
holds various sports activities, including mountain climbing,
basketball, badminton, table tennis, and chess and card,
holds team competitions which are good for physical and
mental health during the anniversary of the Company, National
Day, and New Year, such as planting trees, basketball, long-
distance running, tug-of-war, rope skipping and fun activities,
and actively organizes the spring and autumn employees’
sports meeting to strengthen physical exercise and improve
physical fitness of the employees. In the meantime, we
also organize and participate in the New Year celebrating
party, employee speech contest, employee magpie bridge
friendship association and other recreational activities to
provide a stage for the employees to show their talents. We
hold recreational and sports activities to enrich the cultural
life of the employees, promote the communication among the
employees, so as to increase the cohesion and centripetal
force of the team.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
BRIE - e RERHE(E)

Held the Employees’ Sports Meeting of 2019
RIF2019FE T EDE

HEY - HEgE
—S5HMERRK SHTE
AT B e 2%

L5412 %

EMEEIE  EMEI
Zo—hEhR

Hebei Risun Energy took part in the “Chinese Dream and
Labor Beauty” speech contest of Dingzhou City

AIEBFGREIR 2 IEM T RE L8 X RALLE

Hebei Risun Energy took part in the employee magpie bridge friendship association held
by the Federation of Trade Unions of Dingzhou City
AL TERZ AL IR INEMN T AT S 8 TiRRHES
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=¢Eelsl Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals held employee recreational and sports activities on the Lantern
=4 - Festival

METBS R TEPTEEN 8 T iR

To enrich the cultural life of the employees and further enhance the cohesion and sense of
belonging of the employees, Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals. held the lantern riddle guessing and
rewarded quiz on February 19, 2019 for celebrating the Lantern Festival. The recreational and
sports activities on the Lantern Festival of this year did not only continue the traditional way of
guessing lantern riddles, but also actively responded to the requirements for “Essential Safety
and Essential Environmental Protection” of Xingtai Production Base, increasing the rewarded quiz
on safety and environmental protection knowledge. The contents of lantern riddles and rewarded
quiz were rich with extensive knowledge, not only covering the interesting knowledge, safety and
environmental protection knowledge, but also including information about quality, the Group and
the situation of the base, integrating knowledge with interests, enriching the employees’ knowledge
about safety quality and environmental protection while making them feel the joy of the traditional
festivals, and enabling them to further understand the Group and the base.
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HIGH-QUALITY PRODUCTS

The Group stringently complies with the laws and regulations such
as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality
and has established the awareness of “quality first” and carried
out the whole-process quality management to improve the quality
of products and services. We adhere to the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, and label the coal chemical products and
other products according to the standard as required to ensure
that the information is true and accurate; we adhere to the “Market-
Oriented, Customer-Centric” business philosophy, strengthen
brand management, take the initiative to find out the problems of
customers in the purchase and use of coke and chemical product,
timely feedback solutions to customers, standardize customer
data management, and pay attention to the protection of customer
privacy; we promote the technological innovation of enterprise
products and formulate the patent protection mechanism to promote
the continuous improvement of product performance and quality.
We provide all-around assurance for the quality of each product
delivered to establish a good brand image and market reputation,
and increase the competitiveness of the Group in the country.

During the reporting period, we did not receive any significant
complaints from customers concerning products and services.
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Product Quality Management

The Group continues to improve the quality management system,
strengthens product research and development and design, strictly
controls raw material procurement, implement standard operations,
realizes whole-process quality control, and keeps improving the
quality management work. The Group stringently executes and
complies with relevant industrial standards for coke and chemical
products, such as the Coke for Metallurgy (GB/T1996-2017), the
Coal Tar (YB/T5075-2010), the Crude Benzene (YB/T5022-2016),
the Industrial Methanol (GB338-2011), the Ammonium Sulfate (GB/
7535-1995) and the Liquid Anhydrous Ammonia (GB/T536-2017).

During the reporting period, the customer satisfaction of coke and
chemical products of the Group reached 100%.

° Establish the quality management system: Set up the
ISO9001 quality management system covering all production
bases, define the functions and responsibilities of all
production bases, functional departments, project managers
and related posts, standardize and improve product quality
control to comprehensively improve the product and work
quality and meet customer needs;

° Improve the quality control and appraisal system:
Formulate such systems or administrative measures as the
Quality Management System, the Regulations on Product
Quality Management and Control, the Quality Control Points
and Appraisal Methods, the Non-conforming Products Control
Procedure, and the Administrative Measures for Quality
Accidents;

o Optimize the technical and quality indicators of products:
Control the process parameters strictly in accordance with the
operation procedures, reduce the fluctuation of the process,
and establish the Quality Inspection Management System, the
Inspection Procedures, and other administrative measures to
strictly monitor the processes and process indicators during
the production, so as to achieve high quality production;
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o Carry out quality follow-up inspection: Set up the quality
management file for coal suppliers to monitor the coals
supplied by the coal suppliers, ranking the suppliers every
month and eliminating disqualified suppliers; In the meantime,
carry out the sampling inspection and the follow-up inspection
of the production process, warning possible quality problems
in a timely manner to reduce production risk of the Company;

o Establish the quality problem handling mechanism:
Formulate procedure documents such as the Control
Procedures for Incident Investigation, Nonconformity and
Nonconforming Product; in case of unqualified products,
make traceability analysis in a timely manner and urge
the formulation of corrective measures and follow up the
implementation, so as to achieve closed-loop management.

After-sale Service and Protection of Consumers’
Rights and Interests

The Group stringently complies with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protecting
Consumers’ Rights and Interests and formulates the Rules for
Customer Service and Internal Requirements to ensure high-quality
product and after-sale service. We appoint professional customer
service team to visit the production bases of major customers and
collect feedback about the products and services, get to know the
operation and demands of the customers timely, so as to provide
better services and meet specific demands of the customers.

Intellectual Property and Brand Protection

The Group attaches great importance to intellectual property and
patent protection. Our trademarks, patents, trade secrets and other
intellectual properties are important properties of the Group. During
the reporting period, the Group was not subjected to any dispute,
claim and action concerning intellectual property and brand
protection.
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Intellectual property protection

The Group fully complies with the policies and laws in
connection with patents and copyrights, and formulates
such systems as the Patent Management System, the Patent
Writing Application System, and the System of Promoting
Intellectual Property Standard Compliance to establish an
autonomous and innovative intellectual property system,
specify the patent management responsibilities, the
application and handling procedures, and the requirements
for licensed use and protection, and standardize the patent
writing application, management and utilization, pay patent
annuities on time, protect patent assets, and accelerate the
creation of invention; with respect to technical confidentiality,
we formulate the Confidentiality Management System to keep
the data and information confidentiality about research and
development, technical import, and technical innovation,
requiring maintaining the confidentiality of secrets arising from
the production, research and development, design, scientific
exchange, and technological introduction and keeping such
secrets in accordance with the File Administrative Measures.
In 2019, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals obtained the certificate
of intellectual property management system for caprolactam
research, development, production and sales.
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Certificate of intellectual property management system of Cangzhou Risun Chemicals
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- Brand protection

The Group formulates the Risun Visual Image Recognition
System Handbook and the Brand VI Manual and etc. for
uniform planning and management of advertisements and
trademarks in accordance with relevant national regulations
such as the Company Law, the Trademark Law, and the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as
to keep enhancing the brand value and give full play to
the marketing functions to make brand management and
marketing more scientific and standard and protect the
enterprise, product and service reputations.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group carefully fulfills the relevant laws and regulations on
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Company Law of the PRC, and the Interim Provisions for Prohibiting
Commercial Bribery, and carries out multi-level anti-corruption and
pro-cleanness education and obtains excellent achievements in
anti-corruption by improving the supervision system, deepening
the system construction, and upgrading risk prevention and control
measures.

During the reporting period, the Group did not receive notices of
cases involving violation of laws and regulations due to commercial
bribery, blackmail, fraud or money laundering.

° Comply with the anti-corruption system: Strictly follow the
Management Regulations on Gift Exchange, the Registration
System for Major Events of Cadres, the Regulations on
Handling Violations of Regulations and Disciplines by
Employees, the Administrative Measures for Self-inspection
and Correction, and the All Staff Whistle-blowing and
Suggestion System, and other relevant systems to standardize
daily performance of the employees and provide strong
guarantee for anti-corruption;
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Establish the whistle-blowing and supervision
mechanism: Establish a smooth whistle-blowing and
supervision mechanism, and provide such whistle-blowing
channels as mail, telephone, WeChat official account “Service
Supervision Platform of Risun Group Supervision and Audit
Department”, whistle-blowing box of key posts and personnel
interviews. We will protect the informer and verify the whistle-
blowing information immediately upon receipt of the whistle
blowing, carry out investigations or special audit as the
case may be, and will handle in accordance with relevant
provisions of the internal audit system if facts corruption are
identified;

Sign on the honesty responsibility agreement: Require
cadres of middle-level and above and employees on key
positions to sign the honesty responsibility agreement,
and enter into the sunshine cooperation agreement with
suppliers and customers, requiring them to comply with the
basic principles of honesty and trustworthiness, equality and
justice, compliance with regulations, making no personal
gain, interest-based disqualification, and information privacy,
and prohibiting any form of bribery, blackmailing, fraud, and
money laundering in internal and external activities;

Carry out the anti-corruption education activities: Arrange
anti-corruption warning education and training contents in
training sessions for new employees training meetings, weekly
shift meetings, monthly regular meetings and other staff
meetings. Meanwhile, remind employees of integrity in time
during major holidays, deepen the themed integrity education,
and strengthen the ideological defense line of employees.
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Xingtai Production Base organized warning education and training for cadres of middle level and
above and employees on key positions

MeEERRAZS S EREBMBEREUASERHEE

On August 8, 2019, Xingtai Production Base organized a warning education and training to
improve the awareness of integrity and self-discipline of middle and senior cadres, employees on
key positions and constantly prevent job risks. This course focused on the awareness of the red
line, cultivation of the habit of honesty and self-discipline and how to improve the management
performance. The course emphasized that cadres and employees should take honesty and
self-discipline as belief, implant into their ideological consciousness, and pay attention to the
construction of mechanism and system in their work, which should be strictly implemented and
subjected to fine management. This warning education helped promote the cultivation of the habit
of honesty and self-discipline of cadres at all levels, strengthened the awareness of the red lines
and principles, and enhanced the awareness of employees against corruption, so as to ensure the
occupational safety of the cadres and employees.
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SUPPLY CHAIN RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

The Group continuously strengthens the responsibility management
of the supply chain and selects the suppliers and contractors
in accordance with prudent principles and strict standards, not
only giving consideration to product quality, service ability and
enterprise reputation, but also the philosophy and actions in
assuming social responsibilities such as execution of the QHSE
standards and labor standards. We adheres to the philosophy
of “Win-Win Cooperation and Mutual Development”, implements
centralized, uniform, classified and level-to-level supplier
management, strengthens training and supervision, optimizes
performance appraisal, and implements whole-process and
dynamic management of the supply chain from admission to exit to
ensure normal performance of the economic contracts. In 2019, the
67 1suppliers of the Group all followed the corresponding screening
procedures and requirements. In the meantime, CNC Risun Energy,
our joint venture, was on the list of the fourth batch of national green
supply chain model enterprise issued on the official website of the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology.

° Formulate the administrative measures for suppliers:
Formulate the Administrative Measures for Suppliers,
establish the market access and performance evaluation
system for suppliers of the Group to specify the investigation,
introduction, approval and maintenance, assessment,
screening process and punishment for violations of suppliers,
so as to further optimize the resources of the suppliers and
ensure performance of the businesses under the principle of
fairness and justice;

° Carry out supplier selection and audit: Organize the
investigation and evaluation of the new suppliers, examine
the basic business qualification, advanced level of main
production equipment and testing equipment, technical
skills, production technology, quality and environmental
management system certification of the suppliers, and
prepare the inspection report and enter into the supplier
information database after being approved;
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Establish the classification examination and elimination
mechanism for the suppliers: Organize annual review of the
suppliers of the previous year at the beginning of each year,
assessing and scoring the suppliers in terms of technical
indicators, price, quality, delivery time, service, energy saving
and environmental protection of the suppliers, classifying
the suppliers by the final scores into: disqualified supplier,
qualified supplier, good supplier and excellent supplier, and
updating the supplier database and eliminating from the
system suppliers whose assessment results fail to meet the
cooperation standard;

Strengthen the performance of responsibilities of
suppliers on site: Carry out the supervision and management
of the performance of responsibilities of the suppliers on site,
set up fences around the construction site, hang the slogans
and signs related to safety and environmental protection,
and regularly carry out water spraying and cleaning to further
strengthen the inspection and management of the supplier
with safety and environmental protection on the construction
site;

Prefer selecting energy-saving and environmental
protection products and services: Clearly put forward the
requirements for environmental protection and energy saving
in the bidding, procurement and acceptance of the supplier’s
products or services; for the new renovation and expansion
projects, we give priority to the energy-saving, environmental
protection technology and equipment; at the same time,
the Group will regularly monitor the procurement and use of
energy-saving and environmental protection equipment in
the new renovation and expansion projects of the users, and
report the violations and omissions.

Proportion of suppliers (by region)

m Hebei Province

® Shanxi Province
Shandong Province

m Tianjin

= Henan Province
Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region
Beijing
Jiangxi Province
Others
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group, starting from and aiming to “Returning What is Taken
from the Society to the Society”, served the society enthusiastically,
helped and supporting the poor, carried out targeted poverty
alleviation, solved the livelihood issues of local people; donated
and supported education, raising student subsidies, helping local
students to fulfill their “Dream of University”; carried out volunteer
and community public benefit activities to a green and harmonious
social environment, carried out charity and public benefit activities
on many aspects, and actively organized employees to take part
in the volunteer activities and public welfare activities to establish
harmonious and win-win relationship with the society and realize the
unification of social interests and economic interests.

Carrying out Targeted Poverty Alleviation Solidly

For full implementation of the spirit of targeted poverty alleviation
of the Central Committee of the CPC and state council, the
Group actively fulfills its social responsibility, gives full play to
the advantages of the enterprise and participates in the poverty,
and with the local bonding, on the basis of thorough investigation
alleviation, becomes a pair with the local, focuses on solving long-
standing difficulties that are closely connected with the poor people
but restrict their development and cannot be solved by themselves
based on thorough survey and combined with the practices, and
actively participates in the construction of “Beautiful Countryside”
and “Thousands of Enterprises to Help Thousands of Villages”.
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Xingtai Production Base visited the poverty alleviation village for which it was responsible

MerERREEDRRKEREE

In recent years, Xingtai Production Base actively responded to the call of Xingtai Municipal Party
Committee and Municipal Government, committed to public welfare establishments, participated in such
activities as beautiful countryside, beautiful Xingxiang, and construction of the Red Xingtai, and won the
“Prize of Public Beneficial Poverty Alleviation” in the targeted poverty alleviation action of*Thousands
of Enterprises Helping Thousands of Villages”, which was jointly granted by the Hebei Federation of
Industry and Commerce and Hebei Poverty Alleviation and Development Office. In August 2019, Xingtai
Production Base came to visited poor farmers at Dongtun Village, Dongzhao Town, Guangzong County,
discussed and communicated with the town and village cadres and representatives of villagers to learn
about the situation of poverty alleviation, discussed targeted poverty alleviation measures, and made
positive contributions to local poverty alleviation.
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Create a harmonious and safe social environment EEMNERE DT RIRIE

The Group actively uses its own business characteristics and TEEBENAEFEBEBRER
development advantages and takes multiple measures to contribute BE - ZHEWHE - BEMEREME
to the harmony and security of local community. We have set ZEEBNE - ZRMEETEBER®
up a volunteer service team to actively carry out voluntary and B A %@l?ﬂ)?&/uﬁ_@&ﬁli’&ﬁﬁé
community public welfare activities; utilize the residual heat from g MAEEARPHOELERE
coking in the production process, implement the livelihood project, RATLR  AEHMAEHRE RS
and provide heating for the local community to improve the living RERFEFTDRE - KM ESRIE
quality of the surrounding people; our emergency rescue team BAZRERDHEZ AR ESE
has actively participated in the emergency drill and rescue of the %ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁi}z RtERNLEEMEEN
local community for many times, contributing their expertise to the g

security of the community.

Volunteer traffic direction Carry out voluntary service activity
BHIEERB FEREREREES

Emergency rescue together with Assist the surrounding communities
the fire brigade of local area in emergency response
BEEEE W BB A [ 7 R e S RUE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV R Gl e

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RISUN GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Risun
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 138 to 294, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

B AZ B RS (4E)

BREETEE )

Key audit matter

BRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNARERREENSE

Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

BF A SRR

We identified revenue recognition from contracts with
customers attributable to the coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment as a key audit matter because
the amount is significant to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Furthermore, revenue from contracts with customers is
a key performance indicator of the Group and therefore
there is a high inherent risk of misstatement.
EmTEERRECEREESBEENT LS LK E
uu% HEARENEFE  ARATPEHNNGREGEAER
Hih2HWamREEERX « 19 B &K ET%IE’J
ﬁ%fu BIERR - Bt - FEERRANR EFRR

As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized revenue from
contracts with customers attributable to the coke and
coking chemicals manufacturing segment amounting to
RMB8,621,458,000 for the year ended December 31,
2019.

iR E VSRR M 6T #ER - B R EMRE = 201954121
A LFREERRECEREEDBEENEL AL
@A AR HES,621,458,0007T ©

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition from
contracts with customers attributable to the coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment included:

EREERRENCEMEEDBELENT S G ORAFERD
%Eﬁfﬁ BIE

° Assessing the key controls relevant to revenue
recognition from contracts with customers;

o FHAEREPAMKEEREMNERES

° Performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the unit sales price, gross profit
margin, production volume, material consumption, and
production utilization rate;

s I WMIEFAMGBEAEE  EFE  ES  MEERAR
EREMARNEIRN |

° Obtaining confirmations for the sales to the major
customers;
. HEF2EF A EEEKE

° Checking, on a sample basis, the recorded transactions
by examining the underlying supporting evidences such
as invoices, receipt notes, final settlements and other
documents;

. HMEBREAARR S - ZHEBEHERWER - WE
¥ RBRAEEREMXHE)

° Performing cut off procedures by selecting samples of
sales recognized close to the year end, agreeing the
date of revenue recognition to the underlying supporting
evidences such as invoices, receipt notes, to confirm
sales are recognized according to contract terms.

e EERMFREHRNHEERTNITEILER - RRIEH
XERAESR  WEB)REWRERBHRESRLNE
B B 5 HERR AR — 2K -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
Y\ Az B e S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

B AZ B RS (4E)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2B AR ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
April 23, 2020

B ZBE RS ()

BB RS M RRAEN
BEE@

REREEABNERT  BEHEMWLS
BHAMEAMBHRERNETRA/ER
MEBKERET SR - BEFEZBENRE S
Wiz EFE - RIPREZRTAFRFR
B2ERE AEBRBFRHBERT R
EEEMEESRETEABREREKNE
HEARBBELN IR - BFRETE
ERETBBZER -

HARNBYZHMBENEFREABAZ
ERER

EEBEERSEET
B EETAD

B0
202094 A23H

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

137



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

srefalEt s

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB000
MfaE AR¥ETFT AREFT
Revenue g 6 18,842,038 20,583,079
Cost of sales and services SHE MARTEA AR (16,259,130) (17,173,159)
Gross profit S 2,582,908 3,409,920
Other income HAn A 7 161,520 162,099
Other gains and losses E AUk & B 1R 8 104,970 119,252
Net impairment losses reversed B LR EEEF5E 9 5,978 49,705
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R R (778,717) (727,833)
Administrative expenses TERAX (381,599) (369,050)
Listing expenses EmAX (15,835) (24,562)
Profit from operations A 1,679,225 2,619,531
Finance costs REE R 10 (465,579) (596,765)
Share of results of associates DL N R EE 25,734 89,150
Share of results of joint ventures DIhEEREEE 439,999 548,455
Profit before taxation BRELATER 11 1,679,379 2,660,371
Income tax expense FriSfifsz 13 (305,711) (533,358)
Profit for the year FEBF 1,373,668 2,127,013
Other comprehensive income Ht2mEK = FEx)
(expense)
Item that may be reclassified EiZgeE 7 BB E -
subsequently to profit or l0ss:
Exchange differences arising on BREFINERELEME N Z5
translating foreign operations 8,310 (17,711)
Other comprehensive income FEEMERNKE(FX)
(expense) for the year 8,310 (17,711)
Total comprehensive income FEXHEKEEE
for the year 1,381,978 2,109,302
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

reBaMEMmEm TSR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MfaE AR¥TT AREFT
Profit for the year attributable to: A FERT
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZZ =N 1,363,165 2,088,668
Non-controlling interests iR 10,503 38,345
1,373,668 2,127,013
Total comprehensive income for EBhEELENSEHE
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARARER A 1,371,475 2,070,957
Non-controlling interests IEFE IR M = 10,503 38,345
1,381,978 2,109,302
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) SRELEF(ARET) 15
Basic HAR 0.34 0.63
Diluted 351 0.34 N/A
2019 R

TEBEEBERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre IO R

At December 31, 2019 72019412 H31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B eE ARKEFT AREFr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 16 9,751,346 9,406,195
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 1,144,603 =
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIEA 18 - 1,099,735
Goodwill [GES 19 31,808 31,808
Intangible assets BAE 20 75,914 74,425
Interests in associates REEE R AR 21 351,311 451,311
Interests in joint ventures AEE P ERER 22 1,230,431 853,486
Other long term receivables and H fth = BRI R FE AT RRIE
prepayments 23 1,588,154 63,060
Financial assets at fair value through profit I AR BB ABENEREE
or loss (“FVTPL") 24 222,105 76,017
Deferred tax assets EEBIARE 25 202,242 289,249
Restricted bank balances IR HIRITEE R 28 - 128,000
14,597,914 12,473,286
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 26 963,679 1,009,035
Income tax prepayments SEANIIE ) 28,015 3,787
Other receivables Hfth fE s FRIA 27 1,600,527 1,021,464
Trade and bills receivables measured at AR B AE M2 E KT EH
fair value through other comprehensive 2 5 EUFIE K BN E S
income (“FVTOCI") 27 699,479 3,179,295
Prepaid lease payments FENHEEREA 18 - 27,378
Amounts due from related parties FEUR B 5 5R08 39(c) 167,653 675,244
Financial assets at FVTPL RAONEAERNeREE 24 10,525 286
Restricted bank balances IR HIRITHE R 28 1,073,747 3,453,297
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 29 1,059,857 759,037
5,603,482 10,128,823
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAonEHAERNEREE 24 1,866 448
Trade and other payables B 5 REAENTRIE 30 3,051,228 6,528,943
Contract liabilities AHEaRE 31 938,950 1,074,689
Income tax payable FERT RIS HL 249,305 388,842
Bank and other loans HRIT R EA &K 32 7,290,471 7,618,022
Lease liabilities HEarE 33 19,885 =
Obligations under finance leases BMEREREA 34 - 23,616
Amounts due to related parties e AR 5 5108 39(c) 338,066 779,512
11,889,771 16,414,072
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e B R(E)

At December 31, 2019 20194 12831H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B eE ARKEFT AREFr
Net current liabilities REBAERE (6,286,289) (6,285,249)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 8,311,625 6,188,037
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Bank and other loans RITRAMER 32 1,369,167 1,272,195
Lease liabilities HEBRE 33 26,184 =
Obligations under finance leases BMERENIE 34 - 936
Deferred income EIEIA 35 80,021 68,703
Trade and other payables B 5 REAENTRIE 30 - 68,314
Deferred tax liabilities FIERTEE & 25 36,151 64,866
1,511,523 1,475,014
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,800,102 4,713,023
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRHE
Share capital & 36 354,699 87,123
Reserves ] 37 6,336,705 4,516,717
Total equity attributable to owners ARATREBAELERERE
of the Company 6,691,404 4,603,840
Non-controlling interests FIERER 108,698 109,183
TOTAL EQUITY R 6,800,102 4,713,023
The consolidated financial statements on pages 138 to 294 were FIBBE2MEMEGAEVBWMELEETERN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on April 23, 20205F4 A23 AHLE R FIBE W B AT A

2020 and are signed on its behalf by: TRERESF -
Yang Xuegang Han Qinliang
155 EE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
S e

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RN PN T
Non-
Share Share  Merger  Reserve Safety Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve profits Total interests equity

Bx  ROGE AfBE HBEEE R2EE  HARE REE B FEREE W 4ER
ANBOOO — RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO00  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBUOO  AMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBUO00
NEETT AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note36)  (Note37)  (Note37)  (Note37)  (Note37)  (Noted7)

(Wa3e)  (Wsan)  (Metsm)  OWaksr)  (W&sr)  (WEsD)

Balance at January 1, 2018 H201851 A1R L 80,600 70433 384869 207916 35,006 (20,775) 2253943 3,011,992 93319 3,105,311
Profit for the year FEEF = = = = - - 2088668 2,088,668 38345 2,127,013
Other comprehensive expense £ 2 AR - - = = - () - ) - )
Ordinary shares issued BETLRAR 6523 405516 - - - - - 412,089 - 412039
Capial contrioution from anon- ~ — £ RIRE T &

controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - 2,250 2,250
Net transfer to safety fund FEPEREES - = = = (28) 5 28 = 5 5
Transfer to reserve fund EPEREES = = - 143 5 - (14352) = = 5
Dividends to the immediate WERERAAN

holding company (note 14) R AR (1) - - - = 5 - (891,148)  (891,148) - (891,148)
Dividends to a non-controling 1~ JHARBREY

shareholder ReAR - - - - - - - ST (473
Balance at December 31,2018 120185 12F 318 &8 87,123 475,949 384,869 222,268 34,978 (38,486) 3437,139 4,603,840 109,183 4,713,023
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - 1363165 1,363,165 10,503 1,373,668
Other comprehensive income~ £ 2EME - - - - - 8,310 - 8,310 - 8,310
Capitalisation issue us(é:< 208548 (208,548) - - - - - - - -
Ordinary shares issued BRLER 59,028 1,589,903 - - - - - 1,648,931 - 1,648,931
Transaction costs atrioutableto ~ ZTR{AEER RA

issue of shares - (53492 - - - - - (53492 - (53492
Liquidation of a subsidiary —FHBLTEE - - - - - - - - (2250 (2,250)
Net transfer to safety fund FEVERLES - - - - (89 - 2,788 - - -
Transfer to reserve fund EUCRERS - - - 46313 - - (246,313 - - -
Dividends appropriation (note 14) R8.2% (f3t14) - (426,588) - - - - (452,762)  (879,350) - (879,350)
Dividends to anon-controlling - %3H2RERE

shareholder REniR - - - - - - - - (8738)  (8,738)

Balance at December 31,2019 R2019512A31A%# 354699 1,377,224 384,869 468,581 32,19  (30,176) 4104017 6691404 108,698 6,800,102
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT AREFT

Operating activities REER
Profit before taxation B3¢ A 1,679,379 2,660,371
Adjustments for: AT SIERE :
Finance costs BE AR 465,579 596,765
Interest income FEKA (94,884) (130,066)
Share of results of associates DREEE N AR (25,734) (89,150)
Share of results of joint ventures MEAELEER (439,999) (548,455)
Net impairment losses reversed BB R EEEFHE (5,978) (49,705)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « = MR EITE 641,598 569,752
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 47,473 =
Amortization of prepaid lease payments TEH & R IE 5 - 24,552
Amortization of intangible assets EREEEH 11,154 8,207
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE &R EO W

equipment (55,616) (1,364)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments HERMSHEEREN K - (41,838)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAEEENKE (52,585) =
Impairment losses of interest in an associate R—KE 2N R R EEE 24,000 =
Government grants released to profit or loss BHEBENRTHE (5,779) (3,792)
Change in fair value of financial assets/liabilities ZA R BT ABRNESHEE BEH

at FVTPL NINIEE=E) 4,380 (17,713)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) B 5518 () 16,305 14,628
Operating cash flows before movements in HELESEHNNEERSRE

working capital 2,209,293 2,992,192
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R,/ (G 45,356 (201,545)
Increase in amounts due from related parties & ZER 7 ZRIELE AN (24,879) (5,615)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related  JFE{ BEEL 5 ZIBIE A1, O J)

parties 26,087 (390,167)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K H th fEUGRIBIE I (165,042) (184,050)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivablesiZ A # Bzt AR M 2 EWRTENE FE

measured at FVTOCI WK IB R R E R A () 2,479,816 (260,445)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables & 5 & E i i (< 508 Gat ),/ 12 0 (3,143,613) 518,266
Decrease in contract liabilities EHaERD (135,739) (42,956)
(Increase)/decrease in other long-term HpRETENFIBGE M), SR

prepayments (3,368) 8,406
Cash generated from operations KEmSRe 1,287,911 2,434,086
Income tax paid, net of tax refunded EARPTEH - MBRERT (411,183) (186,903)
Net cash generated from operating activities E& EEFTEHLZHE 876,728 2,247,183
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
GeHenER(E

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

2019 2018
2019%F 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
BisE ARETFT ARETFT
Investing activities RETEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE %% - BE K& E (1,666,141) (1,090,401)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BREKEEEFIA
plant and equipment 66,152 71,613
Purchase of right-of-use assets/prepaid lease ¥ EFAREE FANHAEZE
payments (4,650) (86,841)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets/ H&FAEEE BNAEHE
prepaid lease payments S sE 61,849 92,137
Purchase of intangible assets REBFEE (12,643) (29,860)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERANBEFAEBSNEREE (140,028) =
Loan to third parties ME=FREER (365,000) =
Deposit paid for operation management HEEERRB LI L TRERES
service and unlisted equity investments g e 23 (1,350,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at  HERA A B ABZER
FVTPL EREEMEHIEA 4,068 95,910
Interest received B UFE 94,884 72,276
Government grants received U BT B 17,661 26,051
Dividends received from a joint venture B —REELENRE 164,145 275,459
Dividends received from associates B E A EIRIRE 101,734 18,000
Placement of restricted bank deposits FARBHIRITER (6,509,211) (9,262,610)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits R R HI8RITIF 9,016,761 8,797,508
Decrease in amounts due from related parties JEURBaHE 77 FUB R D 391,499 161,267
Investments in a joint venture R—RAEBTENERE 22 (68,750) =
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHMARSFE (197,670) (859,491)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

S B

meEx(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT
Financing activities METE
Capital contribution from a non-controlling ~ —R&IFERARATE
shareholder - 2,250
Capital return to a non-controlling shareholder E—ZXHIB R RERR—%
due to liquidation of a subsidiary FEFERR AR ST RO B AN [Bl 37 (2,250) =
Dividend paid to shareholders mREARED IR (879,350) =
Dividends paid to the immediate holding REZEERARSRE DK
company (467,533) (81,200)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder [a]— % IR A% R AIR% B9 R (16,301) (17,168)
Interest paid BERFE (480,875) (612,710)
Net proceeds from issue of shares PRIDEEAITISFIRFRE 1,595,439 412,039
Proceeds from new interest-bearing borrowings¥izt &.{& 2 5 78 9,056,398 7,291,316
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings Bz BER (9,134,310) (8,192,753)
Repayment of obligations under BEREHEERE
finance leases - (32,024)
Repayment of leases liabilities EEHEaE (49,920) -
Net cash used in financing activities METHMARSFE (378,702) (1,230,250)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&RBEEZEYEINTEHE 300,356 157,442
Cash and cash equivalents at FEVNRERRESEEY
the beginning of the year 759,037 599,987
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  EREEHFE 464 1,608
Cash and cash equivalents FERRERRLEEN
at the end of the year 1,059,857 759,037
2019 3k
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Risun Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands on November 8, 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. On July 23, 2018, the Company changed its name from
China Risun Coal Chemicals Group Limited to China Risun Group
Limited. The shares of the Company have been successfully listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on March 15, 2019. The respective addresses
of the registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are stated in the section headed “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of
the Company is Texson Limited (“Texson”, the “Ultimate Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI"), and ultimately controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang (the “Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The Company’s operating subsidiaries are engaged in the
production, sale and distribution of coke, coking chemicals and
refined chemicals (the “Core Business”). The consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to the “Group”) are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the same as the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

At December 31, 2019, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB6,286,289,000. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) are of the opinion that, taking into consideration the
availability of unutilized banking facilities of the Group amounting
to RMB7,882,585,000 at December 31, 2019, expect for
RMB4,600,000,000 with conditions to be determined by banks, and
on the assumption that approximately 60% of bank loans and other
bank facilities at December 31, 2019 will be successfully renewed
upon maturity, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet
its working capital requirements and liabilities as and when they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T A R R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

3.

FE R R] B A4S 5T B PR Bt 75 3R
=2 A ([ B PR B #3522 1 1)

PN o8 il AL 2 $TET R A
e 7T BFR B 75 i 5 22 |

REFE  AEECEREABRRS
AAEAEEE (EREEREEE])
B B T BT R] R AR AE 7T B B 75
SR

BB iSsREE HE
BIIZE165%

Bl s R Oy AR N
BfEgnE T
F235%

BB sSmEE  AmENBENTE
BIZEOSR (18R] ThEE

)

B Gt ERIE  FHENESR - fmEk
1957 (BT A) wE

BREsHERE NBERRREE

285k (85T A0) ENRBER
BRI B2 BB RS 2E R

AIUEETAN) 2015F £20174F
HAERFE e

BT SRt & SN - R AE E RN RT
REEFTBRM B RS R GHA
SERAEEMBEFENMBARR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P BEHERME(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1 IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 Leases (“IAS 17”), and the
related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after January
1, 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in IFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial application,
January 1, 2019. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognized in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following practical
expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant
to the respective lease contracts:

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application or leases with
low value;

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application; and

iii. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.

When recognizing the lease liabilities for the lease previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the group entities at the date
of initial application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities range
from 3.43% to 6.15%.

As at January 1, 2019, the Group recognized additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition.

3.

FE R R] B A4S 5T Bl PR Bt 35 3R
?é.;i)i’EEJJ(F PR B s R 5 2R A )
&

AN o8 il AL 2 #TE ] R A
7T BFR B 75 i 5 22 Rl (48)

3.1 ERFEBREEAF16FKEE
(48)

TERAMAEE)

i EESRESARERER
BE 12 A A RE
HEREBEEEERE
REEEIEERRE

i.  RYIFERBHNERE
BEMEMRIZEERK
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BRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M SmR I E(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A31HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

FE R R] B A4S 5T Bl PR Bt 35 3R
?.Z"Li)/iﬁ-ﬂﬂ(r PR B s R 5 2R A )
&

ARG [ BI04
(£ TR B 76 90 25 22 ()

3.1 ERFEBREEAF16FEE
(4#)

YERAMRAEE)

At January 1,

Note 2019
Mzt A2019F181H8
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at R2018% 12 A31 B HFEHKL
December 31, 2018 B ERE 2,457
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental 1% 48 R1E & (£ 5 A R BEIR A9
borrowing rates EafE 2,262
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases i : HER A% —GHHE 121
Recognition exemption — low value assets ERhe - KEEEE 2,141
RIER BB Bk s 2R 16
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases SRR EKETHERH
recognized upon application of IFRS 16 WHEAE -
Add: Obligations under finance leases recognized il : 3201812 A31 B R
at December 31,2018 HRLE A EFIE (b) 24,552
Lease liabilities as at January 1, 2019 R2019FE1 A1EMEEEE 24,552
Analyzed as AR
Current e 23,616
Non-current IERB 936
24,552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

) L
e B EHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. FERAFTREZEBITERE SR

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING XA (B B3R EER D
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED) (&)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily IG5 ] A 30 2 ¥ ] AR
effective for the current year (Continued) & 57 BIRR B 75 a5 22 Bl (48)
3.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 3.1 ERUBEHREENFE16HESE
(%)
As a lessee (Continued) EREMAANGE)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at January 1, M2019F1A1HMEREEE
2019 comprises the following: REEREATEE :

At January 1,

Notes 2019
Mzt R2019F1A1H
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BREMNHEEREEHRSE (a) 1,127,113
Amounts included in property, plant and RIEREEEEIFE175:T A
equipment under IAS 17 M - BERERENSRE
— Assets previously under finance leases — AR BMERE THEE (b) 117,104
1,244,217
By class: =R
Leasehold lands HELH 1,127,113
Machinery and equipment HEs KR 117,104
1,244,217
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(a)

2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at December 31,
2018. Upon application of IFRS 16, the current and non-
current portion of prepaid lease payments amounting to
RMB27,378,000 and RMB1,099,735,000 respectively were
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

In relation to assets previously accounted for under finance
leases, the Group recategorized the carrying amounts of the
relevant assets which were still under lease as at January
1, 2019 amounting to RMB117,104,000 as right-of-use
assets. In addition, the Group reclassified the obligations
under finance leases to lease liabilities of RMB23,616,000
and RMB936,000 as current and non-current liabilities
respectively at January 1, 2019.

China Risun Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR IS R ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

3. ERIE KSR BIRR T 5 5H
SRR (BB R EEA D)

(&

AN o8 il AL 2 #TE ] R A

7T B B 745 5%

=R (&)

[ e VA

3.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 3.1 ERUBHREERFE16HRESE
(%)
As a lessee (Continued) EREMAANGE)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts AT TIE2019F1 182
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position FREVBRARPAERSEE
at January 1, 2019. Line items that were not affected by the e WERBEAZEEHTENIA
changes have not been included. B -
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at IFRS 16 at
December 31, January 1,
Notes 2018  Adjustments 2019
120195
1A1H
SRR RIBER
20184 MR E2E R
12A31H H165RH
Mzt E2HROEEE A IREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFr AREFIL AREFT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and Y - BRE REE
equipment (b) 9,406,195 (117,104) 9,289,091
Prepaid lease payments TEHEERE (a) 1,099,735 (1,099,735) -
Right-of-use assets EREEE = 1,244,217 1,244,217
Current Assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments ERAERE (a) 27,378 (27,378) -
Current Liabilities REAE
Lease liabilities HEAE (b) = 23,616 23,616
Obligations under finance BEHERE
leases (b) 23,616 (23,616) -
Non-current Liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaE (b) = 936 936
Obligations under finance BEMERIE
leases (b) 936 (936) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e WA R BT

=)

N

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended
December 31, 2019, movements in working capital have
been computed based on opening consolidated statement
of financial position as at January 1, 2019 as disclosed

above.

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

154 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Insurance Contracts’

Definition of a Business?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current®
Definition of Material*

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments:

° add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The election on whether to apply
the optional concentration test is available on transaction-by-
transaction basis;

° clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs; and

° narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers and
by removing the reference to an ability to reduce costs.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business
combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date
is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with early application permitted.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact to the Group for the acquisition in the coming
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements includes applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in the consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with IFRS 16 (since January 1, 2019) or IAS 17
(before application of IFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable
value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more

of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until

the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognized. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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e PR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of non-common control businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

. lease liabilities are recognized and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IRFS 16)
as if the acquired leases were new lease at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date, (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognized and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date, and the resulting gain or loss, if any,
is recognized in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have been recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed
of.

Merger accounting for business combinations
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statement items of the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognized in respect of
goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Merger accounting for business combinations

involving entities under common control (Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities or businesses first came

under the common control, where this is a shorter period.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not

larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit or a group of
cash generating units may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-

generating units).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognized is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss be recognized in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value on the date it
lost significant influence or joint control over the investee and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a partial interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
= A

e PR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the products or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

Revenue from the sales of products (mainly including coke
and chemicals products) directly to customers, is recognized
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when the
products are accepted by the customers at the customer’s specific
destination or the Group’s plants. The customers have full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. A receivable
is recognized by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due. Customers have no right to return
the products purchased once accepted.

Revenue from the management service provided to customers is
recognized when services are provided.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognizes
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Lease

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance

with transitions in note 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception or
modification date. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance

with transitions in note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated non-lease components as

a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
= A

e PR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
and

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Lease (Continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated

statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized
in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating lease is recognized in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Upon application of IFRS 16 on 1 January
2019, variable lease payments for operating leases that depend
on an index or a rate are estimated and included in the total lease
payments to be recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Variable lease payment that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognized as income when they arise.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e., RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
accumulated differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalization rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit scheme contribution

Payable to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
retirement funds scheme managed by local social security bureau
in accordance with the government regulations in Hong Kong and
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), are recognized as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefit

Short-term employee benefits are recognized at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits to be paid as and when employees rendered
the service. All short-term employee benefits are recognized as
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

FEETHERE

TIH

PSR F ST HE BB B A RO B IR BB T
TR AEER o

B R VTR IR T A F A B0 ERR B
PR ESE o JERT I A SRR B AT a A
Bhl > EREBNEMFEERTKA
BR B U A BB ST IR B A Bk AN R
KRR MIEB B - AKEHRE
VRN A E RS REMRATE R
AR L BT E -

ELEHRBERRBREEMBRERZE
JIEERABRAEERERETE
FERTUE A AR ER RN E
FER - REVBAAE-RUABE
RRERERER - BEHRBREER
—ARFE R R B BRI BE A8 AR MR IR S A
PRAMENRE R ZRGERNAR
HBREREZR - HRVSHERZHF
BEEBBECGHEAGIRIN M LT
ERYBERVEN LG FTE NG &
FEE STEHRIZFEEHAE
EEAE - M HERERELS
BENLER AT SRBELEREA
BfE-

BELERARETIZEANME QRN
ERPBENRMEELENERNA
MOERRMEREZREMER - EX
SEAENENEEZRENERR
ERERB AT T E N o RS R
BROh > MEAEZEREREDRB BN
EINREREZEMELNETEHAE
= EEAEARAERTENIAB
PRGBS = 28 28 R FRHRN 7] B k8
BEFIER o

BELERBEERMEDNERERR
- WREBERAERTIEF A
WE e D BE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognizes the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognized at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” (upon
application of IFRS 16) or “prepaid lease payments” (before
application of IFRS 16) in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the costs (other than
properties under construction) less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the profit
or loss in the period which the item is derecognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized,
development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units (the “CGU"), when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or a group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
applicable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or a
group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUS) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Costs of inventories are determined using weighted average cost
formula. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs to completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognized and derecognized on a trade day basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

4,

FEETHERE

At
bl

FEIERARAEHFEME PR
REDIRR - FERALRINEFHRA
ARFE - IR FEEFERH
BB E ST AT A [ ET AR &
EITIHEPTFROPA o

TRTA

EEEERKMAIASNIEXZATH
o leRRAEREEREBAE -
MEFHREREEREDRRZ BN
HEEBARKILER BHREE/A
B HRERBE O 2 FRARN
BENSREEBEIHE -

TREERSBMABVNSEAAER
B EEPANELNE S EKFR
VI RIE BB B 75 o o5 2 RSB 16 5R 1
B -RBIBTEREERTHAE
(FHEAAEFAERNEREENRS
BAENNERBIENIBRARY)
SRR ACREEXEREBGR
ERBRNARERREPNE - K
BRAAEFARESNEREELS
REEEREENRZRARBERD

IR R ©

ERMEER - B EERRSHA
TREELSBBENEHKANAR
DEMBRANFEFHZINITE - B
RMEBRNEREEXSHBENTE
HATF B s (RsE ) 5 AR M BE 4R
R E R RERE WA RRIR (B
BRERMNEAARRBY 2—UIE
NHEWERREHE  XHEUARE
fia (B IR R 2 V) S HER R AR E
FERFIE

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

183



184

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortized cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment
that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, are recognized in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these receivables
are recognized in OCl and accumulated under the other reserve.
Impairment allowance are recognized in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these receivables. The amounts that are recognized in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognized in profit or loss if these receivables had been measured
at amortized cost. When these receivables are derecognized,
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any fair
value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including other long-
term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances) and financial guarantee contracts which are subject to
impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at the end
of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting period.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of each reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings except that significant
balances are assessed individually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognized is based on significant increases in the likelihood of risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the end of each reporting
period with the risk if a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the end of each reporting period. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating

of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified

debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognized in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
expected losses is the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtors or
any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortized cost
of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognized at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognized over the guarantee period.

Except for trade and bill receivables measured at FVTOCI and
financial guarantee contract, the Group recognizes an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognized through a loss
allowance account. For trade and bill receivables measured at
FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in OCl and accumulated
in the other reserve without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the other
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred financial asset,
the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or

loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in

the other reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of

the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. XESHKEGE)
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR T B (B)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) SRS ERERE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAREIFABENEHEE
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial HemaER(INVFEEZX(IETEA
liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL. EAnEFAERE ' MIDEREAR
Bt AER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains/
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss to the
extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost, including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and bank and other loans,
are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial
liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognized over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, canceled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group to
make judgements and estimates. Specifically, significant judgments
include determining whether the Group is acting as the principal in
a transaction. The Group is a principal in a transaction if the Group
obtains control of the products sold or services provided before
they are transferred to customers. If control is unclear, when the
Group is primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory
risk, has latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers,
or has several but not all of these indicators, the Group records
revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold or services
provided.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are as follows:

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the management
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of an individual asset
or the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, and has
to exercise judgement and make significant degree of estimation
in determining the recoverable amount of the assets, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset’s value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including product price, volume of sales
and growth rate, gross profit ratio or discount rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
as at December 31, 2019 were RMB9,751,346,000 (2018:
RMB9,406,195,000).

Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment of interests in associates at the end of each reporting
period. Test for impairment is required when there is any objective
evidence that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For
the interests in associates, an impairment exists when its carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The value in
use calculation for the interests in associates requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
associates and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/
further impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of interests
in associates as at December 2019 were RMB351,311,000 (2018:
RMB451,311,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of doubtful receivables

The Group recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast conditions at end of the reporting period. In
addition, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL for other receivables
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL
model is measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. Further details are included in note 41.

Taxation

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatments of such transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account of all changes in tax

legislations.

The recognition of deferred tax assets require formal assessment by
the Group of the future profitability of related operations. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates, amongst other factors, the
forecast financial performance, changes in technology and future
assessable profits or taxable temporary differences. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, a reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognized in profit or loss for the period in which such estimates

are changed. Further details are included in note 25.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the reporting period, the Group’s revenue represents the
amount received and receivable from the sales of goods to external
customers arising from the coke and coking chemicals, refined
chemicals, trading and operation management services. Except
for the provision of operation management services, which was
recognized over time, the revenue of the remaining operations is
recognized at a point in time when the customers obtain control of
the goods delivered or management services provided.

All sales/trading are for period of one year or less. As permitted
under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Information was reported to the executive directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”). During the year
ended December 31, 2019, as CODM identified a new reportable
operating segment namely “operation management”, the Group
reorganized its internal reporting structure in order to refine
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance,
which resulted in changes to the composition of its reportable
segments. Accordingly, the segment information reported for the
prior period has been represented to conform with the current
year's presentation.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as
follows:

o Coke and coking chemicals manufacturing segment: the
production and sale of coke and a series of coking chemicals
from externally sourced coking coals processed at the
Group’s coking facilities;

° Refined chemicals manufacturing segment: the purchase
of coking chemicals from the Group’s coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment and third parties, and
processing such coking chemicals into refined chemical
products at the Group’s refined chemicals facilities, as well as
marketing and selling such refined chemicals;

° Operation management segment: the operation management
service provided to the third-party plants, and the sale of
coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals produced by
these plants under the management service agreements and
commissioned processing contracts; and

. Trading segment: the sourcing of coke, coking chemicals and
refined chemicals from third parties and the marketing, sale
and distribution of such coal chemicals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

The CODM reviews operating results and financial information
for each operating company separately. Accordingly, each
operating company, including associates and joint ventures held
by the relevant operating company, is identified as an operating
segment. Those operating companies are aggregated into coke
and coking chemicals segment, refined chemicals segment,
operation management segment and trading segment respectively
for segment reporting purpose after taking into account that those
operating companies are operating in similar business model with
similar target group of customers, similar products and similar
methods used to distribute their products. The accounting policies
of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting

policies described in note 4.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each reporting segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortization of assets attributable to those

segments.

All assets are allocated to segment assets other than unallocated
head office and corporate assets. All liabilities are allocated to
segment liabilities other than unallocated head office and corporate

liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment results”.
To arrive at segment results, the Group’s earnings are adjusted
for unallocated head office and corporate expenses and listing
expenses which are not specifically attributable to individual

segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
results, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter segment sales and share
of losses/profits of associates and joint ventures), depreciation,
amortization and additions to non-current segment assets used by

the segments in their operations.

Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices charged to

external parties for similar orders.
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s results, assets and

liabilities by reportable segments:

L&ﬁé&/-\ﬁﬁﬁ*‘}l’(mﬁ)

DEEE BERBGE®E)
AT & A2|MOMEE - BE
REESW

Year ended/as at December 31, 2019
BZ20195 12831 HILEE /A

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing Manufacturing Management Trading Total
TRREL BT
EmEE EREE BYER g5 @t
RMB °000 RMB 000 RMB ’000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFT  AREFT ARETT AREFn AREFZ
Revenue from contracts with external M3 P & 414ias
customers
Sale of coke and coking chemicals ~ SREERRELER 8,621,458 - 424,128 - 9,045,586
Sale of refined chemicals HERMIER - 7,155,664 531,582 - 7,687,246
Trading 25 - - - 2,031,549 2,031,549
Management services BRI - - 77,657 - 77,657
8,621,458 7,155,664 1,033,367 2,031,549 18,842,038
Inter-segment revenue HEE s 972,635 161,089 6,947 - 1,140,671
Reportable segment revenue A2H A b 9,594,093 7,316,753 1,040,314 2,031,549 19,982,709
Reportable segment result 2R PEE 1,103,589 527,552 144,157 6,872 1,782,170
Listing expenses MR (15,835)
Unallocated head office and corporate 9 E 4 i J A )
expenses 53 (86,956)
Consolidated profit before taxation BB A% & %F 1,679,379
2019 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERIHBERGE

(CONTINUED)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEE BERBEGE)
Year ended/as at December 31, 2019
BZ2019512831 AL EE /&R
Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing Manufacturing Management Trading Total
ERREL BatT
EREE EmEE BEeEl g5 wst
RMB ‘000 RMB 000 RMB "000 RMB 000 RMB "000
ABBTT  ARBTT ARETFT AREFT  AREFT
Reportable segment assets 2RI HEE
(including interests in associates (BRERBERAR
and joint ventures) AEENER) 8,135,053 8,352,039 779,125 2,163,167 19,429,384
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI HEE 6,100,641 5,242,520 93,182 1,933,655 13,369,998
Other information: HibgH :
Additions to non-current segment FRIFERBDHHEES
assets during the year m 564,977 659,819 60,391 11,861 1,297,048
Share of results of associates ok el UNCIET (3,879) 29,613 - - 25,734
Share of results of joint ventures DEABLEERE 439,999 - - - 439,999
Depreciation and amortization for the AT E K # i
year 292,242 385,259 15,098 7,805 700,404
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

d)
&)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WHRHHEHE)
(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEE  BEREBEE)

Year ended/as at December 31, 2018 (represented)
HZ2018F12A318 158 /R B (8E7)

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing  Manufacturing ~ Management Trading Total
ERREL BT
EmEE EmtE BEER 25 @5t

AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue from contracts with external ~ SMIFRF A 44

customers

Sale of coke and coking chemicals ~ HEERKENMER 9,234,656 - 603,894 = 9,838,550

Sale of refined chemicals HERMELIER - 7,737,620 411,389 = 8,149,009

Trading g5 S - - 2,572,220 2,572,220

Management services B RS - - 23,300 - 23,300

9,234,656 7,737,620 1,038,583 2,572,220 20,583,079

Inter-segment revenue AEEsE 824,582 90,927 2,292 = 917,801
Reportable segment revenue AZHA PG 10,059,238 7,828,547 1,040,875 2572220 21,500,880
Reportable segment results BES: GRIES 1,901,146 660,322 136,000 79,299 2,776,767
Listing expenses EmRR (24,562)
Unallocated head office and corporate 5’%7} ET R E

expenses ARX (91,834)
Consolidated profit before taxation BB Ai%R & &H 2,660,371

2019 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

7> 8h:

X5 BEMRE®)

Year ended/as at December 31, 2018 (represented)
BZ20186 12310 L5 8 /N B (8E7)

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing  Manufacturing ~ Management Trading Total
ERKkEL BT
EmEE EmEE BEER 85 @t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000
AREFT  ARETT ARETT AREFT  AREFT
Reportable segment assets 2B BEE
(including interests in associates (BERBERRR
and joint ventures) AELENER) 8,821,591 9,231,144 123,559 4,339,127 22,515,421
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI BERE 7,080,816 6,244,154 81,401 3,983,065 17,389,436
Other information: HibER
Additions to non-current segment FRERBHHBEL
assets during the year ill 1,075,963 180,540 = 6,405 1,262,908
Share of results of associates AMEBENAER 5,160 83,990 - = 89,150
Share of result of joint ventures AMERELEER 548,455 = = = 548 455
Depreciation and amortization for the ~ FRIHTE K %4
year 223,950 379,825 - 6,828 610,603
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION Wiz & o 2B E K ()
(CONTINUED)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEE  BEREEE)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, results, assets and AEwo PR - ¥FE BEERERE
liabilities. B AR
Year ended/as at December 31
BZ12A310LFE R&A
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFr
(represented)
(s E51)
Revenue H&lﬁ
Reportable segment revenue 2Ry 19,982,709 21,500,880
Elimination of inter-segment revenue Tﬁé"jﬁfsﬂl&m (1,140,671) (917,801)
Consolidated revenue e 18,842,038 20,583,079
Results %ﬁ
Reportable segment results RO EHLE 1,782,170 2,776,767
Listing expenses i Mz (15,835) (24,562)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBBHERR AT
expenses (86,956) (91,834)
Profit before taxation B 258 B ) 1,679,379 2,660,371
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets Ao EEE 19,429,384 22 515,421
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBHERNLATEE
assets 772,012 86,688
Consolidated total assets EBERS 20,201,396 22,602,109
Liabilities 8E&
Reportable segment liabilities AIZ2WmoEaE 13,369,998 17,389,436
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBHERNARIAE
liabilities 31,296 499,650
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEeE 13,401,294 17,889,086
2019 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WKk EBER(E
(CONTINUED)
Geographic information # 2 &k
Substantially of the Group’s revenue and profit were derived from RIERA - NREBARIBH U E MR
the PRC sales and all principal assets employed by the Group are FTREHPEEE - MASEFERD
located in the PRC during the reporting period. FrIEFEEEAMNNFTE -
Major customers FERF
No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of the RERERN - HEERNFPETH
Group’s turnover for each of the reporting period. Details of RGEBBRNEEEETFE10% - FlE
concentrations of credit risk are set out in note 41. PEERBE BTN o
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfA
Year ended December 31
BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT AREFr
Interest income FEUA 94,884 130,066
Production waste sales FEEREE 4,883 1,320
Equipment rental income HRERSWA 5,241 =
Government grants (note) AT Bh (K7 77) 39,292 18,748
Others Hth 17,220 11,965
161,520 162,099
Note: Government grants were received from several local government Bfit - AREBERBIRIBERE  SO8ERE
authorities as subsidies for the Group’s contribution to the ERNELEEI RIS - BEE i
environmental protection, energy conservation recycling {5 FAAE R ELT 32 20 T M 25 (B b 75 Bk
resources, relocation, purchase of land use rights and FF R B IR T 75 B o

infrastructure construction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

A F IR MR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

8. HfthmREE

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARKEFT ARETFT
Fair value (loss) gain of financial assets/ BROREFAERNEREE
liabilities at FVTPL: BENDAEEE K
— Listed equity securities (note 24a) — R AE S W it24a) (2,507) 17,728
— Futures contracts (note 24e) — BB S (K7 24e) 43,804 98,481
— other non-derivative financial assets —EMIETESREE (1,872) (15)
Loss on foreign exchange, net SN 18 E R (19,557) (29,508)
Impairment losses of interest in R—FKEE QR ER AR EEE
an associate (note 21) (Hiaz21) (24,000) =
Gain on disposal of: HENTEIBERE
— property, plant and equipment —¥E - BERE 55,616 1,364
— prepaid lease payments —TBNHEERIR - 41,838
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 52,585 =
Others Hi 901 (10,636)
104,970 119,252
NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES REVERSED 9. COROREEREFEEE
Year ended December 31
BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Net impairment losses reversed under FUTRERBEHEEEEER
expected credit loss model in EEENRESEFHE
respect of:
Trade and other receivables 5 NhHA A 9,762 48,122
Other long term receivables Hib RAFFEWGRIR (4,233) =
Amounts due from related parties LR BARS: T FRIE 449 1,583
5,978 49,705
2019 F3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M SmR I E(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A31HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAERA

Year ended December 31
BZ12A31HLEE

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT ABRETFT

Interest on bank loans RITERFE 264,621 303,666
Interest on other loans HibERFE 89,870 75,720
Finance expenses on bills receivable ERLREWEBE % E R
discounted 124,669 231,641
Finance charges on lease liabilities/ HEaE MEMSRENITEER
obligations under finance leases 11,046 2,858
490,206 613,885
Less: Amount capitalized under W ERIRETENMEEEE
construction in progress (note) (H1at) (24,627) (17,120)
465,579 596,765
Note: The finance costs were capitalized at annual rates of 5.80%-8.00%. Biat - BZE2019F12A31HILEFE @ &
per annum during the year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: B AR R FFE5.80%%£8.00%
4.79%-8.86%). (20184 : 4.79%%8.86%) TLAE
Ak o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
‘e MR CE)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

11.

BRBL AT Z A

BRI A AIASFNER

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT ARETFT

Staff costs (including directors’ B TKA(BIEESZEH)

remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He  ITENMEMEF 426,146 394,339
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme B K@ 5T 2145 32,255 29,622
Total staff costs 8 TR A B 458,401 423,961
Capitalized in construction in progress FEIRERNE (29,774) (13,252)
Capitalized in inventories FEERNE (216,432) (230,643)

212,195 180,066

Depreciation of property, plant and Y - WEREEBITE

equipment 641,777 577,844
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEITE 47,473 -
Amortization of prepaid lease payments ~ FE{ TR & FIEEE - 24,552
Amortization of intangible assets mLAESE 11,154 8,207
Total depreciation and amortization e M iE A RE 700,404 610,603
Capitalized in inventories FEAERE (608,310) (534,547)
Capitalized in construction in progress FERIREARL (179) (8,092)

91,915 67,964

Auditors’ remuneration TR ERAD 5 9,021 6,937
Cost of inventories recognized as an REHAZFERR

expense 16,344,116 17,237,592

2019 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M SmR I E(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A31HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

12. EE - FESEREEMNE

Year ended December 31, 2019

BZ2019F12A31BLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e RH RIKER
EEHe  REUEA A TR st
RMB "000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBBTT ARBTRT ARETFT AREFT  AREFT
Executive directors HITES
Yang Xuegang = - 3,687 800 50 4,537
Zhang Yingwei RERE - 800 800 50 1,650
Han Qinliang E-E B - 800 800 50 1,650
Wang Fengshan** TR - 800 800 - 1,600
Wang Nianping™ FEF - 800 660 50 1,510
Yang Lu** i - 615 650 34 1,299
Subtotal Net - 7,502 4,510 234 12,246
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Wang Yinping**** F3F - 300 - - 300
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry**** REIE - 300 - - 300
Kang Woon**** B - 300 - - 300
Subtotal et - 900 - - 900
Total st - 8,402 4,510 234 13,146
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

) L
e B EHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. £  FESEREEME

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
Year ended December 31, 2018
HZ2018F12A31ALLEE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total

E2 =L RIKEER
EEHe  REVET WiEfEa BEGE @5t

AMB'000  RMB'000 ~ AMB000  ARMB000  RMB 000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETRT

Executive directors YTES

Yang Xuegang BES - 2,982 600 59 3,641
Zhang Yingwei RE(E - 700 500 59 1,259
Han Qinliang )= - 700 500 59 1,259
Wang Fengshan** F R - 244 349 2 595
Wang Nianping** FHEF - 234 445 14 693
Yang Lu** TSR - 176 400 9 585
Zhang Xinzhi*** SRETE - - - - -
Subtotal /NET - 5,036 2,794 202 8,032
Non-executive director FHITEE

Lu Xiaomei*** B/ g = 651 = = 651
Subtotal /NET = 651 = = 651

Independent non-executive MBI IEHITESE

directors
Wang Yinping**** F 5| Frrrx - 63 - - 63
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry**** REIRE - 63 - - 63
Kang Woon**** B - 63 - - 63
Subtotal /INeF = 189 - - 189
Total st - 5876 2,794 202 8,872

2019 F3R 211
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fe= A

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

12.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

*k

Wang Fengshan, Wang Nianping and Yang Lu were appointed as
executive directors on September 29, 2018.

Zhang Xinzhi and Lu Xiaomei were resigned as executive director
or non-executive director on September 29, 2018.

*kokk

Wang Yinping, Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and Kang Woon were
appointed as independent non-executive directors on September
29, 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The emoluments of non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were for their services as
Directors.

Directors are entitled to bonus payments which are determined
based on the duties and responsibilities of the Directors as well as
the operating results of the Group.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2019 included three Directors (2018: four Directors),
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments in
respect of the remaining highest paid individuals during the
reporting period are as follows:

12. EE  FESEREEMNS
(&)

hE&RmHAL

HZE2019F12A31BILFE - A%EH
hEERHFALTRE=2E%E(2018
F:URER) BHEMESRN L3R
EoRMESHAN BEBTERSFA
THBEST

Year ended December 31

BZ12R31HLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTFr
Salaries and other emoluments FehEAME 3,195 1,780
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR Rz 2t 7% 82 104
3,277 1,884

The remunerations of the five highest paid employees (including
Directors) are within the following bands:

IEBRBHFAL(BRER)NFHHNF
VAT AR

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAE EEAZ
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000% 7T - =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 71,500,000/ 7T - 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 722,000,000/ 7T 4 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001;8 7T, 24,500,000/ 7T - 1

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001;8 7T, 25,500,000/ 7T 1

During the reporting period, no amount was paid or payable by the
Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

RBERAR - AEBYEAEFHIE
A hB &S AL HENFRIALE
AFE A KA AR B 55 70 22D
SRR RO HE(E -

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

213



214

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

wRE IR PR (R)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FifERiRx

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARKEFT ARETFT

Current tax BIHARE 1E

PRC income tax for the year FREPEIEH 265,424 453,581
Land appreciation tax(“LAT") T HIEET (18,005) 18,005
Deferred tax charge (note 25) BB W (A 7725) 58,292 61,772
305,711 533,358

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate

applicable for PRC group entities is 25% for both years.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong had no assessable profits
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and no provision

for taxation is made.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC are
eligible for tax holiday and concession. Pursuant to the relevant
tax rules and regulation in PRC, revenue from comprehensive
utilization of resources (“&JR&r& M MA") is eligible for additional tax

deduction.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progress rates of the appreciation value, with

certain allowable exemptions and deductions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

14.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

13. FiSHiR > (&)

REFHFEHAX S BT RE
b 2 TH MR 25 2% 89 Bk 50 A e 1) 9 9 BR
T

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT AREFr
Profit before taxation Rk 75 AT A 1,679,379 2,660,371
Tax at the PRC tax rate of 25% e B R 25% 5T E IR 419,845 665,093
Tax effect on: AT SIENBFEZE
Share of results of associates and joint DMEBE R REEDEER
ventures (116,433) (159,401)
Non-deductible expenses AAIHIBRFAS 14,805 6,506
Unused tax losses and temporary RERREATIAEE KGR ERE
differences not recognized 19,697 17,007
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BT ARERNIBEE
recognized (5,529) (1,671)
PRC tax concessions AR BB TR R S (16,169) (23,234)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of P BIE B2 k2R % F FO TE IR
PRC entities 7,500 11,053
LAT (note) T IR ERL (B 5E) (18,005) 18,005
Income tax expense for the year FEFSHAY 305,711 533,358

Note: The amount represents the LAT on gain arising from a land
transferred within the Group during the year ended December 31,
2018, which got tax exemption from the local tax authority during
the year ended December 31, 2019.

DIVIDENDS

On April 9, 2018, the Company declared dividends in respect
of 2016 of RMB1.01 per share for an aggregate amount of
RMB891,148,000 to the Ultimate Holding Company.

BeE - BRSTEEREZE2018F12A31
ALEFERAEBANE R ATE
EWEEH T IR ER - ZRIBERE
ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE &M
FRISEBPIREL -

14. RE
R2018F4 98 » AR A M&KRIZER

NAEIK2016F EFRARE1.01
TG ¢ B EE A ARKES891,148,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
= A

e PR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

14.

15.

DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended December 31, 2019, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended December 31, 2018 of HK$0.1744
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.1532) per share for an
aggregate amount of RMB626,588,000 and an interim dividend of
HK$6.89 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB6.18 cents) per
share for an aggregate amount of RMB252,762,000 were paid.

The proposed final dividend in respect of 2019 of RMB3.82 cents
per ordinary share with total amount of RMB156,238,000 has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December
31, 2019 and basic earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2018 are calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year on the assumption that the
capitalization issue of 2,437,281,476 shares as set out in note 36
had been effective on January 1, 2018.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company is based
on the following data:

14.

15.

% 5. (&)

HZE2019F12A31HILEFE F EEIR
HE2018F 12 A31H L FE KK H
B ERD0.17448 T (HRHENL
ARM0.15327L)  BEBAARKE
626,588,0007T ' WEERF KR EE
f&% 15 6.897 Wl (FEE R LB ARESG.18
D) AL FE A ANRE252 762,0007T °

BEFRHR2019FERIKARYB SR
TRRARKI 82 BEBAARE
156,238,0007T * #EIE AR B 2 /R4
REERERRBFTAG Lt ERTA
& -

BREF

HZE2019F 12 A31HIEFEMNERRE
AREBERANEEHZE2018F12A31H
IFFENEBREARRFTIZRA R B %
BEABMEREFIBREANE BT ERR
MEFHEEE - RFMFEI6ME
B AL 3172,437,281, 476X H B R
2018F 1 A1BAM -

RRAREBEBRB R EESRERRE
SEENTR T BB E

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31BLFE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Earnings BZF|
Profit attributable to the owners of the RATHER ANEIE RN (A LEFT)
Company (RMB'000) 1,363,165 2,088,668
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AERERBHT = EBRA IR

shares for the purpose of basic earnings ~ ¥J&(
per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B #EE L @A E

3,947,068,493

3,293,008,315

— over-allotment options — BERAC AR i 115,711 N/A“T3E
Weighted average number of ordinary FEMREE R AN S 8 BARINEF

shares for the purpose of diluted earnings £k

per share 3,947,184,204 N/ATE A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
hre %k AR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 15. BREF (&)
Year ended December 31
BZ12A31HLFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) EREARRF(ARES) 34.54 63.43
Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) — SREEERFI(A 5 5) 34.54 N/A g

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. M%¥ - BERZE

Machinery

and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF BERRE RE BAERE TEIR st
RMB 000 FRMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000

ARETT NEETT ARETT NEETT ANRETT ANRETT

Cost KA
At January 1, 2018 201851718 3,923,610 6,812,852 4775 42,342 816,455 11,637,034
Additions AE = 30,268 11,318 5,195 1074331 1121112
Transfer v 521,912 778,846 - S (1,300,758) S
Disposals e (45,961) (7,662) (9,787) (913) (68,115) (132,438)
At December 31, 2018 R2018E12F31H 4,399,561 7,614,304 43306 46,624 521,913 12,625,708
Adjustments upon application & fEREIR B RE = (144,696) = = = (144,696)
of IFRS 16 B8 F165E
it
At January 1, 2019 (restated) 72019451718 4,399,561 7,469,608 43306 46,624 521,913 12,481,012
(E=31)
Additions HE 1560 58,563 16,953 5,300 1,133,932 1.216,308
Transfer from construction in ~ BEBHER TR 194,702 326,551 692 4975 (526,920) -
progress
Transfer from right-of-use ~ BREFRELE - 144,696 - - - 144,696
assets
Disposals e (124,630) (417,889) (12,630) (1,745) (1,177) (558,071)
At December 31, 2019 R2019512531H 4,471,193 7581529 48,321 55,154 1,127,748 13,283,945

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G 217



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P BEHERME(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y13 - BER&RHE @&

(CONTINUED)
Machinery
and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
[ =2 BERRE "E BAERE ERIR @t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANEHFT ANEEFT AERHFT NEHTFT AREFT ANEHFT
Depreciation and RERRE
impairment
At January 1, 2018 R20185F1A1H 813,368 1,786,269 28,535 32,625 - 2,660,797
Depreciation ik 159,348 408,058 7877 2,561 - 577,844
Disposals & (7,846) (1,999) (9,059) (224) - (19,128)
At December 31, 2018 R20185 12318 964,870 2,192,328 27,353 34,962 - 3,219,513
Adjustments upon application & fEREIR B iR = (27,592) = = = (27592)
of IFRS 16 8| E1655E
ik
At January 1, 2019 (restated)  #2019F1A1A 964,870 2,164,736 27,353 34,962 - 3,191,921
(g=30)
Transfer from right-of-use EREPREEE = 33,004 = = = 33,004
assets
Depreciation ik 196,439 427,815 10,656 6,867 - 641,777
Disposals e (69,171) (252,270) (11,174) (1,578) - (334,193)
At December 31, 2019 M2019612A31H 1,092,138 2,373,375 26,835 40,251 - 3,532,599
Carrying amounts REE
At December 31, 2019 #M2019F 128318 3,379,055 5,208,154 21,486 14,903 1,127,748 9,751,346
At December 31, 2018 R20185 124318 3,434,691 5,421,976 15,953 11,662 521,913 9,406,195

BRAEZTEIN - Bl - BEKE
BEBRNFREMFRBREEREZE

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, after taking into account their estimated

residuals, are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows: RORITET ¢

Building 20-30 years BT ; 20E304F
Machinery and equipment ~ 5-30 years *ﬁéﬁ%&&ﬁ 5304
Motor vehicles 3-12 years CLE ; 3E126F
Office equipment 2-15 years WMRERRE 22155

BEMYE  BFERREOFEHIR
BizE44 o

Details of the pledged property, plant and equipment are set out in
note 44.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group has carried out a compensable relocation of one of
its plants between locations in Dingzhou City pursuant to the
local government’s arrangement. The Group has shut down and
begun dismantling the old plant after the new plant was completed
and commenced operation in November 2018. The land use
right and property, plant and equipment were handed over to
the local government according to the dismantlement progress.
During the current year, certain portion of the land use right and
relevant property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts
of RMB3,978,000 and RMB170,633,000 (2018: RMB21,943,000
and RMB9,515,000), respectively were taken over by the local
government or disposed of. The Group recognized a compensation
receivable amounting to RMB272,087,000 (2018: RMB71,374,000)
on the disposal date based on the sale and purchase agreement
as well as the valuation report of property, plant and equipment
approved by local authority, and a net gain on disposal amounting
to RMB93,212,000 (2018: RMB39,916,000) was included in the gain
on disposal of land use right and property, plant and equipment as
set out in note 8.

After the Directors’ due assessment on the recovery of the carrying
amounts of the remaining land use right and property, plant and
equipment, a disposal gain will be recognized after the public
auction of the land use right, then a separate sale and purchase
agreement will be signed. As at December 31, 2019, the carrying
amounts of the remaining land use right and property, plant and
equipment in the old plant to be taken over by the local government
are amounting to RMB9,791,000 and RMB14,774,000 (2018:
RMB18,243,000 and RMB190,384,000), respectively.

16. 1% - BERRE (&)

RIBEEMBTNZE  AEEBETE
M2 EMEEP —RIBETT
A FARENRE - AEEDRFT
BRIE2018F 11 A T FRIE S %
RABA FASAIR IS & TR o + HhfE e
kW% BEREECREFRKRES
BREMBAT - RAFE - B5 L
EARNBBYE - BERZHEOR
EEN A ARE3,978,0007T XA
R#170,633,0007C (20184 : AR
#21,943,0007T X AR #¥9,515,000
7o) MHENBNEESLE - A%
EREBEEEHZRESTEBILAEND
¥ BEMIBHEREERALEHR
HipE W (B & B AR B272,087,0007T
(20184 : AR#71,374,0007T) *
EmMBEFlz A ARKI3,212,0007T
(20184 : AR#39,916,0007T) kA H
FESFENH E LT RERYE - K
B REEREREP ALK -

EEFWEHBTLERARERDE
WE REEORREELES TG -
BRI FERAEETARAMELRS
AERLENZE  BEREITEBN
BEWE - N2019F12A8318 ¥
HEMWBNEENEIRNSKR T
HERERME  BERIBEHE
HEED A AARE 791,000t XA
R #14,774,0007C(2018%F : AR¥E
18,243,000t & AR % 190,384,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

17. RIGHT-OF- USE ASSETS 17. FAEEE
Leasehold
lands Equipment Total
HE L B st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETFT AREFT
(note)
Hiat)
Carrying amount BREE
As at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1H1H 1,127,113 117,104 1,244,217
Additions NE 7,706 60,391 68,097
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE - BERRE
equipment - (111,602) (111,602)
Disposals HE (8,636) - (8,636)
Depreciation and amortization mEREHEST T
charge (26,873) (20,600) (47,473)
As at 31 December 2019 720194124310 1,099,310 45,293 1,144,603
Expense relating to short-term lease and other leases 52 EATHE R A8 & B B R FE B B
with lease terms end within 12 months of the date of BHEEAFE 1655 12 AR
initial application of IFRS 16 FIEME M EEERAY 178
Expense relating to lease of low-value assets, excluding EEEZEEMSHERS (TEEEH
short-term leases of low value assets RKEEEERSE) 9,816
Total cash outflow for leases MERESMNEEE 75,610

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouse
properties, equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 12 months to 3 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Note - During the current year, the Group entered a long-term
commissioned processing contract with a third-party refined
chemicals business and concluded that such commissioned
processing contract constitutes a lease as the Group controls
the use of the full capacity of identified assets under the
contract throughout the contract term. The Group initially
recognized right-of-use assets and lease liability amounting to
RMB60,391,000 simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FEHENRK
31/12/2018
201812 A31H
RMB'000
ABEBTFT
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: AITEZHAE ¢
Non-current asset IERBEE 1,099,735
Current asset MENEE 27,378
1,127,113
GOODWILL 19. BHE

Goodwill on the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 represents goodwill arising on an
acquisition of Cangzhou Risun Chemicals Limited (“Cangzhou
Risun”) and is carried at cost as established on June 8, 2016,
being the date of Cangzhou Risun becoming a subsidiary of the
Group, less accumulated impairment losses. The goodwill has been
allocated to Cangzhou Risun for the purpose of impairment testing.
No impairment has been recognized during the reporting period.

As of December 31, 2019, the Group prepared cash flow projection
for Cangzhou Risun based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax discount rate
of 12.5% (2018: 12.5%). The cash flow beyond the 5-year period
was a steady 3% growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on Cangzhou Risun’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Cangzhou Risun
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of Cangzhou Risun.

HE2019%F K 2018F 12 A31 B4R A B
Bk R B E A MBS T
BRAR(CAMIBIS DFTEEHEE -
ThE201656 A8 H (BLAMMBIZA AN
BB R A B ) T MK AR R
SPREEERE  c mEESERANM
TBRG AT R BRI - RIS BRI
ERERRE -

HZE2019412A318 ' AEBEREE
B ENSFHRNMEREERET
BNBEHESREEA - WiK12.5%
(20184 : 12.5%)MTRATALIR RHEE
B - BBSFHENIRESRETVER
3%BHIIBEEREHESL - FHERE
ATEMEMEFERREARSAREA R
PR EEHERE  BREEEEEENT
Tl wREGHFERRNEEBER
BEEBEBHMSERONTESR - E12
BRE  TRZEEBEENEMEER
BEEE TS EBUAMN BN AKRE
EBEB MBS A AT UL B 48 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

wRE IR PR (R)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20.

BEE

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARKEFT ARETFT
Cost: A
At the beginning of the reporting period ~ REREHIH) 138,554 108,697
Additions NE 12,643 29,857
At the end of the reporting period REE AR 151,197 138,554
Accumulated amortization and ZFEHERRE
impairment:
At the beginning of the reporting period ~ RREEI) 64,129 55,922
Charge for the year FAZH 11,154 8,207
At the end of the reporting period NN 75,283 64,129
Carrying amounts: BRMEE :
At the end of the reporting period REEER 75,914 74,425

The intangible assets are mainly patented use rights of techniques.
The intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
patented periods ranging from 5 to 10 years, based on the shorter
of the period of their contractual rights or expected useful life.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REE N FIER
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T AE¥T T

Cost of investments B A 535,272 535,272
Share of post-acquisition profits and other 0Bk B &% FEU AR B8 D (5 IR 12 i
comprehensive income, net of dividend ~ F| & & 2 E ke

received and receivable 36,947 112,947
Less: impairment (note) W ORME R ) (220,908) (196,908)
351,311 451,311
Note: As at December 31, 2019, impairment of RMB220,908,000 (2018: HiiF : #2019 128318 @ BEARE
RMB196,908,000) was recognized against 30% equity interest 220,908,0007T (20184 : AR
in Yangmei Group Shouyang Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd. (“Jingfu 196,908,0007T) k4 & B 74 15 B
Coal”) held by the Group mainly due to the coal price below the SESEREREERARTRE
expectation at the initial investment, and hence impairment loss HEDBAN0%BRERR T2
of RMB24,000,000 (2018: nil) was recognized in other gain and HARERERERTBRENTE
loss during the year ended December 31, 2019. H - At H=2019F12A31H

L 4 FE BB K A 1R 8 T O (L
B AR¥24,000,0007C(20184F :
7).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. REEE QAT HNER(E)
Details of the associates at December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as 20194 k201812 A31 HEf & A A
follows: ST
Country of Principal
incorporation/ place of Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity registration business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
ERAL/ rEBRENER REBEEN
ERER EMER TEEEHY 4 il RERLLA TEER
2019 2018 2019 2018

20195 20185 2019% 20185

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (“Jinniu  The PRC/March 28, The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50% Production of refined
Risun Chemicals”) (T3t 24 18F(t TER 2008 chemicals
A7) (note @)

MteHEBEIERARN(FEGLI) +E/ i EERMLIERD
(Hita) 2008437 28H

Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) Co. Ltd. The PRC/June 23, The PRC 40% 40% 40% 40% Production of carbon
(“Cabot Risun Chemicals”)(FiEH BBt 2011 black
T(Ma)ERRAE) (note a)

*EERGC IR ERAR (RIS +E/ i EERE
IHeta) 2011%56823H

Jingfu Coal (GEEESHZBEEERAF)  The PRCune 27,  The PRC 30% 30% 30% 30% Mining of coal
(note a) 1992

GREBSHSREEEARAF(EREE) +8/ el RERRIR
(Hrita) 199256/27R

Cangzhou Senxu Port Co. Lid. (BRI  The PRCMay9,  The PRC 35% 35% 35% 35% Port transportation
BRAF) (note a) 2016

ENREEBBRAR WiHa) e/ 201655A98 HE ANES

Note: Hiat

a.  The English translation of the names of the above associates are a.  FRBEATEBEOEXREEH

for reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese. 2% - BERMNEAEZHEAFX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ir e B mR M (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. REE N RIRER (E)
In the opinion of the Directors, none of the individual associates BE=RE HESERE A ATEHAE
materially affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give EMEENEEFEREATE - &
further details of the associates of the Group would, in the opinion ERA E—IRHEAEEHBE QT
of the Directors, results in particulars of excessive length. HEREERERBR LK -
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually FEME R E KB A RIS B R
material:

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31HLFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFr
Profit and total comprehensive income for  4EfE5% Fl| 2 & UK 35 42 58
the year 48,929 201,426
Group's share of profit of associates for the x4 B 554 E B4 A & F
year 25,734 89,150
Dividends declared by associates for the & NEE S A B S IRAIALE
year 101,734 18,000
22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. REELENER
As at December 31,
M12A31AH
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB000

ARKFT AE®TT

Cost of investments REKA 113,750 45,000
Share of post-acquisition profits and other 1Bk B U & RS B M D E BB & 5

comprehensive income, net of dividend | & Eftb 2 E i zE

received and receivable 1,116,681 808,486

1,230,431 853,486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22. REEDENERE
Details of joint ventures as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as 20196 K 2018F 12 A31HAE M E
follows: BT
Country of Principal
incorporation/ place of Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity registration business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
ERER ERAY/ZMER TTEENY ASESENEERELLE ASEBENREENA ITER
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20185 20195 20185

Hebei China Coal Risun Energy Limited The PRC The PRC 45% 45% 45% 45% Production of coke
(“CNC Risun Energy", formerly known as and coking
Hebei China Coal Risun Coking Limited) chemicals
(T AEGEREERAR)

(notes a and'c)
MRS RERAR(TEESEEE . TE e EEERREIER
ARG EIERA R Hitafic)

Huhhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited The PRC June 15,  The PRC 55% N/A 55% NJA Production of coke
(“Risun China Gas") (FALEREGH e, 2018 and coking
BERLR) (notes b and ¢) chemicals

WAERES R RERAR(MEETIRE  PEI201856 158 HE TER TER fEERREVER
D) Hztofc)

Notes: B

The Group, China Coal and Coke Holding Limited (“CNC Coke"),
an independent third party, and another independent third party,
hold 45%, 45% and 10% equity interest in CNC Risun Energy,
respectively. Pursuant to the agreement dated January 1, 2007,
the Group has the right to appoint two out of five directors which is
responsible for making decisions on the financing and operating
activities of CNC Risun Energy, where these decisions require a
minimum resolution of two-third of the voting right of the board
of directors. Accordingly, the Group and CNC Coke who is also
entitled to appoint two directors share joint control over CNC
Risun. In this regard, CNC Risun Energy is accounted for as a
joint venture of the Group.

In September 2019, the Group injected cash of RMB68,750,000
into Risun China Gas in return for 55% equity interest in Risun
China Gas. Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group
has the right to appoint two out of five directors and the financial
decisions about financing and dividend activities of Risun China
Gas require unanimous consent of all the shareholders. In this
regard, Risun China Gas is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ir e B mR M (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22. REBDEIER(E)

Notes. (Continued) Wiat - (&
c. The English translation of the name of the above joint ventures are c) e rEEBHRXEEER
for reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese. 2%  BEMEXNGBAT X -
Summarized financial information of CNC Risun R BIS RE IR BT IS E R L E
Energy
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB 000

ARMFT ARETT

Non-current assets JERENEE 2,715,121 3,303,368
Current assets RENEE 1,736,084 1,117,105
Non-current liabilities SEREAE 76,479 325,895
Current liabilities MEAE 1,799,891 2,197,942
Net assets BEFE 2,574,835 1,896,636
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: LMEERBESERRFENUT

As at December 31,

M2A31AH

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB 000

AREFT ARMFr

Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 137,954 408,261
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade REISEBETEEE S LR ERE

and other payables and provisions) 0B R B ) 555,442 295,054
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding JERBI &R EE(TEIEE S K EHAM

trade and other payables and provisions) &1 718 K B E) 41,357 296,321

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G 227



228

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22. REBDEIER(E)

Summarized financial information of CNC Risun R BRGRE R B IS B RH 2
Energy (Continued) (%)
Year ended December 31
BZ12A31HLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARBFr
Revenue Wz 6,859,104 8,134,525
Profit and total comprehensive income for 4[5 Fl| 2 & UK 35 44 58
the year 971,096 1,218,788
Dividends received from the joint venture  WWERE & S EMALE 164,145 275,459
The above profit for the year includes the following: HIFEHFI BT
Depreciation and amortization s M E 229,744 217,106
Interest income FBUA 11,394 3,522
Interest expense FEMAX 24,101 41,663
Income tax expense SR 144,828 408,831
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the LB AR E RN RS BB WmE
carrying amount of the interest in CNC Risun Energy recognized in NERNPEBG R RERETERN
the consolidated financial statements: HER -
As at December 31,
®12A31RH
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFiT
Net assets of CNC Risun Energy HREBS RN EEFE 2,574,835 1,896,636

Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in CNC Risun Energy

AR B R R B IS BE IR K A T
el 45% 45%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
CNC Risun Energy

RSB R B RS sE IR My R AR L {E
1,158,676 853,486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

) L
e B EHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22. REBDEIER(E)

Financial information of Risun China Gas that are not JEFZ H R BE TR FY SR 1B B I A BA
individually material AR
As at

December 31, 2019
M2019%F12A31H

RMB’000

AR¥FTT

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FERNREAWEERE 5,465
Group’s share of profit of Risun China Gas for the

year REE S GBS ¥R BE IR F = 3,005

23. OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES AND 23. HittRHIEWRIER AR FIA
PREPAYMENTS

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMF AE¥TT

Amount due from an investee (note a) FEUR R IR & 5 E (K ita) - 25,000
Prepayments for property, plant and M - BEREENTEN A

equipment 211,920 7,905
Deposits for prepaid lease payments ENEENRNIZS - 3,056
Deposits for operation management services (B4 EHE RENIZ S (H/:2b)

(note b) 675,000 -
Deposits for unlisted equity investments ~ 3F_F TIRAIRE IR S (B1:7b)

(note b) 675,000 -
Others Hity 30,467 27,099
Less: Allowance for credit losses R EEEERE (4,233) =

1,588,154 63,060

2019 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P BEHERME(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

23. OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

a. The amount due from an investee represents a capital reduction
receivable from an unlisted equity investment recognized as
financial assets at FVTPL (note 24(b)), which was transferred to
financial assets at FVTPL during the current year.

b. Since July 2019, the Group has been entrusted under an operation
management agreement by a local restructuring investor (the
“Lead Restructuring Investor”) together with an insolvency
administrator to provide operations management services for six
companies undergoing insolvency and restructuring proceedings
(the “Target Companies”) to ensure their continuous production
and operation. The Group paid a deposit of RMB675,000,000 for
the said services. Subsequently, China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd (the “Cinda”), an independent third party, acquired the
Target Companies and was assigned as the joint restructuring
investor by the Lead Restructuring Investor.

As at September 12, 2019, the Group entered into a framework
agreement with the Cinda for the proposed acquisition of the
Target Companies and deposited RMB675,000,000 to secure
preferential negotiation right over the proposed acquisition for one
year. Meanwhile, the Group, the Cinda, the Lead Restructuring
Investor and the Target Companies entered into a new entrusted
operations management agreement, pursuant to which the Group
continues to provide entrusted operation management services
for the Target Companies according to the decisions made by
the Cinda. The deposits for operation management services was
transferred to the Cinda by the Lead Restructuring Investor. In the
opinion of Directors, the deposits will settle the consideration for
the proposed acquisition according to the operations management
agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ir e B mR M (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL 24, RARBEFABENERE
E/&fE

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
201912H31H 2018 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AEEFr

Non-current assets ERBEE
Listed equity securities (note a) R E S W) 48,510 51,017
Unlisted equity investment (note b) LRI E (Hiatb) 51,333 25,000
Private equity investment fund (note c) LERTIRER S Witc) 50,322 =
Wealth management product (note d) PEEBELMIZ 71,940 =
222,105 76,017
Current assets MENEE
Futures contracts (note e) HEEHH 7Fe) 33 =
Held-for-trading non-derivative financial FHEEENTESRMEE
assets 10,492 286
10,525 286
Current liabilities mEaE
Futures contracts (note e) HE&HH 7e) (1,866) (448)
230,764 75,855

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G 231



232

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P BEHERME(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

a. On September 22, 2017, the Group subscribed for 13,000,000 H
shares of Henan Jinma Energy Company Limited as a cornerstone
investor. The fair value was RMB48,510,000 as at December 31,
2019 (2018: RMB51,017,000), and hence a loss of RMB2,507,000
(2018: a gain of RMB17,728,000) was recorded as change in
fair value of the listed equity securities during the year ended
December 31, 2019.

b. The unlisted equity investments represent equity investments
in unlisted entities established in the PRC. The Group turns the
long term receivables of RMB25,000,000 to equity investments in
the current year. The Group hold 9.05% equity interests in FiH
I AR ETAF("Xi Gan Railway Limited”). The fair value was
RMB51,333,000 as at December 31, 2019 (2018: RMB25,000,000)
and hence a gain of RMB1,333,000 (2018: nil) was recorded as an
change in fair value of the unlisted equity investment during the
year ended December 31, 2019. Details of the valuation technique
and significant unobservable inputs are set out in note 41(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.

A On June 27, 2019, the Group subscribed for 3% registered capital
of a private equity investment fund focusing on the modern
logistics industry as the limited partner. The initial investment
principal amounted to RMB50,000,000. The fair value was
RMB50,322,000 as at December 31, 2019 and hence a gain of
RMB322,000 was recorded as change in fair value of the private
equity investment fund during the year ended December 31, 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

d. On May 9, 2019, the Group subscribed for two non principal-
protected wealth management products from two asset
management companies, both of which invests mainly in coke-
related futures contracts and mature on May 9, 2024. The Group
has no significant influence on the two wealth management
products. The initial investment principal amounted to
RMB75,000,000, of which RMB50,000,000 was financed by a
borrowing from a licensed financial institution secured by these
wealth management products. The borrowing from the licensed
financial institution carries a total expected return of 6% per
annum. The fair value of the wealth management products was
RMB71,940,000 on December 31, 2019, and hence a loss of
RMB3,060,000 was recorded as change in fair value of the wealth
management product for the year ended December 31, 2019.

e. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group entered
into certain futures contracts of coke, coking coal, and chemical
products with licensed futures trading companies to mitigate its
price risk associated with the coke, coking coal, and chemical
products sold without applying hedge accounting, and recognized
a gain of RMB43,804,000 arising on changes in fair value of these
financial instruments in the profit or loss during the year ended
December 31, 2019 (2018: RMB98,481,000).

25. DEFERRED TAX

24, BAREBEFABEZNEHE
E/aEE)

Hret - (&

d.  M2019%F5H9H  KEBEFEBW
REZRENERBBHEEELHH
BEEEARREMDIEREITE
EEEM  WLENR2024F5H9AR
HE - AEBMYREVEEEEM
HEERATE - NIRREREBA
R#75,000,0007T * EF AR
50,000,000t KB AZEH EEE
ERERFNE —RHFERe s
BMERER - BZFHES/EBER
BEINBERFREELE6% - R
20194 12A310 ' HEEERERD
AREAARET1,940,0007T -
It - EZE2019F12A31B IEFE -
HEEEEMNAAERBRSEE
B ARH3,060,0007T °

e. HZE2019F12A31ALFE * &
SEERKBHPEEEQRIFYET
EX - EREREIERBEEHIN
WEEEBAEEHRRK - fERE
TEANESER(TEERESRS
i) BIE2019F12A31HIEFE
REXERZESBHRTAARES
FEE M= AR 43,804,000
(20184 : AR¥98,481,0007T) °

25. EIEFHIE

As at December 31,

M12A31H

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETFiT

Deferred tax assets FRERRIEE E 202,242 289,249
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE (36,151) (64,866)
166,091 224,383
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25. EFERIE (&)
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in RARFEE R BEFERNERE AR
the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements KERNEERBEE (BB AR
thereon during the current and prior years are as follows: o REENT
Temporary
differences Fair value
on property, adjustment
plant and Impairment on
equipment loss acquisition
Impairment and on interest ofa
losseson intangible  Unused inan subsidiary
receivables assets  taxloss associate (note) Others Total
XA
ERY R-5 WE-%
Rt BENT WEORN
ERFEN RENEE ABAN Bl DMERER
AERR EREER AR REEE (i) s @t
RAMBO0O  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB00O0  RMB00OO — ARMB0OOO  RMBOOO
NEEFT AEETT AREFT ARETT AREFT AEETT ARETT
At January 1, 2018 201851418 39237 149,569 82,989 49,227 (37,097) 764 284,689
Effect arising from initial application of BRERERIERS 1,966 = = = = (500) 1466
IFRS 9 RARIFELNY
gii
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (MkE)/FABE (12427) 27022 (78530) = 768 1395 (61,772)
At December 31, 2018 2018512317 8776 176,591 4459 49227 (36329) 1659 224383
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (na) /st ABE (14671)  (61,168)  (4,459) 6,000 830 15176 (58,292)
At December 31, 2019 #2019612A318 14,105 115423 - 55227  (35,499) 16,835 166,091

Note:
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Deferred tax liabilities of fair value adjustment recognized by the
Group represented the fair value adjustment on prepaid lease
payments arising from the business acquisitions.

Hret : ARBEHERWA R (EHERENRIEA
BEEHEBRBELNENEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

As at the end of each reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses available for offsetting against future profits as follows:

25. IRIERIIE ()

RERERR  XEBRBAHES
BAEERAOEN AT

As at December 31,

M12A31R

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARMFr

Unused tax losses RENARIEEIE 751,056 732,346
Less: recognized deferred asset B EERELEEE - (17,838)
Unrecognized tax losses (note) RUERTIAEE (B772) 751,056 714,508
Note: The use of these tax losses is subjected to the agreement of Hiat : FRZERBEEEBSHREKER

the tax authorities and compliance with certain provisions of
the tax legislation of the PRC. The unrecognized tax losses will
expire in five years after they are incurred. No deferred tax has
been recognized due to the unpredictability of future tax profit
streams. The unrecognized tax losses declared will expire in the
following years:

BAETHEBUENE TRE ° K
ERRABBHREERAFAE
H - WHERERERIE  JIHERKR
B R TR SRR - REE
REREIEE AT FE S H -

As at December 31,

MW12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFr
2019 20194 - 20,125
2020 20204 264,052 286,168
2021 20214 209,202 209,202
2022 20224 187,436 187,436
2023 20234 11,577 11,577
2024 20244 78,789 =
751,056 714,508

2019 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

wRE IR PR (R)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

As at December 31, 2019, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB79,581,000 (2018:
RMB78,234,000), which are mainly arising from unrealised profits
arising from a land transferred within the Group and impairment of
trade and other receivables of certain subsidiaries. No deferred
tax asset has been recognized in relation to such other deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available for offset against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from January 1, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB5,328,527,000 as at December 31,
2019 (2018: RMB4,289,199,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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25. EREBIIE (&)

20194128318 » REBAHMT
M E R ERELHOARET79,581,0007T
(20184 : AR#¥78,234,0007T) * =
EEABAREINTHEZERENR
FREFMEETHBARTMNES RHE
ftb & UK FRIBRUE o I 48 g E B 4008
URNERERECHEBEE  TER
FERTE AT AR SH T BV A A0 7]
R E R EEE o

BIFEPBEPEMSHE © B2008F1
A1 B3 B E A R AR A
TR BBULTEINR - 2019612
A318 @ RIRE M ERAR I L+ R
MEBARRE S EGNEREEAR
#5,328,527,0007C (20184 : ARME
4,289,199,0007T) TR IEIE T T B
TR AL B 4 I B D B B =58
R MEREREETSENR
REREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
iR e PR ML ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

INVENTORIES 26. F&
As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Raw materials iR 543,057 564,484
Finished goods el 186,442 191,726
Trading stocks BE5EF8 234,180 252,825
963,679 1,009,035

Details of the pledged inventories are set out in note 44.

OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS 27.

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI

EEMFERNFITSHNH T4 -

HAnEUCRIE, R A ARERA
H2EWHEENE SR

MIEREREE
As at December 31,
R12A318
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
Trade receivables measured at FVTOCI BOREF AR ENGETE
HE S ENIR 381,893 186,555
Bills receivables measured at FVTOCI BOREHAEMEZANGETE
BB 317,586 2,992,740
Trade and bills receivables measured BAAEFAEMEAKEE
at FVTOCI 0B Z IR KRR R 699,479 3,179,295
Prepayments for raw materials MR BAFIE 677,109 797,252
Other deposits, prepayments and other receivables ~ EAti& « T FUB R E thEYRFIE 63,152 116,876
Loan receivables (Note) EREMGRIEW 2 365,000 =
Receivables for relocation compensation (Note 16) B (E fe W E (/3 16) 272,087 71,374
Receivables on behalf of third parties as atrading ~ {FAR SRIBRKE=H WA
agency 213,872 -
Deductible input Value Added Tax and ARBAEERREN
prepaid other taxes and charges HthERER 58,654 84,976
Less: impairment o ORE (49,347) (49,014)
Other receivables Hih A 1,600,527 1,021,464
2019 R

TEBEEBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI

(CONTINUED)

Note: As at 31 December 2019, loan receivable of RMB300,000,000
represents an entrusted loan to a third party through a licensed
financial institution, which carries interest at 7.2% and will be

matured in July 2020.

As at 1 January 2018, trade and bill receivables from contracts with

customers amounted to RMB2,918,850,000.

The customers usually settle the sales by cash or bills. The credit
period granted to the customers who settle in cash is usually no
more than 30 days, interest free with no collateral. Aging of trade
receivables based on invoice dates, which approximated the

respective revenue recognition dates, are as follows:

27.

HA W RIE R D REF A
Hi2EWHEENE SR
AR EWRE (&)

Ktet - 12019128318 * BIRERAR
#300,000,000 T &iBiE—RIFHES
BEEEE - TIRENETER
HEROT B BT 2% - W #2020
F7THEH -

R2018F1A1H  KEEFALHN
oW REREREZE AR
2,918,850,0007T ©

ERFBEARSIERETEHHE
B ARAGBTURSEENTFPH
EEERE BR300 (58RI K
Hm) - REZAHZINE S REKK
TERR (BRI R R B IS 1
T

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AR¥Fir
Within one month —EAR 364,889 177,022
1to 3 months 123fEA 4,890 3,485
3 to 6 months 3%26fEA 2,792 961
6 to 12 months 6=12{E A 9,322 5,087
381,893 186,555

No credit period is offered for sales to be settled by bills, carrying
interest at market rates. Bills receivable are bank acceptance notes
and the average aging based on the maturity date is from 90 days

to 360 days.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables are

set out in note 41.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS 27. HiEWRIE RDAERA

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

The following bills receivable as at December 31, 2019 and 2018
were transferred to banks or suppliers by discounting, pledging
to banks or endorsing those receivables on a full recourse basis.
As the Group has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to these receivables, it continues to recognize the
full carrying amounts of the receivables and the corresponding
liabilities are included in secured borrowings or trade payables,
whichever is appropriate. These financial assets are carried at
FVTOCI.

Hi2EWHEENE SR
AR EWRE (&)

LA AR 20194F % 2018F 12 H31HE
BIRNA B RELENE - KT
ZERWHETFRITHAEEZZTER
RIBMEE TIRTH BRI ERE
B o BN ER B 30 A B AR 22 S R
HRBRE D R & E R - g ERE
REBRBEHN2EEREREEAE
FFABEAERNE S B RIE (UAE
RERE) - ZEeMEBEERANAR
AEM 2 -

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Carrying amount of transferred assets BEREEREE 159,808 2,765,994
Carrying amount of associated payables TR R e R ROIB BRI (B (A737.30)
to suppliers (note 30) (159,808) (2,596,558)
Carrying amount of associated loans BB RREE R 732)
(note 32) - (169,436)

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, bills receivable issued among
subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions have been
discounted with full recourse to secure bank borrowings amounting
RMB1,103,880,000 and RMB3,109,052,000 respectively, and these
bills receivable have been eliminated in these consolidated financial
statements (note 32).

R2019F K 2018F12A31H * A&H
MEAR s HAREBRAATHRZE
THEBEEZNEEmBRERSE
AR LA A Bl A A REE1,103,880,000
TR AR#3,109,052,000CH R 1T (&
RIERE  MZSEUEBRERZSE
tRA BTSRRI 8 (M EES2) -

2019 Fi#R
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards relating to certain bills receivable
discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers even if the banks
and suppliers have the right of recourse. The Group’s obligations to
the corresponding counterparties were discharged in accordance
with the commercial practice in the PRC and the risk of the default
in payment of the endorsed and discounted bills receivable is
remote because all endorsed and discounted bills receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable banks in the PRC. As a
result, the relevant assets and liabilities were derecognized and
no longer included in the consolidated financial statements. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of
these endorsed and discounted bills receivable at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

27.

H A fEWKRIE, R A EE A
Hit2EREROE S ER
AR EWRE (&)

RBERR - AEECEERFHEET
BRTROKEETHEBNEEE
REBA R B K B R (AR R T AN
HEBAERE) - AREHHERR
SHFNEHDHRPBEHEELIR
B? EEEREMBEBREENMNRK

BHORRSHMTEN ER/MALEE
%&E,ﬂiﬁfﬁﬁﬁuﬂzi%)ﬁﬂaﬂhlﬂﬁ%
HERITHITRER - Bt - HEEE
REBERILERATBRBENGS
FBmERD  NEREHR - AKE
AZEEEEREMBRRKREREZY
AR R HH S AR

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Discounted bills for raising cash BEMRERUESERS 370,118 881,059
Endorsed bills for settlement of BEEEERNENEMNHERZIE
payables to suppliers 2,482,855 2,444 176
Outstanding endorsed and discounted bills A& BRENHAREHE B E
receivable with recourse B RIREREE 2,852,973 3,325,235

The outstanding endorsed and discounted bills receivable will be
matured within 12 months from each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

28. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s restricted bank balances
placed to secure various liabilities of the Group are as follows:

28.

ZRHRITAER

ARERAEESERABENAEER
RBIERTT SRR BRE(ELA T -

As at December 31,

M12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKETFT ARE T
Restricted bank balances to secure: BROZR BRI TS
Bills payable (note) e E8& (H1E) 769,018 2,505,852
Letters of credit ERZE 45,707 239,656
Futures contracts HEAHN 119,301 148,158
Bank loans RITER 139,721 661,972
Other loans HMER - 25,659
1,073,747 3,581,297
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: DITEEWAE -
Non-current assets ERBEE - 128,000
Current assets MEVEE 1,073,747 3,453,297
1,073,747 3,581,297

Note: Certain restricted bank balance were placed to secure bills issued
among subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions
which have been discounted with full recourse to secure bank
borrowings of RMB1,103,880,000 and RMB3,109,052,000 as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018 respectively. Further details of
which are set out in notes 27 and 32 respectively.

Restricted bank balances are deposited with banks mainly in the
PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. These
bank deposits carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.30% to
2.10% per annum as at December 31, 2019 (2018: 0.30% to 2.10%).

HiaE - o TR HRIT A AR IK A
SEMNBARREEANRRAMBMR
SELENER  ZSZEEETH
R MEEZHEERE - LAR20194F
%2018 12 A31 8 % B K & E
AR®1,103,880,0007T & A R#&
3,109,052,000 THIERTTE R - Hi#E
— S IBERM 27 32 ©

ZRRFIRITHE B EZT AT E AR
7 MEHFEMNESEAZHRREKA
BE AN EYBE SR FIFT AR IR » ZEIRITTF
FIETMIGFEET B - R20196F12 731
BEHEFMENF0.30%%F2.10%(2018
£ :0.30%%2.10%) °

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G 24



242

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P BEHERME(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances, included bank deposits, carried interest at
market interest rate ranging from 0.35% to 0.40% per annum as
at December 31, 2019 and 2018. Bank balances and cash as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were mainly denominated in RMB
which is not a freely convertible currency in the international market
and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Denominated in the currency other than the functional currency of
relevant group entities:

29.

RERREEEY

R2019F K 2018F 12A31H » R1T4E
BREERTERETSENENTE
F0.35%£0.40%5T B o R2019F &
2018F12 A1 BHMIRITAEB LIRS E
ZUARBEEE - ARBIWIEERHF
M LEBRLBRNER  mM%EES
B () P (B9 78 52 HP B DR B 0 A BEE 5 BR
il o

S AR 42 L AR e T B S M LA S M
MEEHE -

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFr
United States Dollars (“USD") E(ET); 5,722 29,089
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") BT 42,495 2,040
Others (note) Hi(Hzz) 175 198
48,392 31,327

Note: Others mainly contain Euro (“EUR”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and
Renminbi.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. ESRHAMENKIE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Trade payables B S ENRIE 1,249,686 1,276,180
Payables to be settled by the endorsed HEERREIRERMERNTIE
bills receivable (note 27) (Hizt27) 159,808 2,596,558
Bills payable EREE 458,236 1,504,737
Payables on behalf of third parties as a ERRGRERRE=FEFNFIE
trading agency 357,546 -
Payables for construction in progress frETIRENRIA
— interest-bearing —& B - 96,910
— non-interest-bearing — T B 469,739 613,017
Other payables and accruals Hib R RIERERT B A 356,213 509,855
3,051,228 6,597,257
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DITES AR -
Current liabilities mRENBE 3,051,228 6,528,943
Non-current liabilities JEmEIAE - 68,314
3,051,228 6,597,257
Except for certain payables for construction in progress above B _baipdie — a1 B HAR S T TR
due after more than one year, all trade and other payables are due FERIFRIBON - FRB B 5 RE MR FRIA
within one year. The average credit period on purchases of goods is BR—FEREIE - BEEMOTEHEEER
30 to 90 days. HA30E 90K °

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G 243



244

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A31HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of each of the reporting period:

30. EZRHMEMREGE)

URTTIREREHRIZERTAHNE

S RN FIBRRE DT

As at December 31,

M12831H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKETFT ARE T
Within 3 months 3EAR 928,177 967,908
3 to 6 months 3261 A 109,434 88,071
6 to 12 months 6= 121E A 111,619 135,241
1-2vyears 1226 62,155 50,109
2 -3 years 2E3F 18,103 2,324
More than 3 years 3FEA 20,198 32,527
1,249,686 1,276,180

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities primarily represent advance from customers
when the Group receives payments in advance of the delivery of
products, and are expected to be settled within one year. For the
contract liabilities as at January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2018,
the entire balances were recognized as revenue to profit or loss in
the next reporting year.

As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB1,117,645,000.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

31. ENEE

AHEBEERREASERRNER
AW R R B R MZA R T AR
—FREHE - HR2018F1 A1 K
2018F 12 A31HM AN EE + 24
BET—EARSTFENEBZTHERE

ik -

R2018F1A1H ' AHEBEAARE

1,117,645,0007T °
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 32. RITREMER
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank and other loans is as RITREMEFERBEI AT
follows:
As at December 31,
M12831H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFr
Bank loans RITER
Secured [EEw 3,146,812 3,201,500
Unsecured EiS i 2,981,503 1,334,499
Other loans HMER
Secured ez 1,090,296 815,730
Unsecured Eiiswi 337,147 260,000
Discounted bills financing (note 27) ALIRE g R & (K72 27)
— Discounted bills receivable from —REFE=H LR KRR
third parties - 169,436
— Discounted bills receivable from —READRMBARA
subsidiaries of the Company BLI8 FEUN 2R 1,103,880 3,109,052
8,659,638 8,890,217
2019 Fi#R
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 32. RITRHEMERGE
At the end of each of the reporting period, the bank and other loans RERESER  RITREMEREAT

were repayable as follows: EEREROT

As at December 31,

M"12A31H
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFR ARETFT
Within 1 year 1FR 7,290,471 7,618,022
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A _EE2F R 1,049,375 1,191,352
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F A LBSFA 319,792 80,843
8,659,638 8,890,217
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: DIERHA R -
Current liabilities mENaE 7,290,471 7,618,022
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 1,369,167 1,272,195
8,659,638 8,890,217
Bank and other borrowings denominated in currencies other than NEERBMNNEEE NN EEE

HERTT R ELMBEREPIT

the functional currencies of respective entities are set out below:

As at December 31,

246

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
UsD eI 1,424,685 375,915
EUR o 116,987 117,396
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 32. RITRHEMERE)

The carrying amount of the bank and other borrowings and the #R1T I H At {8 S BRI B I ) R &5 [
range of interest rates are as below: T

As at December 31,

M12831H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AREF T % ARETIT %
Fixed rate bank and other EBIRITREMER
borrowings 5,302,791 1.50-12.00 5,861,040 1.50-12.00
Floating rate bank and R RIRIT R EABE R
other borrowings 3,356,847 3.51-11.70 3,029,177 4.35-11.81

8,659,638 8,890,217

REENF B EFTIRBBERTRER
EMEETR - MEBAETER -

The Group’s variable-rate borrowings carry interest at LIBOR.
Interest is reset every month.

EEMEMEREANE - BE &R

The secured other loans represent mortgage loans from the

licensed finance companies secured by property, plant and
equipment and right-of use assets, as well as loans from licensed
financial institutions secured by the Group’s bank deposits.

Details of the assets pledged for securing the banking facilities of
the Group are set out in Note 44.

Except for the bank and other loans guaranteed by the related
parties as detailed in note 39(d), a Group’s bank loan of
RMB30,000,000 as at December 31, 2019 and December 31,
2018 is fully guaranteed by an independent guarantee company,
and in the meantime, the Group provides counter guarantee to the
independent guarantee company for this bank loan.

BREREEEFEROTERMBER
BRIBER  URUAEBRITER
REROS RS REEER -

REERBUSRITRE MIEEMAE
ERIEHNMITE44

BREAEE S ERMRIT R EMERGHS
BN HIEE39(d)) SN - 72019512 A 31
AX%2018F 12 A1 B A EEIRIT
B AR30,000,0007TH — KB
ERARZEER - AR - AEEH
FZERTE MBI ER DRI ERIE
R

IIF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P BEHERME(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payables:

33.

HERE

HEABRMNKA :

31/12/2019
2019%12H31H
RMB’000
AREFTT
Within one year 1F A 19,885
Within a period of more than one year 1F A H{B2F R
but not more than two years 20,825
Within a period of more than two years 2F LA HBSFA
but not more than five years 5,359
46,069
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months & : RENEEE FEM2EA NEEHN L E
shown under current liabilities (19,885)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JEmBAEE T AR I2BAREENSRE
shown under non-current liabilities 26,184
34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 34. MEHERE
As at

December 31, 2018
#2018%12A31H

RMB’000
AREFT

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DESHAR -
Current liabilities mEaE 23,616
Non-current liabilities EmEBAEE 936
24,552

The Group entered into several finance leases with the licensed
financial institutions for its equipment during the year ended
December 31, 2018. The average lease term for those finance
leases entered is 5 years. Interest rates underlying all obligations
under finance leases are fixed at the respective contract dates
ranging from 9.2% to 9.6% per annum as at December 31, 2018.
The Group has the options to purchase the equipment at immaterial
consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES  34. B E%18(#)
(CONTINUED)

The Group has obligations under finance leases repayable as AEBHNBREHERBETEREER
follows: LU

As at December 31,2018

72018 12A831H
Present value
of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments lease payments
REHENRRE SHERENHER

RMB'000 RMB 000

ARETFT ARETT

Within 1 year 167X 23,616 24,503
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A LE2FR 936 838
24,552 25,341
Less: Total future interest expenses W RRFIB R B (789)
Present value of lease obligations MERIERE 24,552
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

35. DEFERRED INCOME 35. ELEWRA

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31BLEFE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
Government grant related to assets REYREERBOBITHEE
at the beginning of the year 74,050 51,791
Additions NE 17,661 26,051
Released to profit or loss EEER (5,779) (3,792)
At the end of the year RER 85,932 74,050
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DIEEWAE
Current liabilities BN A B G AR AL ER RIE)
(included in other payables) 5,911 5,347
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 80,021 68,703
85,932 74,050
Deferred income arising from government grants relating to assets B FE G B A IR #H B EE AR AR E UK
represents the government subsidies obtained in relation to the )\?‘é‘ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁim@ﬂﬂg&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’x‘ﬁﬁ
purchase of the land use rights and the infrastructure construction, ERPTERITREL - RNREMBKR
which was included in the consolidated statement of financial RARIABELTEWA - AEGZEER
position as deferred income and credited to the consolidated BRI EEEMNTB A F A F
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on ANEABEREEMEEmKEEE °

a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant
depreciable assets.
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. A
As at December 31, As at December 31,
M2A31H MW12A31H
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018%F 20194 2018
Number of Number of
shares shares HKD ‘000 HKD 000
Vv Rir#E FET FET
Authorised ETE
Shares of HKD0.10 each Fk010B TR
Authorized ordinary shares: EELER
At beginning of the year F4) 10,000,000,000 9,815,418,172 1,000,000 981,542
Conversion (note a) i (ffita) - 184,581,828 - 18,458
At end of the year FER 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Authorized Series A shares: EEARTIRR |
At beginning of the year F40 - 184,581,828 - 18,458
Conversion (note a) 218 (fita) - (184,581,828) - (18,458)
Atend of the year £ S - = - .
Issued and fully paid of ordinary shares: 2377 &2 & #A%
At the beginning of the year F1 962,718,524 697,742,600 96,272 69,774
Conversion (note a) @i (ffita) - 184,581,828 - 18,458
Share issued (notes b & ¢) BEIRMD B0 k) 690,000,000 80,394,096 69,000 8,040
Capitalisation of shares (note ¢) RIVERMEWritc) 2,437,281,476 = 243,728 =
At the end of the year FX 4,090,000,000 962,718,524 409,000 96,272
Issued and fully paid of Series A shares: 2347 R RAZFIR :
At the beginning of the year F4) - 184,581,828 - 18,458
Conversion (note a) @i lita) - (184,581,828) - (18,458)
At the end of the year FR - - - -
2019 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P BEHERME(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

36. BRA(#)

As at December 31,

M12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKETFT AREFiT
Presented in the consolidated statement RERE B ERZES A -
of financial position as:
At the beginning of the year F4) 87,123 80,600
Share issued BTG 59,028 6,523
Capitalisation of shares (note c) B EA bW Fe) 208,548 =
At the end of the year FR 354,699 87,123
Notes: Mt -
a. As at December 31, 2017, the authorized share capital of a. R2017F 12831 H @ R

the Company was HKD1,000,000,000 by the creation of
10,000,000,000 shares of a par value of HKDO0.10 each divided
into 9,815,418,172 ordinary Shares and 184,581,828 Series A
shares. Any Series A Shares may, at the option of the holder,
be converted at any time into fully paid ordinary shares. One
Series A share will be converted into one ordinary share subject
to adjustment in dilutive events, if any. The holders of ordinary
shares and Series A shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at shareholders meetings of the Company in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. All ordinary shares and
Series A shares rank pari passu in all respects. On April 4, 2018,
the 184,581,828 Series A shares were converted to 184,581,828
ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
‘e MR CE)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 36. BRZ ()

Notes: (Continued) Htet - (8B)

On April 13, 2018, 12,664,064 and 6,332,032 ordinary shares
of the Company were issued for cash of USD10,000,000 and
HKD39,120,000 (equivalent to RMB94,721,000) to provide
additional working capital to the Company.

On May 15, 2018, 36,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were issued for cash of USD29,845,000 (equivalent to
RMB189,157,000) to provide additional working capital to the
Company.

On June 20, 2018, 24,798,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were issued for cash of USD19,844,000 (equivalent to
RMB128,161,000) to provide additional working capital to the
Company.

On March 15, 2019 and April 4, 2019, the Company issued a total
of 600,000,000 ordinary shares and 90,000,000 overallotment
ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each at HKD2.80 each for cash by
way of public offer (“Public Offer”). Based on the offer price of
HKD2.80 per share, the gross proceeds received by the Company
was HKD1,932,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,648,931,000).
Upon listing of the Company’s shares and pursuant to the
written resolution of the shareholders passed on February 20,
2019, the capitalization of HKD243,728,147.60 (equivalent to
RMB208,548,000) out of the share premium account of the
Company in paying up in full at par 2,437,281,476 shares
for allotment and issue to the qualifying shareholders of the
Company.

M2018F4A138 © AXA A
12,664,0643% 5 6,332,032/% &
BAE 5 BILAZE £10,000,000% 7T
}%39,120,0008 T (HHER AR
94,721,00070) 1T * AARARH
HINSBEESD ©

R2018F5 158 © AAQ A
36,600,000 L @A AR &
29,845,000% T (HHER AR
189,157,00070) 217 + AARQ AR
HEINEEES -

R2018F6 A208 © KNAQ A
24,798,000 EBBRIANR &
19,844,000 T (HERARYE
128,161,00070) 217 + AARQ AR
HEINEBEESD ©

R2019F3H15H k2019644
B ARAUAREE (AR
ENFRIBRESER2.808TE H
Z%17600,000,000 &R EE0. 178
JT B & 37 A% 52 90,000,000 I8 & A% &
BEOANBTHBRERELER - ERN
2. 80B T BEE - A QA
BETS R IE4%51,932,000,000
BT (HHER ARYA1,648,931,000
T0) c RARARRMD LWk kIR
RN 20192520 @BMER
RER BARABRMDEEES
243,728,147 60 L(HHE R AR
208,548,0007T) & AL AR EE R
B 2,437,281,4760% 1D LARE
BERBITTARBEERBRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

wRE IR PR (R)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

37. RESERVES

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amount included in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group Reorganization, accounted for as capital contribution from
ultimate holding company under merger basis of accounting.

Reserve fund

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries require the
appropriation of 10% of their profit after tax each year, based on
their statutory audited financial statements, to the reserve fund until
the balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
PRC subsidiaries. The reserve fund may be capitalized as the paid-
in capital of these subsidiaries.

Safety fund

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulation, the Group is required to
transfer 1.5% on revenue generated from the core business into a
designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and repair
and maintenance of safety facilities. The movements in the reporting
periods represent the difference between the amounts provided
based on the relevant PRC regulation and the amount utilized
during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

RESERVES(CONTINUED)
Other reserve

The other reserve comprises the accumulated changes in the
carrying amount of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations with functional currency
other than Renminbi.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organized by the PRC
municipal government authorities whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes based on applicable rates.
The municipal government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HKD1,500. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

37.

38.

fiéi 478 ()
Hfth fri 5

Hit B RBEEAABFAREMEZE
WHErENERMEEREERE
REARBLASNNT BE BB R E G
EBMEBRREENAAINEEZE -

EERAKEF
SUEHFRIRGTE

RIFFPEIERRS TR SOER - K&
% b B Y A~ B 2 B el o B T R A
MR LR ERFRKBNE B ((ZF
FHED - Bt AEBARERALER
ZEFTEEHER - TRTREEE
EHMENERKERMNERARERE -

REETREFEBHIERRESE
G SR BB RBIGONBDEE B2
TRERBBAELIFIZRERMENR
FFEDREMEER  KE—HRBHIMR
BeitE(RES ) - REES
TYRBURFEAERNREH-TRNK
A8 - RIBREDAE - BXRER
B & BAREBBBEWANS%@ S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

wRE IR PR (R)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. BEHAERF R

BALANCES

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, transactions REZE2019F % 2018F 12 A31H IEF
with the following parties are considered to be related party B BATEINXZHERS@E T
transactions: R

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

BAE S BB B EAEAR

Mr. Yang Xuegang Director and the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
BERETE BENREIERBR

Ms. Lu Xiaomei The wife of Mr. Yang Xuegang

B/ MLt BEETENAKR

Texson Ultimate and immediate holding company

B e BRI R EEER AT

Xuyang Holding (note) (JBFG1ER B R A 7)) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

JBRSERR AR A R (H52) F 1555 e ot A 1

Risun Supply Chain Management Limited (note) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

(JBES L FESEE AR A 7, formerly known as Risun Mining Co., Ltd.
(AITBIERS IR AR A R))
JBIZ L ESEE IR AR A R (A7) Riis BB EEIRAR) 155 el

Beijing Risun Science and Technology Limited (note)(dt 7B R Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
AR 7], formerly known as Beijing Risun Chemicals Technology
and Research Limited (BHE1L RS L TE it 7ebt AR A 7))

LB RHE B R AR (A7) Rt R Bt TRMTHRRER AR  B5S LTS

Xingtai Xuyang Technology Co,. Ltd. (note) (if & BI5EI BB A7F])  Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

MEBEEER AR (#T) 155 i 5t A= 1
Dingzhou Risun Technology Co,. Ltd (note) (EMBI5EHEBRAR])  Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
EMBISRER AR QB (H7E) 155 i 5t A= 1
Xuyang Engineering Co,. Ltd. (note) (BF% T2 B R A &), formerly Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
known as Hebei Xuyang Engineering Design Co., Ltd (3i#&7/ 1t B
TEFRABRAT))
IS TR AR QB (W) (RIAE AL BRS T2t BIR AR 1535 i 5t A= 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
‘e MR CE)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. BEHARIREEGE)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

BAE T BB EAREEEIR

Risun Chemicals Technology Research Co., Ltd. (note) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(TBRS L ERATt T AR 2 7))

TBRG L BT AR A 7 (#72) F15 55 e ot A P

Xingtai Tianlu Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd. (note) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(MEREFMERZER AR

MaXREFHMERBEAR DR M ZE) H15 55 e ot A 1

Tangshan Risun Petroleum & Chemicals Co,.Ltd. (note) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(BWERSAMETHERAR])

B ILBEA M THER AR (M) F 1555 e ot A 1

Beijing Zhengcheng Weiye Coal Coking Chemicals Limited (note) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(EREFEFBEECTERAT)
IRIEFEERENTAERAR R ) F 1555 e ot A 1

Dingzhou Risun Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd. (note) (FEMBFEFE  Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
b EE FI 3 A BR A7), formerly known as Dingzhou Tianlu Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (FITEEMRAE R HERZEGRAAE))
FEMNERSEERBEERATE ) GIEENKESEREERAT) ABSMmiTER

Haikou Jialin Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (note) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(BREBRFERARLR)

BOERIREBERBR AR (L) F 1555 e ot A 1

Haikou Taiyanghe Hot Spring Tourism Holiday Village (note) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(B A ARBGAR R IR E R L)

78 0 KBS MR SRR 98 5 AN R0 (B 72) F 1555 e ot A 1

Tianjin Zhengcheng Import&Export Trade Co,.Ltd. (note) Under the significant influence of Mr. Yang
(REEHELOESAER QA (“Tianjin Zhengcheng”) Xuegang

REEFHELABSBERR B ) [REEHRD XBEEEENETEATE

Hainan Anfu Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (note) Under the significant influence of Mr. Yang
(BFEELEEXHABEERAR) Xuegang

BRETEEERBBERAR WL XBEEEENETEATE

CNC Risun Energy Joint venture of the Group

HR B BETR REBHEERE
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

39 Bﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg &n\nﬁ%(mﬁ)

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

BAE T BB EAREEAEAR

Risun China Gas Joint venture of the Group
JBESH RBEIR REBHEERE

Jinniu Risun Chemicals Associate of the Group
FBEEET N SELE )L N]

Cabot Risun Chemicals Associate of the Group
REEEECT N SELE )L N]

Jingfu Coal Associate of the Group
SIBRE RNEE R HEE AT

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese.

The Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

including amounts paid to the Directors and the other highest
paid employee as disclosed in note 12, is as follows:

Bt RWHRXBEERSE - ZFE

BOEXEERAHTX -

REFERIL T U TERBE TR S

(a)

FEEEABHMH

REBFZEEBASNHFM(E
M1 INECD N E S MM
BEeFEENFIRNT

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARMFr
Short-term employee benefits REMEB RN 18,796 15,046
Post-employment benefits EERKIER 316 386
19,112 15,432

Key management represents the Directors and other senior
management personnel of the Group. The remuneration of key
management is determined with reference to the performance
of the Group and the individuals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B AR B RERR(E)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEETNRS

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31HLEE
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
Purchases of goods from BEEM
— related parties controlled by — 5B M AT B S
Mr. Yang Xuegang 4,640 4,828
— CNC Risun Energy — R Bf5EEIR 729,044 738,457
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —e4EEBET 39,059 63,413
— Tianjin Zhengcheng —REIEH - 63,499
- Risun China Gas — JBF5 AR REEIR 516 =
Sales of goods to HEEMD
— related parties controlled by — 155 i S A PR I A RR B
Mr. Yang Xuegang - 40
— CNC Risun Energy — R BE5EEIR 75,180 97,793
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — &4kt T 830 5,350
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RiEEFBSET 502,321 559,054
- Risun China Gas —JBESF HREEIR 25,181 =
Construction service and 3R RS N H h PR 75
other service from
— related parties controlled by — 15 [ 2 A1 I A R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 200,054 113,895
- Risun China Gas — JBIGFRREEIR 390 =
Provision of service to RHRS
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RESERET 762 740
— CNC Risun Energy — R BR5EEIR 1,904 =
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —&4EEET 305 -
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e M SmR I E(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B AL X B RER(E)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEEE MR 5 (8)
Year ended December 31,
HEZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
2019%F 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ETFT ARETFT
Transfer of right-of use assets to ERCAEEE
— CNC Risun Energy — R BE5EEIR 1,222 =
Interest received from B UAILE
— related parties controlled by — 155 [ 2 A1 I B B
Mr. Yang Xuegang - 58,697
— CNC Risun Energy — R ENBISEEIR - 2,839
Rental income from HEBWBA
— related parties controlled by — MBS E L EEHIR R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 441 562
— CNC Risun Energy — R BI5EEIR 1,411 =
Purchases of intangible assets from BEELEE
— related parties controlled by — B S S ARSI a0 R T
Mr. Yang Xuegang - 20,000
The above related party transactions were conducted in LB T 2 5 TR R AR A 17 5 IR K
accordance with terms of the relevant agreements. HETT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B AR B RERR(E)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (c) EAREEEH AR
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the REREIR - NEBHEEH

=
following balances with related parties: RASERANT

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFIT AREFT
Amounts due from related parties FE K BB 5 TRIE
Non-trade nature FEHUE
— related parties controlled by — 5 S M TSR S
Mr. Yang Xuegang - 469,676
- Jingfu Coal —=fREE - 30,900
- 500,576
Dividend receivable FEUAR B
— CNC Risun Energy — R IES AR 131,804 164,145
Trade nature ZoMHE
—related parties controlled by Mr. — 155 i S A PR I A R B
Yang Xuegang 351 274
— CNC Risun Energy — R Br5EEIR 11,268 10,892
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RIERES(E T 6,884 =
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — &4kt T 44 396
— Risun China Gas —JBrG A IREEIR 17,892 =
36,439 11,562
Impairment under ECL model TR EEEERE (590) (1,039)
167,653 675,244
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DITER2 WA
Current portion BNEAER 7> 167,653 675,244
Non-current portion FERNERER - -
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B AR B RERR(E)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) EAREEEH e (B)
Aging of amounts due from related parties-trade nature net of FEURRAES 75 B 5 14 E RA (0
allowance for credit losses are as follows: EERIERE RRIOT

As at December 31,

M12831H

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TT AREFT
Within one month —fEAR 22,073 4,843
110 3 months 1Z2318A 11,446 6,278
6 to 12 months 62 121E A 2,330 244
35,849 11,365
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B AR B RERR(E)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) EAREEEE &R (EB)
The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended HZE2019F12A31HILFE -
December 31, 2019 in respect of the amounts due from WS EELEESQEREG
companies controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang and Mr. EHEERENGESAEES
Yang Xuegang are RMB469,950,000 and nil (2018: EH R A ARMBA469,950,000
RMB1,788,751,000 and nil). TRZE(2018F : AR¥

1,788,751,00007C R E) ©

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFIT AREFT
Amounts due to related parties FE{SBREE 5 RRIE
Dividend payable JERTAR S
— Texson —RAHK - 467,533
Trade nature Bo51ME
— CNC Risun Energy — R BRSRE TR 241,793 250,962
— related parties controlled by — 155 [ 2 A1 I A B
Mr. Yang Xuegang 37,483 53,948
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RER BT 51,395 7,069
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — 4Bk tET 7,395 =
338,066 311,979
338,066 779,512
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DITE2RAR -
Current liabilities mEIaE 338,066 779,512
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued)

Aging of amounts due to related parties-trade nature are as

39.

BB S X5 R AeR ()

(c) EREERETT SRR

FEAS BER 75 B 5 1 SRR AR iR 40
S

follows: :
As at December 31,
M12831H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARKETFT ARE T
Within one month —fEAR 122,513 47,929
1to 3 months 123{@ A 93,090 111,851
310 6 months 3Z61EA 113,877 6,776
6 to 12 months 62 121E A 1,315 100
1-2 years 1226 5,791 145,323
2-3 years 2E3F 1,480 =
338,066 311,979

All amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e BRI ECE)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B AR B RERR(E)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(d) At the end of each reporting period, certain of the Group’s (d) REHRERR  AEEETIET
bank and other loans, and bills payable included in trade and REAMEFART AR S KEA
other payables were guaranteed by related parties: FE AT SRIE /Y FE A 245 e BB 77 9B

"

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019%F 20184F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFIT AREFT
Bank and other loans, and bills payable MBS A EERNBITREME
guaranteed by Mr. Yang Xuegang: FARERRE
- secured —B2H# - 1,384,433
— unsecured — IR - 160,000
- 1,544,433
Bank and other loans, and bills payable 155 %4 & 3/ ME 2 1R
guaranteed by Mr. Yang Xuegang IRITREME FUA R ER I
and Ms. Lu Xiaomei:
- secured — B2 - 2,096,050
— unsecured — R - 200,000
- 2,296,050

2019 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B AR B RERR(E)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(d) (Continued) (d) (&)
As at December 31,
M"12A31H
2019 2018
2019%F 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFR ARETFT
Bank and other loans, and bills payable 153 i 40 4 122 1 60 BAES 7 12 (R0

guaranteed by related parties controlled  $R17 K EAth B FUA M BT 245

by Mr. Yang Xuegang:

- secured — 2R - 1,291,435
Bank and other loans, and bills payable — FEH 5 £ EERMEBITREME

jointly guaranteed by related parties AR R R F7E) -

(note):

- secured — B &M - 54,108
Secured [mE7gi - 4,826,027
Unsecured Eiig 7w - 360,000

- 5,186,027
Note: Bank and other loans, and bills payable jointly guaranteed Bt R KA RERORITREAME

by related parties represent loans and bills payable
which are jointly guaranteed by multiple related parties,
including related parties controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
and companies under significant influence of Mr. Yang
Xuegang.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
‘e MR CE)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

39. EARETT R Z K AR ()

(e) At the end of the each reporting period, the maximum (e) MNEREHK  RBPEF—KEE

liabilities of the Group under guarantees issued to banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to a joint venture and a
related party were as follows:

EER—LZEBINRITRER
RITEHWER - ARENES
BEMT

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Financial guarantees issued to B—RKAELERLNTBER
a joint venture 980,000 830,000

As at December 31, 2019, the above guaranteed facilities
amount utilized by the joint venture were RMB334,968,000
(2018: RMB332,570,000), respectively. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair values of the financial guarantee contracts
of the Group were insignificant at the date of issue of the
financial guarantee and no provision is necessary at the
end of each reporting period taking into account that the net
realizable value of the pledged assets held by the banks
exceed the facilities and credit granted to the relevant
parties. Hence, the Directors do not consider it probable that
a claim will be made against the Group under any of these
guarantees.

R2019F12A31H - A&
FAN EERRESCEAAR
#:334,968,0007 (20184 : AR
#332,570,0007T) ° EERA
R FIERZE L B REBE
BEREHNWARBEIEKN - R
BIREHR  KERBITHBED
EEAEEMAIER FEBBAR
THRBINREREE - WHEA
FTIREHE - At - EERAERE
B N A] BE A b T e HE R T 4%

=E-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
= A

e PR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

39.

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(f)  During the current period, two subsidiaries of the Company,
certain related parties controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang and
a third-party creditor of the Group entered into deeds of
assignment pursuant to which an amount of RMB109,077,000
owed by the Group to the creditor was assigned and offset
against the amounts due from related parties. Accordingly the
Group derecognized payables for construction in progress of
RMB109,077,000 and the amounts due from related parties of
RMB109,077,000. The remaining non-trade amounts due from
related parties controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang were fully
settled by cash.

In addition, Xuyang Holding and a Group’s subsidiary entered
into a deed of assignment pursuant to which the amount
due from Jingfu Coal amounting to RMB30,900,000 was
transferred to Xuyang Holding, and Xuyang Holding settled
the payable to the Group amounting to RMB30,900,000 by
cash on January 28, 2019.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’'s primary objectives of managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Based on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issuing of new shares, raising
new debt financing or selling assets to reduce debt. During the
reporting period, there were no changes in the objectives, policies
Or processes.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position. The
Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligation.
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40.

BB S X5 R AeR ()

() RAHRE A2FRKMHEQ
A HBEMELTEESNE T
B RANEE—BRE=FE
BAGTEERZE - BIL &K
SEENBEREACEAARE
109,077,000 THIRIEE E:E &
I 54 FE W BA B 5 BB - UL -
REBK I EERERTIRERMNRK
B AR#109,077,0007T K & U
5 5 s AR 109,077,000
T B TIEB S HENEREBS
i o A PR RO B 5 BB E A
Re2HES -

BEAN + NBRG 2R A% B AN SR [ — R B
BRRFII—HERERZE &
I B SEEHEEREARE
30,900,000 C 2 ¥ 5% T 5
1% - BRSIERR 201941 A28 H
NS EBERNASEREAR
#30,900,0007T °

BEXEHE

AEEEEEANTIZANEHER
FEKEMRESN  EMEEERER
BAERARGRE  HERBRRE
R K A EADF 0 E RS o

AR ERER T BRI NER L&A
BB - DATE M BB I K A e
s %0 BROR B R4S 4 - 30 T
RAVEERR A A AR A -

REEESEE  AEEKEBAE
AR RS S - BITHAR
EETEBEREIHEERERDE
B BUATEHEEREARERE - RR
EHA YEFHEE  BORHE
o

AEBZEB2EHBEBMRRNERE
A o REE KK RS RERG
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial

assets and financial liabilities at the end of each reporting period
are set out as follows:

TWMTH
TRT AN

UTEEREHEERSBAGBRE
BEMRNREESRTILT

As at December 31,

M12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFr
Financial assets SRYEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEFABRNEREE 232,630 76,303
Trade and bills receivables measured BAREFAEMEABEETEN
at FVTOCI B S EMGRIE KM RE 699,479 3,179,295
Financial assets at amortized cost REER AT ENESRMEE 4,507,954 5,178,618
Financial liabilities SRBE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREFABENEHERE 1,866 448
Financial liabilities at amortized cost BBERATTENSRAE 11,822,936 15,885,298

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, trade and bills receivables measured at FVTOCI, other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, other long-term
receivables, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
financial liabilities at FVTPL, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related parties, and bank and other loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

TREREIE B R NBR

AEENFTESRTIABERARE
FRAEENEREE  BWAAERA
Ht2HWREAENE HERHIEAR
EMERE - EibEURIR - BB
HHRE -~ B REIEWKEIR - ZRF
RITER RERRSFEY B
REFABSHNERAE BZRE
fl FE A IR~ FE A BA R U7 BB RRTT
REMER - ZFEBMTANFER
BRMEANE HZFeRT AN
MEREETSERFIXAR &
KRR EkEOGERRR) - FERRK
MBEZ R - BUKLLF R KK
HINTX -EEEEERERNLE
BB - HEAR KB A AU R BUE B 1
i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
financial instruments. These financial instruments issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not
have any specific interest rate policy except that the Group would
regularly review the market interest rates to capture the potential
opportunities to reduce the cost of borrowings. Accordingly, the
Group will enter into interest rate swap arrangement to mitigate the
interest rate risks if appropriate.

(iy  Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
fixed-rate bank and other loans (see note 32 for details).

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
bank deposits and bank and other loans, at floating interest
rates. The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) was based on the exposure to interest rate for the
floating-rate bank deposits and bank and other loans,
assuming that these financial assets liabilities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
relevant period. If a 25 basis point increase or decrease in
variable-rate bank deposits and a 100 basis point increase
or decrease in variable-rate borrowing are used, and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation
would decrease/increase by approximately RMB21,230,000
for the year ended December 31, 2019(2018: RMB2,452,000).
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B AR
FER

AEEWNNXER T ZRET LR
TR -RIPHMNEREEN KBS
ERTASHSCAKEEBRESRE
MEREBREAABENEER - NEH
W BT EN KB - EAREE
TE B AR & T 35 A R DU IR R AME SRR
AEBEEKSE - Bt - AEEHRE
B R RAT S R 4= B 2 B DURE R &
[E\f o

(i) ARENXRREER

REENAAEMNERREER
REBRITREMBERGHER
25M15E32) -

(i) HEmENEER

AEBNRSRENERRBREE
BRARTERARRITREME
RARFERFE) - AEBEBAL
BEMEEHBR - A - ERE
155 BN 5 2 iy 3 B AN =
kg -

HAEERBZ M (KRB G
)RR TENZBRITER
AR AR1T R E A B A F R &
% RN EHRKEENZ
LeREEAREREMRRBE
Mg EE - WZBRITERN
M RGN R D25 EER - &
V7B E B =L hnskoR 4100
EE2 - A EMmEERET
& AIEZE2019F12A31H b
FEAREBMNBRREZNED R
WA anE AR #21,230,000
JL(2018%F : ARM2,452,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
balances and bank and other loans that are denominated in foreign
currency, i.e. currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily USD, EUR and HKD.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after taxation (and retained profits) that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

ST A
TR B IR B R R ()

™ 5 E ke ()
EERR

AEBMARNEERR T ZHRE A
SN (BN ER IR AR R R TS T B B HE LA
SN E W) FHE R RITAERRIA RIRIT IR
HER ELMHEBNERIZR
XL BTN ©

TRIVRAEEHBBEEN (RRE
B EAMAEER RERRAZEXR
BB e SN TE RN EZ B IR B B i &
R ENE B B (R AR E b R B BT

Year ended December 31,

BE12A3ALEE
2019 2018
20195 20185
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/ increase in Increase/ increase in
(decrease) profit after tax (decrease)  profit after tax
in foreign and retained in foreign and retained
exchange rates profits exchange rates profits
BREEAR BRI R
HEER REBER INEE X RE RN
#i/(84)  (HD)/%Em #@n/0) (R /Em
RMB’000 RMB000
ARBTT ANEETFT
ush e 5% (63,210) 5% (8,068)
Others Hith 5% (2,994) 5% 3,467

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of each
reporting period for presentation purposes.

ERMIIMASITER  RREAEE
BERBOBRBRRENMZNAEZE
(REZENNEEEHE  TUXE
THROERETRE[ARKESR
512 )P M RO KERR o

2019 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

271



272

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
= A

e PR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis during the reporting period.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities. The Directors do not implement specific
measurements to mitigate the price risk. If the market price of the
listed equity securities increased or decreased by 5%, the Group
would recognize additional gains or losses of RMB2,426,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2019(2018: RMB2,551,000).

The Group’s commodity price risk is mainly concentrated on
fluctuations in the prevailing market price of coke, coal, and refined
chemical products which are the major commodities purchased,
produced and sold by the Group. To minimize this risk, the Group
enters into future contracts to manage the Group’s exposure in
relation to forecasted sales of products, forecasted purchase
of raw materials and inventories. The impact of price change of
future contracts are insignificant as there have been no material
outstanding future contacts at the end of the each of the reporting
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to other long term receivables, other receivables, trade and
bills receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank
deposits. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets and financial guarantee contracts.

At the end of each of the reporting period, other than financial
assets whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum credit
risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk arising from the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees
provided by the Group to the related parties is disclosed in note
39(e).

The Group mainly conducted transactions with customers with good
quality and long term relationship, when accepting new customers,
the Group requests advanced payment before the goods delivered.
In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

To manage risk arising from bank balances and bills receivables,
the Group mainly transacts with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in Mainland China and reputable international financial
institutions outside of Mainland China. There has been no recent
history of default in relation to these financial institutions.

41.

ST A
TR B IR B R R ()

FEERBNBERE

EERBEASRERZHFTIEITE
BHEEMEAEEHREBEERL
Rk - AEENEERRIZREE
i R E YRR - B RIE - B
SR RIE R EIRERE - U
RERRITER - AEELEFEE
{A] HEC 90 o 3 LAt 15 B 38 SR 4 B A AR IR
HemEERMBERASVBRESR
[\ o

REREHRR  BEEEERERR
R EERARNEREEI  AEE
D i O (5 A 7 8 AN S L ) R gt O R A
MR BERNEIABBESRMELD
RAEERBRENE39(e)TKE

AEETZREEHCEYRMAE
BENEPETRS  ARIMERP
- AEBE S EREGYRATIRA
%K - REEREEERR  AEE
EEECZKEKAAEEEREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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e PR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment(Continued)

To manage risk arising from trade receivable balances, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
the management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers and
the credit quality of these customers is assessed, which takes into
account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers.

The Group reassesses lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers without significant financing component to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring.

For trade receivables and amounts due from related parties of trade
nature, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
or collectively using a provision matrix appropriate groupings.
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group use
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers because
its customers consists of a large number of customers which
share common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The estimated loss rates are estimated
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted using forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. EMTEE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIEREE B IR R (E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FERBANRENG
For all other instruments including bills receivable, other HAEEMTAE(BIERKER At
receivables, other long term receivables and amounts from related FEMR SRIE  E b 5= HA A U SR E & R R
parties of non-trade nature, the Group measures the loss allowance MR IEBZUERE)ME - A5E
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant SFTENEERELEM2EAERE
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognizes BEEEHE  RIFEVHEEREEE
lifetime ECL. The Group has assessed and concluded that the [EppEZEIL I - AEBEEREHTEH
risk of default rate for these instruments are steady based on the FEBE - AfBCDERBEZSE
Group’s assessment of the financial health of the counterparties TAMENXRRIZE - DERASE
except for a loan to the third party amounting to RMB35,000,000 B2 58 FOMBIREMRTE
as at December 31, 2019, which was past due 180 days and HE—BRETE=ZFTHERRIN - R
considered as credit-impaired by the Directors. 2019F 128310  ZBERNTEA
AR #35,000,0007T - 2 HI180°K -
WHEBFR RO EEEERE -
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TRAMEINAEEBE 5 L EMER
trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties, SRIE LA K JE Uk B B 5 SRIE R (E B R B
which are subject to ECL assessment: CE#ErTTRHE BEIEETE) ¢
Internal credit 2019 2018
Notes rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
Wi ABEETR 12BA52MRNEERR 201958 KEE 20185 K E(E
RMB000 RMB'000 AMB 000 RMB 000
AEEFT AREFT AREFI AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHRAGTENEREE
Other receivables 27 Note 12-month ECL 879,111 162,557
A EEE iz 12EARHEERE
Credit-impaired (individually) 35,000 914,111 25,693 188,250
fEERE(ER)
2019 F3§

TEBEEBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

41. E@MTHEE

TR B IR B R R ()

EE RN ERE ()

Internal credit
Notes rating

12-month or lifetime ECL

2019 2018
Gross carrying amount (Gross carrying amount

Wi APEETE 28R ERHEEER 20195 8KEE 018FEEA(E
RMB000 RIMB000 AMB OO0 RAMB0OO
ARETT AT AREFI ARETFT
Amounts due from related parties* 39 Note 12-month ECL 131,804 664,721
PR 7 R iz 12EARSREESR
Lifetime ECL (provision
matrix) 36,439 168,243 11,562 676,283
2HBACEEEBEER)
Other long-term receivables 23 Note 12-month ECL 1,350,000 1,350,000 28,056 28,056
At RHREWGE iF 12EARBEESR
Financial assets at FVTOCI
RAREFAREZERENER
EE
Trade receivables 27 Lifetime ECL (provision
matrix) 385,172 188,043
BHEIGE F RS EEEE R ERE)
Credit-impaired (individually) 24,522 409,694 85,346 273,389
EEREER)
Bills receivable 27 Note 12-month ECL 317,586 317,586 2,992,740 2,992,740
R (i 12EARHEERR

The gross carrying amounts disclosed above include both trade
nature receivables and non-trade nature receivables. All trade

nature receivables are applying lifetime ECL.
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
iR e PR ML ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note:

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses
past due information or other relevant information available without
undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

41. E@MTHEE

TR B IR B R R ()

EE RN ERE )
Kyt

HRANEERREEME  AEERAR
HERKBALETVRRAIEH AT
BSnEMBEENFHEERERRRES
VA HERAE O A IRIE AN ©

2019 20194
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
B,
B YEBETERSR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
Bills receivable EREE - 317,586 317,586
Amounts due from related parties JE U BE B 75 BB - 168,243 168,243
Other receivables H{th Y 5RIE 35,000 879,111 914,111
Other long-term receivables Hth & BAFE UL IE - 1,350,000 1,350,000
2018 20184
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
A A E TR AR w5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Bills receivable JEUE IR - 2,992,740 2,992 740
Amounts due from related parties JFE U BE RS 75 TR = 676,283 676,283
Other receivables EL A e W R IE 25,693 162,557 188,250
Other long-term receivables Efth & BRI RIE - 28,056 28,056
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. T E(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIEREE B IR R (E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R B ARENG (&
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has TRINRERBE LT EREZER
been recognized for trade receivables and amounts due from RIE N FEU AR 5 B 5 14 E AR
related parties of trade nature under the simplified approach: e AR E EEIEE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
2HREHEEFRE 2UBESCEFE
(UEEEEHE) (FEHE) @t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000
AREFT ANEEFT AEBFT
As at January 1, 2018 R2018F1A1R 5,243 104,592 109,835
— Transfer to credit impaired —BREEERE (120) 120 =
— Impairment losses recognized —BERORESE 1,685 180 1,865
— Impairment losses reversed —ERERESE (5,123) (19,546) (24,669)
As at December 31, 2018 #2018512831 8 1,685 85,346 87,031
— Transfer to credit impaired -BEREEERE (397) 397 =
— Impairment losses recognized -EREROAESE 2,860 - 2,860
— Impairment losses reversed -BREMHESE (262) (17,408) (17,670)
~ Impairment losses written off -ERMEOHESE (17) (43,813) (43,830)
As at December 31, 2019 72019124318 3,869 24,522 28,391
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the

Group’s provision matrix.

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due from
related parties of trade nature

41.

ST A
TR B IR B R R ()

EE RN ERE )

NRF AN B AR [ B A AR e
BHREFARERER T ESEE
IR EBRA ©

BHRVGRENEKERTE S ME
HRIBHERREE

As at December 31,2019

As at December 31,2018

R2019512831H 201851283108
Gross Gross
Average carrying Average carrying
loss rate amounts loss rate amounts
THEEE BEREE TYEEER BERAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®F7 AREFT
Within 1 month 1AAR 0.16% 386,963 0.16% 182,153
1 to 3 months 1£38A 2.80% 16,337 1.96% 9,958
4 to 6 months 4%6fEA 12.04% 5,713 11.33% 1,359
7 to 12 months 721284 16.71% 12,598 17.08% 6,135
421,611 199,605

As at December 31, 2019, the Group provided RMB3,869,000
(2018: RMB1,685,000) impairment allowance for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the
provision matrix. In addition, as at December 31, 2019, debtors
with balances from trade receivables amounting to RMB24,522,000
(2018: RMB85,346,000) were assessed individually and impairment
allowance of RMB24,522,000 (2018: RMB85,346,000) were made.

R2019F12A31H » NEBEIRBEE
FEEE 5 e GIE R ER B S
M E R IAFT IR ARK3,869,0007T
(20184 : AFR¥1,685,0007T) 5 1 B
& - th4h - R2019%12A318 » A&
EHE S EKKER G L5 EUK
T8 A R#24,522,0007(20184F : AR
#85,346,00070) #/TERIE(E » Wit
IERERE AR 24 522,0007T(2018
F: AR¥85,346,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances that
have been recognized for bills receivables, other receivables,

amounts due from related parties of non-trade nature:

41.

SRIAME
TR B IR B R R ()

EE RN ERE ()

TRINTEREKTE - E R
AR e BN 7T JEE 5 1E E IR R
MR IR R -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12-month (not credit (credit
ECL impaired) impaired) Total

2HEH 2HES

128 A FEER FEER
FEFR (UEEERHE) (FERE) #@ct
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
As at January 1, 2018 R2018F1A1H 2,621 - 55,224 57,845
— Impairment losses reversed —ERERESE (1,779) - (31,690) (33,469)
As at December 31, 2018 M2018F12A31H 842 = 23,534 24,376
— Impairment losses recognized ~EREROAESE 14,211 - 24,555 38,766
— Impairment losses reversed -BREMHESSE (842) = (29,092) (29,934)
As at December 31, 2019 R2019%F12A831H 14,211 - 18,997 33,208

As at December 31, 2019, amounts due from related parties
of non-trade nature amounting to RMB131,804,000 (2018:
RMB664,721,000) were assessed individually and no impairment

allowance (2018: RMB842,000) were made on these debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Directors are responsible for the Group’s cash management,
including the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in

ST A

TR B IR B R R ()

EE & Rk

EXAFAKENRSER  21ER
SRBOEHRERBEETARN
BHREF K - AEENBRSTE S
EERPESF KRB THHREH
NREREERFEARSHEBERAE
EoMBBNRARARESRE N
ENEREHHRBESHFR -

the short and longer term.

TEAAEERBERREBRAER
MEHEENHERBRANHBAL
HIREL ST - BRBRIIREHKR
HRBSRE(BEERAGHMNEHE
M BN MATE - BIRREH
REBHNEGFE) AR AREE A GEA
MR RT BHEFE

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities and
lease liabilities obligation under finance leases, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:

As at December 31,2019

R2019512531A
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
AHRERRER

More than More than

Weighted Within 1 year but 2 years but
average 1year or less than less than Carrying
interest rate on demand 2 years 5years Total amount

it 352! 1£R3 SME EQivE
S REX BoRE BHH5F it HEE
% RIMB000 RIB000 RIB 000 RINB 000 RIB 000
% AEBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Trade and other payables B RAMERE NATER 2,830,710 - - 2,830,710 2,830,710
Interest-bearing bank and other loans HERTREMER 5.44% 7,574,921 1,101,245 336,781 9,012,047 8,659,638
Amounts due to related parties [ E% A NATEH 332,588 - - 332,588 332,588
Lease liabilities fEak 4.63% 21,600 21,600 5,400 48,600 46,069
Financial guarantee contracts IBEREN NATEH 980,000 - - 980,000 -
11,739,819 1,122,845 342,181 13,204,845 11,869,005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

SRIAME
TR B IR B R R ()

REBE SRR

As at December 31, 2018

20185127318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
SNRERRSR
More than More than
Weighted Within 1 year but 2 years but
average Tyear or less than less than Carrying
interest rate on demand 2 years 5years Total amount
T 1M SME GI0E
HE REX [BhreE [EhHeE it BAEE

% RWBY0O RWBY0O RWBY0O RWBY0O RWBY0O
% NEETT NEETT NEETT NEETT NEETT

Trade and other payables BAREMEMNE NATER 6,118,659 5 5 6,118,659 6,118,659
Interest-bearing bank and other loans HEROREMER 5.26% 7,997,289 1,234,632 83310 9,315,231 8,890,217
Amounts dlue to related parties RS HE NATER 779512 5 5 779512 779512
Obligation under finance leases HARETE 9.44% 24503 838 = 25,341 24,552

Interest-bearing payables for construction i~ 3 SR TRENZE
progress 6.18% 35,653 39,015 34,409 109,077 96,910
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREN NATER 830,000 - - 830,000 -
15,785,616 1,274,485 17,719 17,177,820 15,909,850

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on the expectations at the end of each reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, these estimates
are subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparties claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continu ed
T (%=

Re MR

)
)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. T E(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIEREE B IR R (E)
(Continued)
Fair values ARE
()  Financial instruments carried at fair value (y EAREIEMNSHRIA
The Group measures its following financial instruments at fair REERESMERARREE LR
value at the end of each of the reporting period on a recurring EEARBEHEENT2HI
basis: A
Fair value
AfE
As at December 31, Significant
R12A31H Fair value unobservable
2019 2018 hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input  input(s)
20195 2018F AREER REFERTEBAZE EXTUEZRAHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF ARETFT
Financial assets
LRERE
Unlisted equity securities 51,333 25,000 Level3 Fair values are estimated based on the Liquidity discount rate
comparable listed company’s P/B
ratio and a liquidity discount
I ETRAES E=R AREDERAL ETARNTEER  REHFRE
MBI ITR R Et
Private equity investment 50,322 - Level3 Fair values are estimated based on Net assets value
fund the net asset value of underlying of underlying
investments investments
RERTREES E=8 ARETERMBRENEEFEMG HERENEEFE
Trade receivables 381,893 186,555 Level 2 Fair values are estimated based on N/A
the present value of the contracted
cash inflow at the discount rate that
reflects the market credit risk
B HENFUA =R ARETERGHRERARRE TS TER
FERRMNPER R ENRER
Bills receivables 317,586 2,992,740 Level 2 Fair values are estimated based on N/A
the present value of the contracted
cash inflow at the discount rate that
reflects the market credit risk
ENEE E-& ARETERGHRERARRETS TER

1*1‘%”4 “E’Jaﬁ'fﬂfu ﬁmiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. EMTEE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIEREE B IR R (E)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) AREE
()  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) (y EAREIENSBRIAE®E
Fair value
AR
As at December 31, Significant
R12A318 Fair value unobservable
2019 2018 hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input  input(s)
20195 2018F AAEER HEFEREIZAAHE EXTURZRAHE

RMB’000 RMB000
ARBFR  ARETIL

Listed equity securities 48,510 51,017 Level 1 Fair values are calculated based on the N/A
quoted prices in an active market
TRAES E it AREDERNERTS TNBRENE  TNER
Wealth management 71,940 - Level2 Fair values are determined with N/A
product reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions
HEEEER EZH AREDE2ECHMERINREE TER
hd
Futures contracts 33 - Level1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid N/A
prices in an active market
HEaH Ea it AREIREEENZHEARE NER
Held-for-trading non- 10,492 286 Level 1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid N/A
derivative financial prices in an active market
assets
REEEFTEEREE -4 AREDIREEENZHEARE NER
Financial liabilities
SRIBE
Futures contracts 1,866 448 Level 1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid N/A
prices in an active market
BEaH EF— AREDIREEETENEARE TEm
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re PR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

(

)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

The Group’s investments in unlisted equity securities which
were classified as financial assets at FVTPL under level 3
hierarchy amounted to RMB51,333,000 as at December
31, 2019. The significant unobservable input is the liquidity
discount rate. The higher liquidity discount rate, the lower fair
value of the financial assets at FVTPL will be. A 5% increase/
decrease in the liquidity discount rate, holding all other
variables constant, the carrying amounts of the investments
would decrease/increase by RMB1,957,000 as at December
31, 2019.

The Group’s investments in private equity fund which were
classified as financial assets at FVTPL under level 3 hierarchy
amounted to RMB50,322,000 as at December 31, 2019.
The significant unobservable input is the net assets value
of underlying investments. The higher net assets value of
underlying investments, the higher fair value of the financial
assets at FVTPL will be. A 5% increase/decrease in the net
assets value of underlying investments, holding all other
variables constant, the carrying amounts of the investments
would increase/decrease by RMB2,516,000 as at December
31, 2019.

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during
the reporting period.

41.

ST A
TR B IR B R R ()

BAREIIRNERTAE

MN2019%128318 » D EAS
ZHRBEAREFABENERHE
ENAREEIE FTRAZFRE
BAR®S51,333,0007T ° EX
T BRG ABE AR IR
Ko mENENREYS - AR
Bt ABENESREENAR
BEHE - B RE IR RL
/o RmAE% - MABHMES
“& 0 BII2019F 12 A31H#ZE
BEMREERD, EINARE
1,957,0007T ©

R2019%12A3180 » D EASE
=RTBEAREFABENSRE
ENAEELERAESERES
AR#50,322,0007T - AN
ATEREASEABRRIRENE
EFE - BERENEEFEY
& BARERABENSRE
EMARESS - HEAKRENE
EFEEM HAL5%  mMAA
HEMEET~E - A]2019F 124
31RZSRENRmEE M, R
L AR ¥E2 516,0007T °

MBEHRR - F-REE R
I R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. T E(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIEREE B IR R (E)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) AREE
(i) Reconciliation of level 3 measurements (iy B=HFrEMEER
The following table represents the reconciliation of level 3 TRETNERREHRE =R
measurements throughout the reporting period. EREER -
Private Unlisted Structured
equity fund equity securities  trust product Total
AEREES FLTRARS LRUEGEER @t
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000
AREFT AEEFT ANEEFT AEBFT
As at January 1, 2018 R2018F1A1H - 25,000 31,220 56,220
Redemption BE - - (31,220) (31,220)
As at December 31, 2018 R2018F12431H - 25,000 - 25,000
Purchase BE 50,000 - - 50,000
Transfer from other long term SR H iR E NIRRT
receivables and prepayments IR - 25,000 - 25,000
Fair value change in current year AEEDREEY) 322 1,333 = 1,655
As at December 31, 2019 R2019F12A31H 50,322 51,333 - 101,655

(iii)

value

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values due to short maturity and floating interest rates, as

appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
‘e MR CE)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

42. BMEZRHELENEEHK

TEHAREEMEEDE LN
ERY ERERIBLEY - @
SEDELHABENEARSRER

ARAZRERAEHE

=
A

Py~ =1
REeEmE

RPDBERBEEHRERENE

financing activities. f& °
Lease
Interest- Amounts liabilities/
bearing due to related Obligation  Interest and
bank and parties under finance dividend Accrued
other loans non-trade leases payable issue cost Total
FRBT  EABEE  A88E/ Jefs fest
REMER  FEZTE MEHERE  MERRE BITRA @t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETR
At January 1, 2018 #2018%F 1818 9,780,212 - 56,576 2,573 2,052 9,841,413
Net financing cash flows BERLTEFE (901,437) (81,200) (32,024) (629,878) - (1644539)
Bill receivables discounted (nofs) BRERER W) (4,793) - - - - (4,793)
Dividend payable FEfRE - 548,733 - 24,731 S 573,464
Finance costs BEMK - - - 596,765 - 596,765
Interest accrual - capitalized il viX(d - - - 17,120 - 17,120
Issue costs accrued EE BT - - - - 4,346 4346
Exchange difference EXZEE 16,235 - - - = 16,235
At December 31, 2018 M2018%512431A 8,890,217 467,533 24,552 11,311 6,398 9,400,011
Net financing cash flows BERRNEFE (77,912 (467,533) (49,920)  (1,376,526) 1,595,439 (376,452)
Bill receivables discounted (note) SREREE W) (169,436) - - - - (169,436)
Dividend payable FERRE - - - 888,088 - 888,088
An new lease entered Gl - - 60,391 - - 60,391
Finance costs REMA - - 11,046 454,533 - 465,579
Interest accrual - capitalized e FIS - BRI - - - 24,627 - 24,627
Issue costs accrued REE - - - - 47,094 47,004
Share issued BRI - - - - (1,648931)  (1,648,931)
Exchange difference ERER 16,769 - - - - 16,769
At December 31, 2019 #2019%512A31A 8,659,638 - 46,069 2,033 - 8,707,740
2019 R

TEBEEBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42, EETHEEANEEHRGE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
Note: During each reporting period, the Group has discounted bills et - RERSHME  AXEEDSEKRSE
receivable from third parties to banks for short term financing. = ERARFIRT - DUETTRE
The relevant cash flows of these borrowings are presented as BME - ZEERWIEBRSTER
operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows REBRERERZEINAKERERN
as the Directors consider the cash flows are in substance, the 2 BHEEFZ %fﬁﬁ/ﬁiﬁgtﬁ
receipts from trade customers. BE 5% P WA B
43. COMMITMENTS 43. #AIE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of each () MEJESHRIRNEGS M BR
reporting period not provided for in the consolidated financial RPELBENRBITERRE
statements were as follows: T
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Capital expenditure in respect of the WM - BRE REENERR
acquisition of property, plant and equipment 2,871,642 128,404
44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44. EEEKH

At the end of each of the reporting period, in addition to the
discounted bills securing the Group’s bank borrowings as disclosed
in note 27, and property, plant and equipment pledged for payables
for construction in progress as disclosed in note 30, certain Group’s
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

REMEHER - BINF27FTIEBRIES
AEERTEFERNBEZEAR
BT 5E30FTH 25 1E A AT 3 T2 FE (S 5k 18
EIROWE - BERZEN  ANEHE
ETEECKFARTALERITH
BERER  MEREENT :

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ABRETIT

Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 3,576,561 3,354,204
Right-of-use assets FREEE 772,004 =
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIEA - 737,389
Inventories rE 216,670 236,184
Restricted bank deposits PR HRITIER 954,446 3,433,139

5,519,681 7,760,916
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
‘e MR CE)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

45. KD RS

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private
companies, particulars of which are set out below:

RAHREBH  ARBERATHBR
AREERMEEER  ZEQFY
RIARE - BREEHEIILT

Shareholding/equity
Place and date interest attributable to the
of incorporation/ Company
Name of subsidiary establishment Class of shares held as of December 31,  Principal activity
HMAL Rt ER A KRR REL D)
WEARER ] FrismR 4 5 M2A31H TEXH
2019 2018
2019 20185
Xingtai Risun Trading Limited (“Xingtai Risun The PRC/May 12,1995  Paid-in capital 100% 100% Trading of coke, coking
Trading", formerly known as Xingtai Risun RMB94,750,000 chemicals and
Coking Limited) (T & fBF2 & 5B B 1 7) (notes refined chemicals
(i)and (iv))
RaRBEESERAR(MaRGES] AEla w8/ EARANRE EEER  EERRE
BB E(CBB AR H ) E(v) 1995654128 94,750,0007T REIER
Hebei Risun Energy Limited (“Hebei Risun The PRC/October 30, Paid-in capital 100% 100% Production of coke and
Energy”, formerly known as Hebei Risun Coking 2003 RMB1,000,000,000 coking chemicals
Limited) (W3t IBR&ERBRAR) (notes () and
(iv))
REEEERAR(TLRGER]  AETL FE/ EARANRE bEERRENER
BHEERAR) W ()R (v) 2003F10A30H 1,000,000,0007T
Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals Limited (“Xingtai The PRC/April 7,2006  Paid-in capital 100% 100% Production of refined
Risun Coal Chemicals”) (R BB &L TERA RMB510,000,000 chemicals
al) (notes (ii) and (iv))
MamBE it TERAR (A BREEE L) HE/ EARANRE EERBIER
(W& ) 200654 A7H 510,000,000
China Risun Group (Hong Kong) Limited (*Hong ~ Hong Kong/March 5, Ordinary share HKD1 100% 100% Investment holding
Kong Risun”, formerly known as Risun Coal 2007 and trading of coke,
Chemicals Group Limited and Sky Hero coking chemicals and
Resources Limited) refined chemicals
TEBGER(ERERAR(EERRG - siR B8/ LiakET REABRREESR &
BRI IEEERARRAEERERAR) 20074358 ERRBRLIE
m
Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy Limited (‘Dingzhou  The PRC/April 9, 2007 Paid-in capital 100% 100% Production of refined
Tianlu New Energy") (EMAE#EEAR ) RMB200,000,000 chemicals
(note (iv))
EMRESRERERAR(EMNRERLR]) HE/ EARANRE EERBIER
(Wit(iv) 200754798 200,000,0007C
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ir e MR E(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

45. RHE 2 T rER ()

Shareholding/equity
Place and date interest attributable to the
of incorporation/ Company
Name of subsidiary establishment Class of shares held as of December 31,  Principal activity
EMERYL/ RIGERA KRR AL R I
WERARERE # s o8 R R12A31H TEXRK
2019 2018
2019 20185
Golden Sino Enterprises Limited (‘Golden Sino”)  BVI/November 1, 2007 Ordinary share USD1 100% 100% Investment holding
(note (ii))
Golden Sino Enterprises Limited ([Golden Sino)) ~ EBEZHE,/ BERIET REER
(Het(in) 200711818
Beijing Risun Hongye Chemicals Company Limited The PRC/February 2, Paid-in capital 100% 100% Trading of coke, coking
(“Beijing Risun Hongye”) At 2B ZEL T 2008 RMB500,000,000 chemicals and
R (notes (ij) and (iv) refined chemicals
TREGRECIBRARNIRRGEE)WE  +8/ ERTARY EEER  ElERRE
(i R(iv) 200862428 500,000,0007C BIER
Tangshan Risun Chemicals Limited (“Tangshan ~ The PRC/October 17, Paid-in capital 100% 100% Production of refined
Risun Chemicals”) (BB TBRAF) 2008 RMB495,000,000 chemicals
(notes (i) and (iv)
BB IERAR(ELER L ID@R)E  +8/ EARAARE CERMC IER
(i) 20084103178 495,000,000
Risun Group Limited (“Risun Group”, formerly The PRC/January 8, Paid-in capital 100% 100% Investment holding
known as Risun Chemicals Limited) (185 %8 2010 RMB4,898,794,000
BIBNF) (Notes (i) and (iv))
REEEERAR(RHEE]  AFERGLIER +E&/ EREARY RERR
REANH R0 ) 2010%1A8H 4,898,794,0007T
Cangzhou Risun (&JN1BB L TBMA]) (notes (i) The PRC/June 27, 2011 Paid-in capital 89.92% 89.92% Production of refined

and (iv)

BB T Bzt (i) (v)

Risun Global Limited (“Risun Global”, formerly
known as Good City (Hong Kong) Limited)

BHERERAR(BRER]  AFEaR(ER)E

BAR)

Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited (“Xingtai Risun
Chemicals") (TF& BB L THR ) (notes ()

and (iv)

aEBt TERAR (ARSI

Wzt R(iv)
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il
2011564278

Hong Kong/uly 19,
2013

'/
201347 A198

The PRC/March 17,
2014

il
2014538178

USD151,600,000
EH MR 151,600,000
e

Ordinary share
HKD3,000,000

873,000,000/
Paid-in capital
RMB218,520,000

ERBRAARE
218,520,007

100% 100%

100% 100%

chemicals
EERMEIER

Trading of coke, coking
chemicals and
refined chemicals

EEER  ElERRE
BrIER

Production of refined
chemicals

EERMTER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
‘e MR CE)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45. RKE D RHER (&)

Shareholding/equity
Place and date interest attributable to the
of incorporation/ Company
Name of subsidiary establishment Class of shares held as of December 31,  Principal activity
EMERYL/ RIGERA KRR AL R I
WERARERE # s o8 R R12A318 TEXRK
2019 2018
2019 20185
Tangshan Risun Aromatics Hydrocarbon Limited ~ The PRC/December 8,  Paid-in capital 100% 100% Production of refined
(BILBGF EERERAR) (notes (iv) and (i) 2017 RMB378,330,000 chemicals
FE\ITBG 3 RE R BR A R Wt v) & i) wE/ EREARY CERMC IER
2017F12A8H 378,330,0007T

Ruyang Tianlu Energy Co., Ltd (&I X E B ER

The PRC/May 31, 2018

Registered capital

N/A 55%

Purchase and sale of

‘~al") (notes (iv) and (v)) RMB5,000,000 coal, coke and coking
by-products
BERERRER AT Wit R(v) wE/ HMREARE TER REREERR  ERR
201854318 5,000,0007 REEIER
Beijing Risun Digital Technology Limited (3t RfEFH  The PRC/November 2, Registered capital 71.05% N/A  Information technology
YFRRARAR) (notes (iv) and (i) 2018 RMB20,000,000 service
ERIEGBF R BRI 2 v) R i) wE/ HMREARE TER RS
2018F11A28 20,000,0007T
Risun Materials Co., Ltd (JEFR¥IE T 241) (notes  Japan/August 9, 2019 Paid-in capital 100% N/A  Trading of coke, coking
(i) and (vi) JPY5,000,000 chemicals refined
and chemicals
TREMERS SR W) R(v) A%/ Z AR 7R5,000,0008 TR EBER  BlEmLE
201958 A9H T MEIER
Lingyuan Risun Ling Steel Energy Limited (ZJR/E  The PRC/December 26, Registered capital 70% N/A  Production of coke and
5 ZMEERAR N A) (notes (i) and (iv) 2019 RMB1,667,000,000 coking chemicals
RRIES &R BR D AR () wE/ HRRAARE TER 4EERREER
2019124 26H 1,667,000,0007C
Tangshan Risun Materials Limited (EL7BF %%  The PRC/December 28,  Registered capital 100% N/A  Trading of coke and
BRADE) (notes (i) and (iv) 2019 RMB180,000,000 coking chemicals
BILBSmERR AR WE)R (V) wE/ HMREARE TER BEERRE(ER
2019127 28H 180,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in
the PRC.

(i) These entities are sino-foreign owned entities established in the
PRC.

(i)~ No audited statutory financial statements have been prepared for
these subsidiaries.

(iv)  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(v)  The entity was dissolved on September 24, 2019.

(vi)  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of the company are in Japanese.

All of the above subsidiaries, except for Golden Sino, are indirectly
held by the Company.

All companies now comprising the Group have adopted December
31, as their financial year end.

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
was as follows:

45. RHE 2 T rER (F)

46.

His -

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(vi)

BERZSHERRRIEENE
|k

AR EAXBEERSE - ZFA
AIMIERBRAFX

ZEEEN2019F9 A 24 A

EBOAXBEEHSE - KSR
AMEREBAAK -

Fr Liift B8 A 8] (BrGolden Sinosh)
HEARNARIEESE -

RAKAEENMBERARERA12A
BERBRENMBFEEER -

RRBHBER

BRARBPBARRKROERAT

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHBARMIEE 1,300,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) JE W BT B A B R IE (B 22) 412,039 412,039
1,712,039 412,039
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) JE W BT B A B R IE (B 2E) 68,000 672,627
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H A FE U FIE 642 6,398
Cash and cash equivalent ReRRSEFED 2,338 2,448
70,980 681,473
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
hre %k AR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F 128318 ItFE

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

46. AN TEEER (B

(CONTINUED)
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFIT ARBFT
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note) RN B k) 9,246 9,617
Amount due to the immediate holding FER BB R RIFIE
company - 467,533
Trade and other payables B 5 K KM ER IR 2,191 21,030
11,437 498,180
Net current assets mEEEFE 59,543 183,293
Net assets EETFE 1,771,582 595,332
Capital and reserves BEARREE
Share capital & 354,699 87,123
Reserves i 1,416,883 508,209
Total equity B 1,771,582 595,332
Note: Wit

Except for amount due from a subsidiary of RMB412,039,000 which was
unsecured, bearing interest at 9% per annum and repayable on June 30,
2021, the amounts due from/to subsidiaries disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position are of non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

BREK—FXMBEBAR - FFEREI% K
H2021F6 A30H B EAMERK I AR
412,039,0007C FIBAN - AR BB H AR
REBOERKEMNHBARREBIEE
SMHE - EEF - R RAREREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ar e AT ()

For the year ended December 31, 2019 & ZE2019F12A831HIFFE

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 46.

Z'K/L\\—.l ji‘iﬁ*}l’(mﬁ

(CONTINUED)
Movements in the Company’s reserves RARFEEE
Accumulated
Share premium (losses)/profit Total
RiRE  REER) B @t
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
ARETFT ARETT AREFT
At January 1, 2018 #0181 18 70,433 (110,993) (40,560)
Ordinary shares issued BEITEER 405,516 = 405,516
Profit for the year FRE - 1,034,401 1,034,401
Dividends to the immediate holding AEEEZRERARNRE
company - (891,148) (891,148)
At December 31, 2018 #20185 128318 475,949 32,060 508,209
Capitalisation issue BRMEETT (208,548) - (208,548)
Ordinary shares issued BETERR 1,589,903 - 1,589,903
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BT ELANZ HHA
shares (53,492) - (53,492)
Profit for the year FREF - 460,161 460,161
Dividends appropriation (note 14) BREDRMT7E14) (426,588) (452,762) (879,350)
At December 31, 2019 R2019F12A31H 1,377,224 39,659 1,416,883
47. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 47. HEHREIE
Other than the events as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated MGZEGAUBRREMIEDATEE
financial statements, subsequent to December 31, 2019, the FIN  FR2019F 1243101 » B
following significant events took place: TEAEH:
Since January 2020, COVID-19 (Coronavirus) has taken place B2020F1 ARA - AEERNFEHEE

in the Group’s principal operating locations in China, and at the
same time, the oil price has fallen sharply mostly due to the impact
of the international spread of COVID-19 and geopolitical factors,
collectively referring to “the events”. To-date, the Directors consider
the event have no significant impact on the Group’s operations
given the relatively short time since the beginning of such events.
In addition, the future scale and duration of these events remain
uncertain. The Directors will continue to monitor closely the changes
in the situation and to evaluate the impact on the future financial
position and operating results of the Group accordingly.
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BEMENIR TR TEMB S A (B
AAEZ)RE AR TEARHET
R D AR B R 2 IR E T A R 4
BUORRE  MEABTH®RGEGEAIE
) - BRI - EERA > AREMEEHE
LEERAYERE  BEZEHAER
SENELEVEEAZE - I =
1¢$XE’J%E$§E§&T”“B¢F'EHBTEEE g
EEREETIERBRAE (L XA
,MHEEQK%E%XEMQHNR&%%

Sk A o B 4R
BRENTE -



“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”
[#BA sk =2 4R A

“associate(s)”

k- INI

“Audit Committee”
[B%EEE

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
[FEg]

“Business Day” or
“pbusiness day”

[&%A]
“‘BvI”
[REBEIAS]

“Cabot Risun Chemicals”

[RERBFSE T

“Cangzhou Production Base”
CeMAEERRE]

“CCIA”

[MPEREITE RS

“China” or “PRC”

[ e

Definitions

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RN REEEZAR (T RHER])

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
B Frnsi A T ks R

the audit committee of the Board

EFEMERZBE

our board of Directors

BEFg

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal banking business to
the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong
EBRIT—RELBFEPIPRBEFTROIEBNEMNE F(EHX  EREXBEBRIRBRISR
e

the British Virgin Islands
RBRUHS

Cabot Risun Chemical (Xingtai) Co., Ltd. (K& BB/t TFE)BRAF]), a limited
liability company established in the PRC on June 23, 2011 and owned as to 60.0% by
Cabot (China) Limited (<1&#F (R E) 1% & B R 2 7]), an independent third party, and 40.0%
by our subsidiary, Risun Chemicals. It is an associate of our Company

REFBEBETOBE)BERAT - R2011F6 A23BEF B AER AT - I B R ER(F
BNIREBR AT (RBILE=F) REMOMEB R BNESE 5 R H60.0%5&40.0% - &7

NS0}k /Nl

our production base in Cangzhou, where the refined chemical facilities directly owned by
our subsidiary, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals, are located

BAERMONEERR - AEFINMEQFIAMNBEC TEEESORBA(C TRIEMNAMELD

the China Coking Industry Association ({FBIRETTEWE), an association composed of
representatives from the PRC coking industry

FRIREITRHE - AT BERETERAKARNHE

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references to “China”
and the "“PRC” do not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PEARLNE - ERAFHREIEHES2ZEMNS - BXESEEN -
BEEE  RFIRAE

7R B IR
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Definitions (Continued)

EE(E)

“CNC Risun Energy”
[ BES AL IR]

“Companies Ordinance’
[RBEEB

“Company”

[ARAF]

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL]
“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ AR R

“Deed of Non-competition”

[T 5 RIE

“Dingzhou Production Base’
[EMEERRR]
“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“EBITDA”
[EBITDA]

“Executive Director(s)”

[BiTEE]

Hebei CNC Risun Energy Limited (/1L EENBE5 8EIR B R A 7)), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on November 21, 2003 and a joint venture company of the
Company

AL R IERGRE R AR AR -

AMAE AT

—XR2003F 11 A21 B EF BRI M ER AR AEA

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or
supplemented from time to time
EEENIFE622F A AHEDI (B ARHERT S 78)

China Risun Group Limited(REIfBF5 & E AR A R]), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 8, 2007
FEMBSEEBRAR - —RKN2007F 11 ASHEFR SRS MKMW ER AR

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

A AR A TR R

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules and, unless the context otherwise
requires, means each of Texson and Mr. Yang

A FMARRM T ZFANRE - RIFEXERBAE - SAERRRRGEE

a deed of non-competition entered into by each of our Controlling Shareholders containing
the undertakings as described in the paragraph headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-Competition” of the Prospectus, in favor of the Company and
our subsidiaries dated February 20, 2019

AEERARRETZ AIR2019F2 A20 A ARG - BB HRER[EIZEAR AR A #E
BR—TRFRE]—RATAUAR R B REFIHME A R AR m AR

our production base in Dingzhou, where the refined chemical facilities owned by our
subsidiary, Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy and the coking facilities owned by our subsidiary,
Hebei Risun Coking, are located

BAEEMNNEERR - RBPIOME D BEMNRE LIRS 1B TR kBP0
J&B A BRI SBIG S L R B R (L AR BB EI PR D

the director(s) of the Company

RAREE

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization

RETHE - BB - EREENEN

executive Director(s)

WITES
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“Financial Statements”

(BT8R
“FVTPL”
MRS EsT ARz

“Global Offering”

L‘Groupu’ “we” or “us”

(A& )kl

“HBCCIA”

DAt BB TE R E]

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars”
or “cents”

[Tl

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
(&5

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
or “Stock Exchange”

[ 7B R 32 BT S [HgE 52 )

“IFRS”

[ B B A5 o s 2 Al

Definitions (Continued

)
Ex(E)

the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 prepared by
the directors of the Company and audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, set out on pages
134 to 294 of this annual report
RERF1BAZ204BFHBAR A EFHFR L ARYAERT SHATTERNEZ2019F
124318 L FE iR A Mk

fair value through profit or loss
BAREFAEBR

the offer of 60,000,000 Shares initially offered by the Company for subscription by the
public in Hong Kong at, the offer and sale of the 540,000,000 Shares by the Company to
professional, institutional and other investors and an over- allotment of 90,000,000 Shares
as described in the section headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus
BRER2IRBEENRE | PR R TV IR 2% E60,000,000 R H AHEE LR
ALTRE - ARTIMEZE - #EREMREEEE RIEE540,000,000 A% 17 K & 8 AL 2%
90,000,000/% A% 17

the Company and its subsidiaries or, where the context otherwise requires, in respect
of the period prior to the Company becoming the holding company of its present
subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company, some or any of them and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their predecessors
RRFREMBAR  MXEREGE - HRARRRAEEENE R RAER A R AT A
FMmE - BIEARARBREMBAR - & THEMZEMNBR R REMZENBARISKGRE
ST TE) BB & R R A H) RS

Hebei Coking and Chemical Industry Association (jAlit& f1L1T¥#1# &), an association
composed of representatives from the coking and coal chemical industries

LB EMITERE - RN TITERKRARN TS

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEEEE BT B

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBSRITTH R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBERSFIARAT
International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments and interpretations issued by

the International Accounting Standards Board
B ERE e R H BRI SR 2ER - BT R

2019 FiR
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Definitions (Continued)

EE(E)

“Independent Non-executive
Director(s)”

(B IFITE R

“independent third party(ies)”

PEZE=77]

“Jinniu Risun Chemicals”

(&4 1B5(ET]

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”

[ A
“Listing Rules”
[ AR All

“Main Board”

el
“Mr. Yang”

[55EE]
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independent non-executive Director(s)
BIIEHITES

person(s) or company(ies) and their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s), who/which, to
the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, is/fare not connected with the Company or our connected persons as defined
under the Listing Rules

BRMEEAIEE —EBEREMAN  REBRBE - BIE ETARRBEAR T LK MEE
AT EBAENALTRATAREESEHEEREFA

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (Alib &4 BfEE THRAA]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on March 28, 2008 and owned as to 50.0% by our
subsidiary, Xingtai Risun Trading and 50.0% by Hebei Jinniu Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.
Ot e4t THRDBRZAF]), a company established in the PRC, whose shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600722), and an independent third party.
Jinniu Risun Chemicals is an associate of our Company

AL F S TAERAR - —KN2008F3 A28 BEF BRI M BR AR - AERMAIHE
RAMBEIEHE S KAt @ HE TRMER AR (—REFEKIZIN LA - EROHR LEE
HR P LR - 600722) © BB E=77) 5 HI#EHS0.0%550.0% © &4 1B T
RARRIREEE A A

listing of the Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
MR P E BB R P T

the date, being, March 15, 2019, on which the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange

R FRBE A P T Y B UL SR B R T E R E B R BI2019F3 4151

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

BERABARHAERARES EMARREAEERT » MFEsSARMIT U ER)

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel with the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange

P EIRET IS (T EEETS) - BB A PTGEMI B E I 178 5&E

i

=]

Mr. Yang Xuegang (# % &), an Executive Director, the chairman of the Board, chief
executive officer and one of our Controlling Shareholders
BEMEE  PITESF  EFESELFRITEEE - WARPMZEBRERZ —



“NDRC”

[EIREANE]

“Nomination Committee”

[EREEe]

“‘NPC”
(2B AK]

“Prospectus”

(TR ERE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FHEEE]

“Reporting Period”
[R5 HA

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[ARH]

“SFQO” or “Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

[7& 75 R AR )

“Shares”

[ f7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ 3R ]

“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries’

=N

“substantial shareholder”
[EZE/RER]

“Tangshan Production Base”

[FEERRE]

Definitions (Continued

)
Ex(E)

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (FF % A R L5050 B 5% 2 & Ak
FZE®)
FEARANMEERERNAELZES

the nomination committee of the Board

EFEMRAZEE

National People’s Congress of the PRC (FFf# AR EMBEZ2EARKEZAD)
FEAREMEZBEARREARS

the prospectus of the Company dated February 28, 2019 in relation to the initial public
offering and the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange

AABIHEAR201952 28 A A B B IR AF & MR FIRBONE R MR ER

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFENFHERE

January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019
20191518 %2019 12H31H

the lawful currency of the PRC

PEDEEES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time

BEREGIFSNEEH L E GH (T REFT AT

ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of our Company
KRR BIRAFR GREEOA0E TH E iR

holder(s) of our Shares

[ SZEST=PN

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance
NI S e 0P

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules
B PR A T % s e R &

the production base in Tangshan, where the refined chemical facilities owned by our
subsidiary, Tangshan Risun Chemicals are located

BRMEEUNEERR - REMHMBLRRELBEE THEA B TRENMEL
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Definitions (Continued)

EE(E)

“Texson”
ESaEA
“USA”
£

“UsD”
ES

“Xingtai Production Base”

(MarERRE]

Xingtai Risun Chemicals
[T & feFs{ L)

“Xingtai Risun Trading”
[TBETEFSE 5 )
“Xuyang Group”

[TBr5 5]

“Xuyang Holding”

[BRE1ER

wop”
[%]
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Texson Limited (=B A F]), a company incorporated in the BVI on February 19,
2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. It is one of our Controlling Shareholders
RRHRBBR AR —HKR2004F2A19B ERBRAHSTMAKNRE] - BIGLERERE
B ERBMRERRR 2 —

the United States of America
EFBRE R

the lawful currency of the USA

XEHEEEY

the production base in Xingtai, where the coking facilities owned by our joint venture
company, CNC Risun Energy, and refined chemical facilities owned by our subsidiaries,
Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals, Xingtai Risun Chemicals and our associates, Jinniu Risun
Chemicals and Cabot Risun Chemicals are located

BMEMENEERRE - REMNE SR TR EEELRES NREREAREMOHER
AIMAEEFEAT - MEEE T REMNEE QR SFBELET - RESEEEITESRN
FE4R{E TR b ey PR et

Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited (JB&JES{L THR A 7)), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on March 17, 2014 and an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of our
Company

MEMBEEIBRAR - —RH2014F3A17BEFRKIMHERADA - ARQAKMEES
=l YN=]

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited (lB&EFE 5 BR 2 7)) (formerly known as Xingtai Risun
Coking Limited (FB&BFZE(LBRAF]), a limited liability company established in the
PRC on May 12, 1995 and an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of our Company
MEBHEEZSER LR FIBMABEENERATE) - —KN1995F5 A 128 £ BIKIZH)
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Xuyang Holding and its subsidiaries
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Xuyang Holding Limited (JEFZ#ZER% AR A A]) (formerly known as Xuyang Coking Holding
Limited (JBFZE{b4EM8 B R 2 ]) and Tianlu Industrial Holding Limited (K& & 2iEERR
2 7A])), a limited liability company established in the PRC on August 4, 2004 and owned as
t0 99.0% by Mr. Yang and 1.0% by Mrs. Yang
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China Risun Group Limited
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